# **IRELAND**

# Third national report

## **CONTENTS**

Α.	REPORTING PARTY	2
	Information on the preparation of the report	2
В.	PRIORITY SETTING, TARGETS AND OBSTACLES	
	Priority Setting	
	Challenges and Obstacles to Implementation	5
	2010 Target	8
	Global Strategy for Plant Conservation (GSPC)	
	Ecosystem Approach	
C	ARTICLES OF THE CONVENTION	
Ο.	Article 5 – Cooperation	
	Article 6 - General measures for conservation and sustainable use	
	Biodiversity and Climate Change	
	Article 7 - Identification and monitoring	53 5 <i>1</i>
	Decisions on Taxonomy	
	Article 8 - In-situ conservation_[Excluding paragraphs (a) to (e), (h) and (j)]	
	Programme of Work on Protected Areas (Article 8 (a) to (e), (ii) and (j)]	
	Article 8(h) - Alien species	
	Article 8(i) - Arien species	
	GURTS	
	Status and Trends	
	Akwé: Kon Guidelines	
	Capacity Building and Participation of Indigenous and Local Communities  Support to implementation	72
	Article 9 - Ex-situ conservation	
	i j	
	Biodiversity and Tourism	
	Article 12 - Research and training	
	Article 13 - Public education and awareness	
	Article 14 - Impact assessment and minimizing adverse impacts	
	Article 15 - Access to genetic resources	
	Article 16 - Access to and transfer of technology.	
	Programme of Work on transfer of technology and technology cooperation	
	Article 17 - Exchange of information	
	Article 18 - Technical and scientific cooperation	
	Article 19 - Handling of biotechnology and distribution of its benefits	102
_	Article 20 – Financial resources	
υ.	. THEMATIC AREAS	
	Inland water ecosystems	
	Marine and coastal biological diversity	
	General	
	Implementation of Integrated Marine and Coastal Area Management	
	Marine and Coastal Living Resources	
	Mariculture	
	Alien Species and Genotypes	
	Agricultural biological diversity	
	Annex to decision V/5 - Programme of work on agricultural biodiversity	
	Forest Biological Diversity	
	General	
	Expanded programme of work on forest biological diversity	
	Biological diversity of dry and sub-humid lands	
_	Mountain Biodiversity	
	OPERATIONS OF THE CONVENTION.	
Η.	COMMENTS ON THE FORMAT	143

### **A. REPORTING PARTY**

Contracting Party	Ireland
N	ATIONAL FOCAL POINT
Full name of the institution	Department of the Environment, Heritage and Local Government
Name and title of contact officer	David Kelly
Mailing address	Department of the Environment, Heritage and Local Government, 7 Ely Place, Dublin 2, Ireland
Telephone	00 353 1 8883245
Fax	00 353 1 8883276
E-mail	david_kelly@environ.ie
CONTACT OFFICER FO	OR NATIONAL REPORT (IF DIFFERENT FROM ABOVE)
Full name of the institution	
Name and title of contact officer	
Mailing address	
Telephone	
Fax	
E-mail	
	SUBMISSION
Signature of officer responsible for submitting national report	
Date of submission	

## Information on the preparation of the report

#### Box I.

Please provide information on the preparation of this report, including information on stakeholders involved and material used as a basis for the report.

As part of the process of preparing this Report, a range of stakeholders comprising Government Department and agencies, conservation NGOs and other bodies were consulted. These bodies were notified about the preparation of the report and were requested or invited to provide input and information in response to the questions set out in the report.

#### **B. PRIORITY SETTING, TARGETS AND OBSTACLES**

#### Box II.

Please provide an overview of the status and trends of various components of biological diversity in your country based on the information and data available.

Ireland's mild climate and exceptionally diverse geology have rendered it suitable for a relatively diverse flora an fauna. These factors have gone some way towards countering the effects of its separation from Europe in post-glacial times - before many species had a chance to (re-)colonise. It's extended coastline and large expanse of territorial waters have contributed to its exceptional maritime and marine diversity, while it's "saucer-like" topography (with most of the montane areas concentrated near the coast, rather than along a central spine) created circumstances where extensive and diverse freshwater wetlands could develop.

Agriculture commenced in neolithic times and rural population reached its peak in the nineteenth century, so that much of the "natural" landscape was already altered at that stage and some species such as the wolf- were lost. During this time, virtually all of Ireland's native woodlands were subject to clearance so that today's woodlands are virtually all of secondary origin. The famine of 1845-48 led a sharp decline in subsequent rural depopulation, with further fundamental changes in the landscape as a consequence.

The biodiversity resource of Ireland today is the combination of these climatic, geological, topographical and historical factors. Among the features of international importance are the unique juxtapositions of mediterranean flora (and fauna) with species of colder climates, the extensive coverage of peatlands, and the exceptional range of coastal and wetland bird species in summer and winter. Some of the habitats for which Ireland is most famous - such as the machair of the west and northwest coast and the limestone pavement ( of which the most extensive areas are in the Burren, Co. Clare) - are the result of the interaction of nature with an agricultural regime that stabilised in post-famine times.

Accelerated development since 1960 - and, in particular, in recent decades, has tended to have negative impacts on Ireland's biodiversity. Habitat degradation and loss was the main cause, and the agricultural intensification which followed Ireland's entry into the then EEC, was a major contributory factor. More recently, the increased pace of economic growth (with the associated development of new roads, housing, tourist facilities etc.) has put further pressure on biodiversity.

Public awareness of biodiversity issues in Ireland lags behind that in most EU countries. This is partly because, until recently, Ireland was a relatively poor country and partly because of the perception - no longer the case - that our biodiversity resource was much more intact and less impacted by development. This poorly developed public awareness has impeded political momentum towards conservation - when there are competing economic considerations - and has resulted in conservation activities being under-resourced.

On the positive side, the legislative basis for protection biodiversity conservation has been greatly strengthened in recent decades with the adoption of national and European legislation dealing with a wide range of environmental issues, including nature conservation. Nevertheless, gaps remain in the legislation - for example, there is a need for statutory controls relating to alien invasive species.

## **Priority Setting**

1. Please indicate, by marking an "X" in the appropriate column below, the level of priority your country accords to the implementation of various articles, provisions and relevant programmes of the work of the Convention.

	Article/Provision/Programme of Work	Le	vel of Prior	ity
	Article / Frovision / Frogrammie of Work	High	Medium	Low
a)	Article 5 – Cooperation		X	
b)	Article 6 - General measures for conservation and sustainable use	Х		
c)	Article 7 - Identification and monitoring	Х		
d)	Article 8 – <i>In-situ</i> conservation	Х		
e)	Article 8(h) - Alien species	Х		
f)	Article 8(j) - Traditional knowledge and related provisions			Х
g)	Article 9 – Ex-situ conservation		Х	
h)	Article 10 – Sustainable use of components of biological diversity	Х		
i)	Article 11 - Incentive measures	Х		
j)	Article 12 - Research and training	Х		
k)	Article 13 - Public education and awareness	Х		
l)	Article 14 - Impact assessment and minimizing adverse impacts	Х		
m)	Article 15 - Access to genetic resources			X
n)	Article 16 - Access to and transfer of technology			Х
0)	Article 17 - Exchange of information		х	
p)	Article 18 – Scientific and technical cooperation			Х
q)	Article 19 - Handling of biotechnology and distribution of its benefits		х	
r)	Article 20 - Financial resources			Х
s)	Article 21 - Financial mechanism		х	
t)	Agricultural biodiversity	Х		

u) Forest biodiversity	Х		
v) Inland water biodiversity	Х		
w) Marine and coastal biodiversity	Х		
x) Dryland and subhumid land biodiversity	Х		
y) Mountain biodiversity		Х	

## Challenges and Obstacles to Implementation

**2.** Please use the scale indicated below to reflect the level of challenges faced by your country in implementing the provisions of the Articles of the Convention (5, 6,7, 8, 8h, 8j, 9, 10, 11,12, 13, 14, 15,16, 17, 18, 19 and 20)

3 = High Challenge

1 = Low Challenge

2 = Medium Challenge

0 = Challenge has been successfully overcome

N/A = Not applicable

Challenges					Arti	cles												
Challenges	5	6	7	8	8h	8j	9	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	18	19	20
a) Lack of political will and support	0	2	2	1	2	N/ a	1	2	1	2	2	1	N/ a	N/ a	1	0	0	2
b) Limited public participation and stakeholder involvement	N/ a	2	1	1	1	1	0	2	2	0	2	1	N/ a	N/ a	0	N/ a	N/ a	N/ a
c) Lack of mainstreaming and integration of biodiversity issues into other sectors	1	2	1	1	2	1	0	2	2	0	2	1	1	1	0	1	1	2
d) Lack of precautionary and proactive measures	N/ a	1	1	2	3	N/ a	0	2	2	0	2	1	1	1	0	N/ a/	N/ a	2
e) Inadequate capacity to act, caused by institutional weakness	1	2	1	2	3	N/ a	2	2	2	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1
f) Lack of transfer of technology and expertise	1	N/ a	N/ a	N/ a	N/ a	N/ a	0	1	1	0	N/ a	N/ a	1	1	0	1	1	N/ a
g) Loss of	N/ a	N/ a	N/ a	N/ a	N/ a	N/ a	0	0	N/ a	0	0	N/ a	1	1	0	N/ a	N/ a	N/ a

traditional knowledge																		
h) Lack of adequate scientific research capacities to support all the objectives	1	2	3	1	1	1	2	2	2	2	N/ a	1	1	1	0	1	1	1
i) Lack of accessible knowledge and information	1	2	2	1	1	0	0	2	2	0	N/ a	2	1	1	0	1	1	1
j) Lack of public education and awareness at all levels	1	2	2	2	2	0	1	2	2	2	3	2	1	1	0	1	1	1
k) Existing scientific and traditional knowledge not fully utilized	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	0	1	1	1
I) Loss of biodiversity and the corresponding goods and services it provides not properly understood and documented	N/ a	1	N/ a	1	N/ a	1	0	1	1	0	1	1	N/ a	N/ a	0	N/ a	N/ a	1
m) Lack of financial, human, technical resources	2	3	3	3	3	1	2	3	3	3	3	2	1	1	3	1	1	2
n) Lack of economic incentive measures	N/ a	1	N/ a	2	N/ a	N/ a	2	2	3	2	N/ a	0	1	1	0	N/ a	N/ a	1
o) Lack of benefit-sharing	N/ a	N/ a	N/ a	1	N/ a	1	0	1	1	0	N/ a	N/ a	1	1	0	N/ a	N/ a	1
p) Lack of synergies at national and international levels	1	1	1	1	3	N/ a	0	1	1	0	N/ a	N/ a	1	1	0	N/ a	N/ a	1
q) Lack of horizontal cooperation among stakeholders	N/ a	1	N/ a	1	N/ a	N/ a	0	1	1	0	1	1	1	1	1	N/ a	N/ a	N/ a
r) Lack of effective partnerships	1	1	1	1	1	N/ a	0	1	1	0	1	1	1	1	0	1	1	1
s) Lack of engagement of scientific	N/ a	1	1	1	1	N/ a	0	1	1	0	1	1	1	1	0	N/ a	N/ a	N/ a

1																		
community																		
t) Lack of appropriate policies and laws	1	1	1	1	3	1	0	2	2	0	1	1	1	1	0	1	1	1
u) Poverty	N/ a	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	N/ a	N/ a	N/ a	0	N/ a	N/ a	N/ a
v) Population pressure	N/ a	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	N/ a	N/ a	N/ a	0	N/ a	N/ a	N/ a
w) Unsustainable consumption and production patterns	N/ a	1	N/ a	1	N/ a	N/ a	0	1	1	0	N/ a	1	N/ a	N/ a	0	N/ a	N/ a	N/ a
x) Lack of capacities for local communities	N/ a	1	N/ a	1	1	0	0	1	1	0	N/ a	N/ a	N/ a	N/ a	0	N/ a	N/ a	N/ a
y) Lack of knowledge and practice of ecosystem- based approaches to management	1	1	1	1	1	1	0	1	1	0	N/ a	N/ a	N/ a	N/ a	0	N/ a	N/ a	N/ a
z) Weak law enforcement capacity	1	1	1	1	1	1	0	1	1	0	N/ a	1	1	1	0	1	1	1
aa) Natural disasters and environmental change	N/ a	N/ a	N/ a	N/ a	N/ a	N/ a	0	N/ a	N/ a	0	N/ a	N/ a	N/ a	N/ a	0	N/ a	N/ a	N/ a
ab) Others (please specify)	N/ a	N/ a	N/ a	N/ a	N/ a	N/ a	0	N/ a	N/ a	0	N/ a	N/ a	N/ a	N/ a	0	N/ a	N/ a	N/ a

### 2010 Target

The Conference of the Parties, in decision VII/30, annex II, decided to establish a provisional framework for goals and targets in order to clarify the 2010 global target adopted by decision VI/26, help assess the progress towards the target, and promote coherence among the programmes of work of the Convention. Parties and Governments are invited to develop their own targets with this flexible framework. Please provide relevant information by responding to the questions and requests contained in the following tables.

#### Box III.

Goal 1	Promote habitats				of the	biologi	cal dive	sity of eco	systems,
Target 1.1	At leas				each d	of the	world's	ecological	regions
I) National target: Has a national target been established corresponding to the gl									ibove?
a) No									
b) Yes, the same as	the globa	l targe	∍t					Х	
c) Yes, one or more	specific na	ationa	l targe	ets have be	en esta	blished			
Please provide details	below.								
At least 10 per cent of e 31 and 78 of Ireland's than species									
II) National targets fo established, please in								rget(s) ha(s)	(ve) been
Programme of w	ork	Yes	No			l	Details		
a) Agricultural			x						
b) Inland water			Х						
c) Marine and coasta	al		Х						
d) Dry and subhumid	d land		Х						
e) Forest			Х						
f) Mountain			X						
III) Has the global of strategies?	r nationa	I targ	jet be	een incorpo	orated	into re	levant pl	ans, prograr	nmes and
a) No									
b) Yes, into national	biodiversi	ity str	ategy	and action	plan				
c) Yes, into sectoral	strategies	, plan	s and	programm	es			Х	
Please provide details	below.								
See Box 4									
IV) Please provide inform	mation on	curre	nt sta	itus and tre	nds in r	elation	to this tar	get.	

8

V) Please provide inform	nation on indicators used in relation to this target.										
VI) Diseas mayida inform	/I) Please provide information on challenges in implementation of this target										
/I) Please provide information on challenges in implementation of this target.											
VII) Please provide any	other relevant information.										
Box IV.											
Target 1.2	Areas of particular importance to biodiversity prote	ected									
I) National target: Has a	national target been established corresponding to the glo	bal target above?									
a) No		X									
b) Yes, the same as											

II) National targets for specific programmes of work: If such national target(s) ha(s)(ve) been established, please indicate here, and give further details in the box(es).

c) Yes, one or more specific national targets have been established

Programme of work	Yes	No	Details
a) Agricultural		Х	
b) Inland water		Х	
c) Marine and coastal		Х	
d) Dry and subhumid land		Х	
e) Forest		Х	
f) Mountain		Х	

III) Has the global or national target been incorporated into relevant plans, programmes and strategies?

a)	No	
b)	Yes, into national biodiversity strategy and action plan	

Please provide details below.

c) Yes, into sectoral strategies, plans and programmes

Please provide details below.

11% of the national territory has been designated as part of a network of European sites of conservation importance know as Natura 2000 for species and habitats that are considered threatened at European level.

IV) Please provide information on current status and trends in relation to this target.

Χ

V) Please provide infor	V) Please provide information on indicators used in relation to this target.								
Favourable conservation	Favourable conservation status for habitats and species of European importance.								
VI) Please provide info	rmation on challenges in implementation of this target.								
Population and develop	oment pressures and landowner resistance.								
VII) Please provide any	other relevant information.								
Box V.									
Goal 2	Promote the conservation of species diversity								
Target 2.1	Restore, maintain, or reduce the decline of popular selected taxonomic groups	tions of species of							
I) National target: Has	a national target been established corresponding to the glo	bal target above?							
a) No									
b) Yes, the same as	s the global target								
c) Yes, one or more	specific national targets have been established	Х							
Please provide detai	ls below.								
Currently red data books exist for vertebrates, vascular plants and stoneworths. Further Red Data Books are planned for lichens and bryophytes and Red lists are in preparation for some invertebrate groups. A new vascular plant Red Data Book is planned for 2010.									
	o the Global Strategy for Plant Conservation has been								

Conservation (NSPC).

II) National targets for specific programmes of work: If such national target(s) ha(s)(ve) been established, please indicate here, and give further details in the box(es).

Programme of work	Yes	No	Details
a) Agricultural	X		
b) Inland water	Х		
c) Marine and coastal			
d) Dry and subhumid land			
e) Forest			
f) Mountain			

	Has the global or national target been incorporated into relevant plar trategies?	ns, programmes and							
a)	No	Х							
b)	Yes, into national biodiversity strategy and action plan								
c)	Yes, into sectoral strategies, plans and programmes								
Ple	ase provide details below.								
IV) P	IV) Please provide information on current status and trends in relation to this target.								
V) Ple	ease provide information on indicators used in relation to this target.								
Impro	ovement of conservation status for threatened species.								
VI) P	VI) Please provide information on challenges in implementation of this target.								
VII) F	/II) Please provide any other relevant information.								

#### Box VI.

Targe	t 2.2	Status of threatened species improved								
I) National target: Has a national target been established corresponding to the global target above?										
a) No	a) No									
b) Yes, the same as the global target										
c) Yes	s, one or more s	specific national targets have been established	X							
Please provide details below										

Please provide details below.

A conservation plan for the Natterjack Toad is being implemented

Ireland is bound by the terms of the EU Birds & Habitats Directives in relation to listed habitats and species.

Four Draft Species Action Plans (SAPs) have been prepared in conjunction with our counterparts in Northern Ireland, the Environment & Heritage Services (EHS). The species are, the Irish Hare, the Pollan, the Corncrake and Irish Lady's Tresses Orchid. Drafts of these plans have been placed on the respective Departmental websites for public consultation.

Species Action Plans are being prepared for Margaritifera Margaritifera (freshwater mussel), Killarney Fern, Red Squirrel and all Bat species, excluding the lesser horseshoe bat. The Red Squirrel and Margaritifera Margaritifera Species Action Plans will be joint projects with the EHS (NI) while the Killarney Fern and Bat Species Action Plans will be carried out by the NPWS.

The National Botanic Gardens is the lead agency for the *National Strategy for Plant Conservation*. This plan has identified the importance of ex-situ actions with regard to Critically Endangered species of vascular plants in Ireland. The Gardens will participate in a programme with *PlantNetwork: the plant collections network of Britain and Ireland* to collate a complete dataset of cultivation protocols for all threatened species in Ireland (ca. 120 spp.).

II)	National	targets	for	specific	programmes	of	work:	lf	such	national	target(s)	ha(s)(ve)	been
	establish	ed, pleas	se in	dicate he	ere, and give f	urtl	her deta	ails	in the	box(es).			

Programme of work	Yes	No	Details
a) Agricultural		Х	
b) Inland water		Х	
c) Marine and coastal		Х	
d) Dry and subhumid land		Х	
e) Forest		Х	
f) Mountain		Х	

- III) Has the global or national target been incorporated into relevant plans, programmes and strategies?
  - a) No
    b) Yes, into national biodiversity strategy and action plan
    C) Yes, into sectoral strategies, plans and programmes
    X

Please provide details below.

- IV) Please provide information on current status and trends in relation to this target.
- V) Please provide information on indicators used in relation to this target.
- VI) Please provide information on challenges in implementation of this target.
- VII) Please provide any other relevant information.

### Box VII.

Goal 3	Promote the conservation of genetic diversity									
Target 3.1  Genetic diversity of crops, livestock, and of harvested species of trefish and wildlife and other valuable species conserved, and associating indigenous and local knowledge maintained										
I) National target: Has	s a national target been established corresponding to the glo	bal target above?								
a) No										
b) Yes, the same as the global target										
c) Yes, one or more specific national targets have been established X										

Please provide details below.

VII) Please provide any other relevant information.

As part of Ireland's National Strategy for Plant Conservation, Target 13 states: Safeguard the traditional practices based on plant resources, and their associated knowledge, that support local communities and their livelihoods in Ireland.

Target 9 of the NSPC states: Conserve the genetic diversity of all known indigenous traditional Irish agricultural plant varieties of crops, land races and crop relatives as well as other socio-economically valuable plant species.

The Department of Agriculture and Food operate a grant scheme to assist farmers who breed Irish Maol Cattle, Dexter Cattle, Kerry Cattle, Connemara Sheep, the Irish Draught Horse, the Connemara Pony and recently the Kerry Bog Pony.

II) National targets for specific programmes of work. If such national target(s) ha(s)(ye) been

	II) National targets for specific programmes of work: If such national target(s) ha(s)(ve) been established, please indicate here, and give further details in the box(es).							
Pro	ogramme of work	Yes	No	Details				
a)	Agricultural	Х		See above				
b)	Inland water		Х					
c)	Marine and coastal		X					
d)	Dry and subhumid land		Х					
e)	Forest		X					
f)	Mountain		Χ					
	Has the global or nationa trategies?	l targ	get be	een incorporated into relevant plar	ns, programmes and			
a)	No							
b)	Yes, into national biodivers	ity str	ategy	and action plan	X			
c)	Yes, into sectoral strategies	s, plan	s and	programmes	X			
Ple	ase provide details below.							
IV) P	lease provide information on	curre	nt sta	tus and trends in relation to this targe	et.			
V) Ple	V) Please provide information on indicators used in relation to this target.							
VI) P	VI) Please provide information on challenges in implementation of this target.							
Conti	Continued availability of rare crop and livestock breeds.							

## Box VIII.

Goal 4	Goal 4 Promote sustainable use and consumption.							
Target 4.1	Target 4.1  Biodiversity-based products derived from sources that are sustainably managed, and production areas managed consistent with the conservation of biodiversity							
) National target: Has a national target been established corresponding to the global target above?								
a) No					X			
b) Yes, the same as	the globa	I targe	et					
c) Yes, one or more	specific n	ationa	I targe	ets have been established				
Please provide details	below.							
Except in the Fisheries a of economic importance		ulture	secto	rs, biodiversity based products in Ire	land are not generally			
				nes of work: If such national targory ve further details in the box(es).	et(s) ha(s)(ve) been			
Programme of work		Yes	No	Details				
a) Agricultural			x					
b) Inland water			Х					
c) Marine and coasta	nl		х					
d) Dry and subhumic	land		Х					
e) Forest			x					
f) Mountain			Х					
III) Has the global or strategies?	nationa	ıl tarç	get be	een incorporated into relevant plan	ns, programmes and			
a) No					X			
b) Yes, into national	biodivers	ity str	ategy	and action plan				
c) Yes, into sectoral	strategies	s, plan	s and	programmes				
Please provide details	below.							
IV) Please provide inform	mation or	curre	ent sta	tus and trends in relation to this targe	et.			
V) Please provide inform	nation on	indica	tors u	sed in relation to this target.				
VI) Please provide inforr	nation on	challe	enges	in implementation of this target.				
VII) Please provide any	other rele	evant i	inform	ation.				

## Box IX.

Target 4.2	Unsustaina upon biodiv		nsumption, of biological resource , reduced	es, or that impacts				
I) National target: Has a	I) National target: Has a national target been established corresponding to the global target above?							
a) No								
b) Yes, the same as	the global tar	get		Х				
c) Yes, one or more	specific nation	nal targ	ets have been established					
Please provide details	below.							
	e exploitation		of the objectives is to control peat ex nber. Ireland is bound by EU legis					
			nes of work: If such national targ ve further details in the box(es).	et(s) ha(s)(ve) been				
Programme of work	Yes	s No	Details					
a) Agricultural		Х						
b) Inland water		X						
c) Marine and coasta	al X							
d) Dry and subhumic	d land	X						
e) Forest	X							
f) Mountain		Х						
III) Has the global or strategies?	r national ta	rget b	een incorporated into relevant plar	ns, programmes and				
a) No								
b) Yes, into national	biodiversity s	trategy	and action plan					
c) Yes, into sectoral	strategies, pla	ans and	programmes	X				
Please provide details	below.							
IV) Please provide inform	mation on cur	rent sta	atus and trends in relation to this targe	et.				
V) Please provide inform	nation on indic	cators u	used in relation to this target.					
VI) Please provide information on challenges in implementation of this target.								
VII) Please provide any	other relevan	t inforn	nation.					

## Box X.

Target 4.3	No species	of wild	I flora or fauna endangered by int	ernational trade			
) National target: Has a national target been established corresponding to the global target above?							
a) No	a) No						
b) Yes, the same as th	ne global tar	get		X			
c) Yes, one or more sp	ecific nation	nal targe	ets have been established				
Please provide details b							
Ireland has ratified CITES and in addition is bound by stricter EU Wildlife legislation							
			nes of work: If such national targ ve further details in the box(es).	et(s) ha(s)(ve) been			
Programme of work	Ye	s No	Details				
a) Agricultural		X					
b) Inland water		X					
c) Marine and coastal		X					
d) Dry and subhumid I	and	X					
e) Forest		Х					
f) Mountain		X					
III) Has the global or strategies?	national ta	rget be	een incorporated into relevant plai	ns, programmes and			
a) No							
b) Yes, into national b	iodiversity s	trategy	and action plan	X			
c) Yes, into sectoral st	rategies, pl	ans and	programmes				
Please provide details b	pelow.						
IV) Please provide inform	ation on cur	rent sta	tus and trends in relation to this targ	et.			
Ireland reports to the European Union on its implementation of CITES and related EU Wildlife Trade legislation.							
V) Please provide information on indicators used in relation to this target.							
VI) Please provide inform	ation on cha	illenges	in implementation of this target.				
VII) Please provide any of	ther relevan	t inform	nation.				

## Box XI.

Goal 5	Pressures from habitat loss, land use change and degradation, and unsustainable water use, reduced.							
Target 5.1	Target 5.1 Rate of loss and degradation of natural habitats decreased							
I) National target: Has a national target been established corresponding to the global target above?								
a) No								
b) Yes, the same as	the globa	l targe	et					
c) Yes, one or more	specific n	ationa	I targe	ets have been established	X			
Please provide details	below.							
Directives. These obl	lige us t	to ens	sure f	ovision of the EU Habitats, Birds a favourable conservation status of I ve water management regime.				
				nes of work: If such national targ ve further details in the box(es).	et(s) ha(s)(ve) been			
Programme of work		Yes	No	Details				
a) Agricultural			х					
b) Inland water			Х					
c) Marine and coasta	al		Х					
d) Dry and subhumic	land		Х					
e) Forest			Х					
f) Mountain			Х					
III) Has the global or strategies?	r nationa	ıl tarç	get be	een incorporated into relevant plai	ns, programmes and			
a) No								
b) Yes, into national	biodivers	ity str	ategy	and action plan	X			
c) Yes, into sectoral	strategies	s, plar	ıs and	programmes	X			
Please provide details	below.							
The above mentioned El	J legislati	ion go	verns	all economic use of protected habitat	s and species.			
IV) Please provide inforr	mation on	curre	nt sta	tus and trends in relation to this targe	et.			
V) Please provide inform	nation on	indica	tors u	sed in relation to this target.				
Favourable conservation status for habitats of European importance.								
VI) Please provide information on challenges in implementation of this target.								
VII) Please provide any	other rele	evant i	inform	nation.				

## Box XII.

Goal 6	Control threats from invasive alien species.							
Target 6.1 Pathways for major potential alien invasive species controlled								
I) National target: Has a national target been established corresponding to the global target above?								
a) No								
b) Yes, the same as	the global	targe	et		X			
c) Yes, one or more s	specific na	itiona	l targ	ets have been established				
Please provide details	Please provide details below.							
An all-island review of Alien Species has recently been completed in conjunction with the Northern Ireland authorities and a strategy is being drawn up for implementation of the recommendations. In the meantime measures are in place for the control and management of certain species such as the rhododendron, ponticum, and zebra mussel.								
				ed in consultation the Northern Ireland e or movement, notably of aquatic alie				
	II) National targets for specific programmes of work: If such national target(s) ha(s)(ve) been established, please indicate here, and give further details in the box(es).							
Programme of work		Yes	No	Details				
a) Agricultural			Х					
b) Inland water		Х		Control of invasive waterweeds by means of publicity and surveillance. Control of the spread of Zebra Mussels by publicity and surveillance				
c) Marine and coasta	ıl		Χ					
d) Dry and subhumid	I land		Х					
e) Forest			Х					
f) Mountain			Х	<u> </u>				
III) Has the global or strategies?	national	l targ	jet b	een incorporated into relevant plar	ns, programmes and			
a) No								
b) Yes, into national	biodiversi	ty str	ategy	and action plan	Х			
c) Yes, into sectoral s	strategies	, plan	s and	programmes				
Please provide details	below.							
IV) Please provide inform	mation on	curre	nt sta	tus and trends in relation to this targe	et.			
V) Please provide inform	ation on i	ndica	tors u	sed in relation to this target.				
VI) Please provide information on challenges in implementation of this target.								
VII) Please provide any	other rele	vant i	nform	nation.				

## Box XIII.

Target 6.2 Management plans in place for major alien species that threaten ecosystems, habitats or species					
I) National target: Has a national	targe	t been	established corresponding to the glol	bal target above?	
a) No				X	
b) Yes, the same as the globa	al targ	et			
c) Yes, one or more specific n	ationa	ıl targe	ets have been established		
Please provide details below.					
The management strategies for Ireland's National Parks provide for the eradication of rhododendron. The total eradication of two species from the localities where they have become established is planned: Hydrocotyle ranunculoides and Myriophyllum aquaticum.					
			nes of work: If such national targ ye further details in the box(es).	et(s) ha(s)(ve) been	
Programme of work	Yes	No	Details		
a) Agricultural		X			
b) Inland water		X			
c) Marine and coastal		X			
d) Dry and subhumid land		X			
e) Forest		X			
f) Mountain		X			
III) Has the global or national strategies?	al tar	get be	een incorporated into relevant plar	ns, programmes and	
a) No					
b) Yes, into national biodivers	sity str	ategy	and action plan	X	
c) Yes, into sectoral strategie	s, plar	ns and	programmes		
Please provide details below.					
NA Disease many ide information on			d d. ! l		
(17) Please provide information or	1 Curre	ent Sta	tus and trends in relation to this targe	et.	
V) Please provide information on	indica	itors u	sed in relation to this target.		
VI) Please provide information or	n chall	enges	in implementation of this target.		
VII) Please provide any other rele					

## Box XIV.

Goal 7	Address	challe	enges	s to biodiversity from climate char	nge, and pollution.
Target 7.1	Maintain adapt to			nce resilience of the components ange	of biodiversity to
I) National target: Has	a national	targe	t beer	n established corresponding to the glo	bal target above?
a) No					X
b) Yes, the same as	s the globa	I targe	et		
c) Yes, one or more	specific n	ationa	I targ	ets have been established	
Please provide detai	ls below.				
				nes of work: If such national targ ve further details in the box(es).	et(s) ha(s)(ve) beer
Programme of wor	k	Yes	No	Details	
a) Agricultural			Х		
b) Inland water			Х		
c) Marine and coast	tal		Х		
d) Dry and subhum	id land		х		
e) Forest			Х		
f) Mountain			Х		
III) Has the global of strategies?	or nationa	ıl tarç	get be	een incorporated into relevant plan	ns, programmes and
a) No					Х
b) Yes, into nationa	I biodivers	ity str	ategy	and action plan	
c) Yes, into sectora	I strategies	s, plan	is and	programmes	
Please provide detai	ls below.				
IV) Please provide info	rmation on	curre	nt sta	tus and trends in relation to this targ	et.
V) Please provide infor	mation on	indica	tors u	sed in relation to this target.	
V(1) D1					
VI) Please provide info	rmation on	cnalle	enges	in implementation of this target.	
VII) Please provide any	other rela	want i	inform	nation	
vii) i lease provide any	Julio Tele	vant i		iditori.	
I .					

## Box XV.

Target 7.2	Reduce	oollut	ion ar	nd its impacts on biodiversity			
I) National target:	Has a national	targe	t been	established corresponding to the glo	bal target above?		
a) No							
b) Yes, the sar	me as the globa	I targe	et				
c) Yes, one or	c) Yes, one or more specific national targets have been established X						
Please provide of	details below.						
The EU Water Framework Directive and Nitrates Directive have specific obligations with regard tos the reduction or elimination of water pollution.							
				es of work: If such national targer e further details in the box(es).	et(s) ha(s)(ve) been		
Programme of	work	Yes	No	Details			
a) Agricultural			x				
b) Inland wate	r	х		See above under 1)			
c) Marine and	coastal	Х		See above under 1)			
d) Dry and sub	humid land		Х				
e) Forest			Х				
f) Mountain			Х				
III) Has the glo strategies?	bal or nationa	al tarç	get be	een incorporated into relevant plar	ns, programmes and		
a) No							
b) Yes, into na	tional biodivers	ity str	ategy	and action plan			
c) Yes, into sec	ctoral strategie:	s, plar	s and	programmes	Х		
Please provide of	details below.						
IV) Please provide	information or	curre	nt sta	tus and trends in relation to this targe	et.		
V) Please provide	information on	indica	tors u	sed in relation to this target.			
VI) Please provide information on challenges in implementation of this target.							
VII) Please provide	e any other rele	evant i	inform	ation.			

## Box XVI.

Goal 8	Maintair support			of ecosystems to deliver goods	and services and
Target 8.1	Capacity	of ed	cosyst	tems to deliver goods and services	s maintained
I) National target: Has	a national	targe	t been	established corresponding to the glo	bal target above?
a) No					X
b) Yes, the same as	s the globa	ıl targe	et		
c) Yes, one or more	e specific n	ationa	I targe	ets have been established	
Please provide detai	ls below.				
Many of Ireland's habit	at protecti	on me	asure	s contribute to the delivery of clean w	ater.
				nes of work: If such national targ	et(s) ha(s)(ve) been
Programme of wor	k	Yes	No	Details	
a) Agricultural			X		
b) Inland water			X		
c) Marine and coas	tal		Х		
d) Dry and subhum	id land		X		
e) Forest			X		
f) Mountain			Х		
III) Has the global strategies?	or nationa	ıl tarç	get be	een incorporated into relevant plar	ns, programmes and
a) No					X
b) Yes, into nationa	ıl biodivers	ity str	ategy	and action plan	
c) Yes, into sectora	I strategie:	s, plar	ns and	programmes	
Please provide detai	Is below.				
IV) Please provide info	rmation or	n curre	ent sta	tus and trends in relation to this targe	et.
V) Please provide infor	mation on	indica	itors u	sed in relation to this target.	
VI) Please provide info	rmation on	challe	enges	in implementation of this target.	
VII) Please provide any	y other rele	evant	inform	nation.	
I					

## Box XVII.

Target 8.2				es that support sustainable livel care, especially of poor people m		od
I) National target: Has	a national ta	rget be	en	established corresponding to the glo	bal target above?	
a) No					Х	
b) Yes, the same as	s the global to	arget				
c) Yes, one or more	e specific nati	ional tai	rge	ets have been established		
Please provide detail	ls below.					
Many of Ireland's habit	at protection	measu	ire	s contribute to the delivery of clean w	ater.	
				nes of work: If such national targ ve further details in the box(es).	et(s) ha(s)(ve) b	een
Programme of wor	·k Y	es No	O	Details		
a) Agricultural		X				
b) Inland water		X				
c) Marine and coas	tal	X				
d) Dry and subhum	id land	X				
e) Forest		X				
f) Mountain		X				
III) Has the global strategies?	or national	target	be	een incorporated into relevant pla	ns, programmes	and
a) No					X	
b) Yes, into nationa	al biodiversity	/ strate	gу	and action plan		
c) Yes, into sectora	l strategies, p	plans ar	nd	programmes		
Please provide detai	Is below.					
IV) Diagon provide info	rmation on a	urront	2+0	tue and trande in relation to this targ	o.+	
iv) Please provide iiiio		urrents	sta	tus and trends in relation to this targe	<b>₹</b> (.	
V) Please provide infor	mation on inc	dicators	s u	sed in relation to this target.		
				J		
VI) Please provide info	rmation on ch	halleng	es	in implementation of this target.		
VII) Please provide any	y other releva	ant info	rm	ation.		

### Box XVIII.

Goal 9 Maintain	ı socio	o-cult	ural diversity of indigenous and lo	ocal communities.		
Target 9.1 Protect	traditi	ional	knowledge, innovations and pract	ices		
I) National target: Has a nationa	target	t been	established corresponding to the glob	bal target above?		
a) No						
b) Yes, the same as the globa	al targe	et				
c) Yes, one or more specific r	ationa	l targe	ets have been established	X		
Please provide details below.						
Under both EU Leader and the National Rural Development Program there are various measures that deal with the protection of traditional knowledge, innovations and practices. Funds are allocated to the various local Leader Groups who are the decision making authority in relation to approving actions falling within its business plan. A checklist of archived materials and ethnographic records covering traditional practices with reference to plant materials is being prepared at the National Botanic Gardens.  II) National targets for specific programmes of work: If such national target(s) ha(s)(ve) been						
,			re further details in the box(es).			
Programme of work	Yes	No	Details			
a) Agricultural	<u> </u>	X				
b) Inland water	<u> </u>	X				
c) Marine and coastal	<u> </u>	X				
d) Dry and subhumid land	<u> </u>	X				
e) Forest	<u> </u>	X				
f) Mountain		Х				
III) Has the global or nation strategies?	al tarç	get be	een incorporated into relevant plar	ns, programmes and		
a) No						
b) Yes, into national biodiver	sity str	ategy	and action plan			
c) Yes, into sectoral strategie	s, plan	ns and	programmes	X		
Please provide details below.						
IV) Please provide information on current status and trends in relation to this target.						
	n curre	ent sta	tus and trends in relation to this targe	et.		
			·	et.		
V) Please provide information or			·	et.		
	indica	tors u	sed in relation to this target.	et.		
V) Please provide information or VI) Please provide information o	indica	tors u	sed in relation to this target.	et.		
	indica	tors u enges	sed in relation to this target. in implementation of this target.	et.		

## Box XIX.

Target 9.2  Protect the rights of indigenous and local communities over their traditional knowledge, innovations and practices, including their rights to benefit sharing							
I) National target: Has a	national	targe	t been	established corresponding to the glo	bal target above?		
a) No					X		
b) Yes, the same as	the global	targe	et				
c) Yes, one or more s	specific na	itiona	I targe	ets have been established			
Please provide details below.							
				nes of work: If such national targ	et(s) ha(s)(ve) been		
Programme of work		Yes	No	Details			
a) Agricultural			х				
b) Inland water			Х				
c) Marine and coasta	nl		Х				
d) Dry and subhumic	d) Dry and subhumid land X						
e) Forest			X				
f) Mountain			x				
III) Has the global or strategies?	national	targ	jet be	een incorporated into relevant plai	ns, programmes and		
a) No					X		
b) Yes, into national	biodiversi	ty str	ategy	and action plan			
c) Yes, into sectoral	strategies	, plan	s and	programmes			
Please provide details	below.						
IV) Please provide inform	mation on	curre	nt sta	tus and trends in relation to this targ	et.		
V) Please provide inform	V) Please provide information on indicators used in relation to this target.						
VI) Please provide inform	mation on	challe	enges	in implementation of this target.			
VII) Please provide any	other rele	vant i	nform	nation.			

## Box XX.

Goa	al 10				nd equitable sharing of benefits	arising out of the
Tar	Target 10.1  All transfers of genetic resources are in line with the Convention on Biological Diversity, the International Treaty on Plant Genetic Resources for Food and Agriculture and other applicable agreements					
I) Na	tional target: Has a	national	targe	t beer	established corresponding to the glo	bal target above?
a)	No					
b)	Yes, the same as	the globa	I targe	et		
c)	Yes, one or more s	specific na	ationa	I targe	ets have been established	X
Ple	ase provide details	below.				
	National Botanic Gar out of their collectio		draw	n up s	strict protocols in the transfer of plan	t genetic material into
					nes of work: If such national targ ve further details in the box(es).	et(s) ha(s)(ve) been
Pro	ogramme of work		Yes	No	Details	
a)	Agricultural			Х		
b)	Inland water			X		
c)	Marine and coasta	ıI		х		
d)	Dry and subhumid	l land		X		
e)	Forest			Х		
f)	Mountain			Х		
	Has the global or trategies?	nationa	l targ	get be	een incorporated into relevant plar	ns, programmes and
a)	No					
b)	Yes, into national	biodivers	ity str	ategy	and action plan	
c)	Yes, into sectoral	strategies	s, plan	s and	programmes	
Ple	ase provide details	below.				
IV) P	lease provide inforr	nation on	curre	nt sta	tus and trends in relation to this targe	et.
V) Pl	ease provide inform	ation on	indica	tors u	sed in relation to this target.	
VI) D	loaco provido inform	nation on	chall	nges	in implementation of this target.	
VI) P	icase provide ilifori	nation on	CHAIR	enges	in implementation of this target.	
VII) I	Please provide any	other rele	evant i	inform	ation.	

### Box XXI.

Target 10.2	Benefits arising from the commercial and other utilization of genetic resources shared with the countries providing such resources				
I) National target: Has	a national	targe	t been	established corresponding to the glo	bal target above?
a) No					X
b) Yes, the same as	s the globa	ıl targe	et		
c) Yes, one or more	specific n	ationa	I targe	ets have been established	
Please provide detai	ls below.				
				nes of work: If such national targery to further details in the box(es).	et(s) ha(s)(ve) beer
Programme of wor	k	Yes	No	Details	
a) Agricultural			x		
b) Inland water			х		
c) Marine and coas	tal		х		
d) Dry and subhum	id land		Х		
e) Forest			X		
f) Mountain			X		
III) Has the global strategies?	or nationa	ıl tarç	get be	een incorporated into relevant plar	ns, programmes and
a) No					Х
b) Yes, into nationa	l biodivers	ity str	ategy	and action plan	
c) Yes, into sectora	I strategies	s, plar	is and	programmes	
Please provide detai	ls below.				
IV) Please provide info	rmation on	o curre	ent sta	tus and trends in relation to this targe	et.
V) Please provide infor	mation on	indica	tors u	sed in relation to this target.	
VI) Please provide info	rmation on	challe	enges	in implementation of this target.	
VII) Place provide and	, other rela	ovent !	inform	nation	
VII) Please provide any	y other rele	evant	morm	iation.	
1					

#### Box XXII.

Goa	al 11	Parties have improved financial, human, scient technological capacity to implement the Convention	•					
Tar	get 11.1	erred to developing mentation of their with Article 20						
I) Na	I) National target: Has a national target been established corresponding to the global target above?							
a)	) No							
b)	Yes, the same as	X						
c)	Yes, one or more specific national targets have been established							

Please provide details below.

Development Cooperation Ireland, Ireland's programme of assistance to developing countries, provides funding to the United Nations Environment Programme through a UNEP / Development Cooperation Ireland Multilateral Environmental Trust Fund for Africa. Over the period 2002-2004 Development Cooperation Ireland contributed over  $\in 1$  million a year through the Trust Fund specifically towards biodiversity- related projects. These include: the Great Apes Survival Project; biodiversity of African Mangroves; strengthening protected areas and ecological networks in Africa; capacity-building for the promotion of community-based biodiversity protection and conservation in fragile mountain and hilly ecosystems focusing on major catchment and river basins in East Africa through best practices in land management.

Development Cooperation Ireland has also provided funding to the Consultative Group on International Agricultural Research (CGIAR). This aims to contribute to sustainable agriculture for food security in developing countries. Part of the funding goes on the development of policy relating to the maintenance of stocks of plant species.

Development Cooperation Ireland has also focused on biodiversity conservation programmes on a number of its bilateral countries, for example Tanga Coastal Zone Conservation and Development Programme in Tanzania which it has supported since 1994.

Ireland has contributed to the United Nations Environment Programme for 2002 and 2003 towards the conservation of biological diversity in Africa.

II) National targets for specific programmes of work: If such national target(s) ha(s)(ve) been established, please indicate here, and give further details in the box(es).

Programme of work	Yes	No	Details
a) Agricultural		Х	
b) Inland water		Х	
c) Marine and coastal		Х	
d) Dry and subhumid land		Х	
e) Forest		Х	
f) Mountain		Х	

III) Has the global or national target been incorporated into relevant plans, programmes and

strategies?							
a) No							
b) Yes, into national biodiversity strategy and action plan							
c) Yes, into sectoral strategies, plans and programmes	X						
Please provide details below.							
IV) Please provide information on current status and trends in relation to this target.							
V) Please provide information on indicators used in relation to this target.							
VI) Please provide information on challenges in implementation of this target.							
VII) Please provide any other relevant information.							

#### Box XXIII.

Target 11.2	Technology is transferred to developing country Pathe effective implementation of their commitmed convention, in accordance with its Article 20, paragr	ments under the		
I) National target: Has a national target been established corresponding to the global target above?				
a) No	No			
b) Yes, the same as the global target				
c) Yes, one or more specific national targets have been established				
Please provide detai	ls helow			

Development Cooperation Ireland does not have any specific targets / activities related to technology transfer. Consultative Group on International Agricultural Research (CGIAR), to which Development Cooperation Ireland contributes, incorporates elements of Technology Transfer in relation to seed conservation, alternative forms of production to reduce deforestation.

II) National targets for specific programmes of work: If such national target(s) ha(s)(ve) been established, please indicate here, and give further details in the box(es).

Programme of work	Yes	No	Details
a) Agricultural		Х	
b) Inland water		Х	
c) Marine and coastal		Х	
d) Dry and subhumid land		Х	
e) Forest		Х	

f) Mountain	Х					
III) Has the global or nationa strategies?	ıl target bo	een incorporated	into relevant <sub> </sub>	plans, pro	grammes	and
a) No					Х	
b) Yes, into national biodivers	ity strategy	and action plan				
c) Yes, into sectoral strategies	s, plans and	programmes				
Please provide details below.						
IV) Please provide information on current status and trends in relation to this target.						
V) Please provide information on	indicators u	sed in relation to t	his target.			
VI) Please provide information on	challenges	in implementation	of this target.			
VII) Please provide any other rele	evant inform	nation.				

## Global Strategy for Plant Conservation (GSPC)

The Conference of the Parties, in decision VI/9, annex, adopted the Global Strategy for Plant Conservation. Parties and Governments are invited to develop their own targets with this flexible framework. The Conference of the Parties considered the Strategy as a pilot approach for the use of outcome oriented targets under the Convention. In decision VII/10, the Conference of the Parties decided to integrate the targets into the reporting framework for the Third National Reports. Please provide relevant information by responding to the questions and requests contained in the following tables.

#### Box XXIV.

Target 1. A widely accessible working list of known plant species, as a step towards a complete world flora.				
I) Has your country established national target corresponding to the above global target?				
a) Yes	Х			
b) No				
Please specify				
Widely accessible preliminary census lists of all wild plant species, and fungi, found in Ireland. Many of the actions for this target would need to be undertaken in collaboration with the appropriate bodies in Northern Ireland. It is envisaged that checklists would be provided, as a starting point, and as Census catalogues became available electronically they could be updated to the website. This target will address actions 41 & 42 of Ireland's- <i>National Biodiversity Plan</i> .				
II) Has your country incorporated the above global or national target into programmes and strategies?	relevant plans,			
a) Yes				
b) No	X			
Please specify				
III) Current status (please indicate current status related to this target)				
FUNGI; 3,500 spp., Checklist completed. FUNGI-Lichens; 957 spp. Census catalogue published in 1984, being updated. FUNGI-Lichenicolous specie; 150 spp., census catalogue completed in 2002 (to be published). ALGAE-Freshwater; ca. 1,000+?, Preliminary checklist being prepared. ALGAE-Marine; 579 spp., Checklist completed. BRYOPHYTES; 815 spp., Census catalogue published 2005. PTERIDOPHYTES; 78 spp, Census catalogue last published 1987, under revision. SEED PLANTS – Native; 815 spp, Census catalogue last published 1987, under revision. SEED PLANTS – Aliens; 1,108 spp., Census catalogue published 2004.				
IV) Measures taken to achieve target (please indicate activities, legislative measures a taken with a view to achieve the target)	and other steps			
VA Drawnaga mada tawanda tangat (mlagaga awaifa indinatana awaita maa il	towards 15 -			
V) Progress made towards target (please specify indicators used to monitor progress target)	lowards the			
Work at the National Botanic Gardens in support of this target is progressing well.				
VI) Constraints to achieving progress towards the target				

VII) Any other rele	evant information		
•			
Box XXV.			

Target 2. A preliminary assessment of the conservation status of all known plant species, at national, regional and international levels.				
I) Has your country established national target corresponding to the above global target?				
a) Yes	Х			
b) No				
Please specify				
A preliminary assessment of the conservation status of all known plant species, in Ireland completed and made widely available. The National Parks & Wildlife Service (NPWS) is currently sponsoring endangered Bryophyte surveys of a number of vice counties each year. A database of all threatened plants is currently being completed by Wildlife. This target will address actions 25 & 26 of Ireland's <i>National Biodiversity Plan</i> .				
II) Has your country incorporated the above global or national target into r programmes and strategies?	relevant plans,			
a) Yes				
b) No	×			
Please specify				
III) Current status (please indicate current status related to this target)				
The Red Data Lists for Irish flora are dated as follows: Charophytes: 1992; Vascular plants – 1988. Bryophytes – 1995. The Wildlife Service is compiling a national database of rare and scarce plants, and all red data list species are being reassessed.				
IV) Measures taken to achieve target (please indicate activities, legislative measures a taken with a view to achieve the target)	and other steps			
V) Progress made towards target (please specify indicators used to monitor progress t target)	owards the			
VI) Constraints to achieving progress towards the target				
VII) Any other relevant information				

## Box XXVI.

Target 3. Development of models with protocols for plant conservation and sustainable use, based on research and practical experience.				
I) Has your country established national target corresponding to the above global target?				
a) Yes	Х			
b) No				
Please specify				
Comprehensive and documented suite of practical solutions based on new or tested models, case studies, research and other experiences available for plant conservation and sustainable use in Ireland. The intention under this target is to provide a clearing house of practical guidance on how to conduct plant conservation and sustainable use activities in particular settings in Ireland. Techniques, technologies, protocols, practices, models, experiences and other forms of case studies so as to have a source of practical information. This is an important cross-cutting target and supports a number of actions of Ireland's <i>National Biodiversity Plan</i> , including actions 18, 29, 34, 35, 40, 43, 44, 66, 75, 80, 81, and 84.				
II) Has your country incorporated the above global or national target into r programmes and strategies?	relevant plans,			
a) Yes				
b) No	X			
Please specify				
III) Current status (please indicate current status related to this target)				
A database of research activities is planned. Research publications from the past 25 years on threatened plant ecology, biology and other conservation studies in Ireland are being collated. Applications for licences to work on protected flora are also being databased.				
IV) Measures taken to achieve target (please indicate activities, legislative measures and other steps taken with a view to achieve the target)				
V) Progress made towards target (please specify indicators used to monitor progress towards the target)				
VI) Constraints to achieving progress towards the target				
VII) Any other relevant information				

## Box XXVII.

Target 4. At least ten percent of each of the world's ecological regions effectively conserved.			
I) Has your country established national target corresponding to the above global target?			
a) Yes	X		
b) No			
Please specify			
At least 10 per cent of each of Ireland's plant habitats effectively conserved. supports actions 31 and 78 of Ireland's <i>National Biodiversity Plan</i> , and specificonserving habitats rather than species.			
II) Has your country incorporated the above global or national target int programmes and strategies?	o relevant plans,		
a) Yes			
b) No			
Please specify			
III) Current status (please indicate current status related to this target)			
IV) Measures taken to achieve target (please indicate activities, legislative m steps taken with a view to achieve the target)	easures and other		
Irelands national resource of ecological regions and habitats is being fully mapped. Once this stage is complete, we will assess the congruence of plant habitats and conservation areas already under legal protection, with a view to filling any gaps in coverage by 2010.			
V) Progress made towards target (please specify indicators used to monitor paths the target)	progress towards		
VI) Constraints to achieving progress towards the target			
VII) Any other relevant information			

## Box XXVIII.

Target 5. Protection of fifty percent of the most important areas fassured.	for plant diversity	
I) Has your country established national target corresponding to the above glob	oal target?	
a) Yes	X	
b) No		
Please specify		
Protection of the most important areas for plant diversity assured.		
II) Has your country incorporated the above global or national target programmes and strategies?	into relevant plans,	
a) Yes		
b) No	X	
Please specify		
III) Current status (please indicate current status related to this target)		
At present there is no compilation of these areas.		
IV) Measures taken to achieve target (please indicate activities, legislative mea steps taken with a view to achieve the target)	sures and other	
A Stakeholder meeting was held at the National Botanic Gardens on the 28 <sup>th</sup> /29 <sup>th</sup> September 2005 in order to develop a better understanding of Important Areas for Plant Biodiversity. Having identified and mapped these areas, an assessment of how well these fall within currently protected areas will be undertaken, with a view to filling any gaps in coverage.		
V) Progress made towards target (please specify indicators used to monitor protarget)	gress towards the	
VI) Constraints to achieving progress towards the target		
VII) Any other relevant information		

## Box XXIX.

Target 6. At least thirty percent of production lands managed conservation of plant diversity.	sistent with the	
I) Has your country established national target corresponding to the above glob	al target?	
a) Yes	Х	
b) No		
Please specify		
II) Has your country incorporated the above global or national target in programmes and strategies?	to relevant plans,	
a) Yes		
b) No		
Please specify		
III) Current status (please indicate current status related to this target)		
IV) Measures taken to achieve target (please indicate activities, legislative measteps taken with a view to achieve the target)	sures and other	
Provision of resources and guidelines for hedge management and marginal land developed.	ls are being	
V) Progress made towards target (please specify indicators used to monitor pro target)	gress towards the	
At least 30 per cent of production lands managed consistent with the conservation of plant diversity. In the forestry sector there has already been a major shift from timber production to woodland creation in such projects as the Peoples Millennium Forests Project and the Native Woodland Scheme. The achievements of Target 3 will provide a valuable resource for this target also. Actions 20, 21, 23, 32, 33, 66 and 67 of Ireland's <i>National Biodiversity Plan</i> address these issues also.		
VI) Constraints to achieving progress towards the target		
VII) Any other relevant information		

#### Box XXX.

Target 7. Sixty percent of the world's threatened species conserved In-situ.		
I) Has your country established national target corresponding to the above glob	al target?	
a) Yes	X	
b) No		
Please specify		
Conservation of at least 60 per cent of Ireland's threatened plant species assured in situ. Protected areas provide the only current means of conservation. Public awareness and landowner cooperation are potentially valuable avenues to explore. Actions 21, 22, 23 & 24 of the National Biodiversity Plan cover monitoring and assessment of protected area legislation.		
II) Has your country incorporated the above global or national target programmes and strategies?	into relevant plans,	
a) Yes	X	
b) No		
Please specify		
Threatened Plant species & Habitats protected under national legislation. Licenses required to interfere with protected plants. Many areas for rare plants are incorporated into SAC's		
III) Current status (please indicate current status related to this target)		
IV) Measures taken to achieve target (please indicate activities, legislative measures and other steps taken with a view to achieve the target)		
Database of threatened plants to determine geographical spread and location of threatened plants will be completed by 2007		
V) Progress made towards target (please specify indicators used to monitor progress towards the target)		
VI) Constraints to achieving progress towards the target		
VII) Any other relevant information		

#### Box XXXI.

Target 8. Sixty percent of threatened plant species in accessible <i>Ex-situ</i> collections, preferably in the country of origin, and 10 percent of them included in recovery and restoration programmes.	
I) Has your country established national target corresponding to the above global targ	et?
a) Yes	Х
b) No	
Please specify	
All threatened plant species in accessible ex situ collections, and all Critically Endangered and Endangered category species included in effective conservation management programmes. A recent project launched by <i>PlantNetwork: the Plant Collections Network of Britain and Ireland</i> has prepared a set of eight sub-targets in order to develop three major goals: 1) a complete database of cultivation and propagation pro tocols for all the threatened plant species of Britain and Ireland; 2) formation of partnerships between ex situ and in situ conservation efforts, through developing horticultural knowledge of these species; and 3) to increase the number of species in cultivation so as to provide material for experimental or public awareness programmes.	
II) Has your country incorporated the above global or national target into programmes and strategies?	relevant plans,
a) Yes	
b) No	
Please specify	
III) Current status (please indicate current status related to this target)	
At present 25% of all the red data species in Ireland are in seed banks or being grown as ex situ collections.	
IV) Measures taken to achieve target (please indicate activities, legislative measures and other steps taken with a view to achieve the target)	
V) Progress made towards target (please specify indicators used to monitor progress towards the target)	
National Botanic Gardens has set up an endangered Irish Threatened Plant Species Conservation Programme. 12 species will be grown at the gardens, and Action plans developed for their maintenance in the wild.	
VI) Constraints to achieving progress towards the target	
VII) Any other relevant information	

#### Box XXXII.

Target 9. Seventy percent of the genetic diversity of crops and othe economically valuable plant species conserved, and associated indige knowledge maintained.	
I) Has your country established national target corresponding to the above glob	al target?
a) Yes	Х
b) No	
Please specify	
Conserve the genetic diversity of all known indigenous traditional Irish agricultural plant varieties of crops, land races and crop relatives as well as other socio-economically valuable plant species. Heritage crops and vegetables will be highlighted, and the documentation and securing of these varieties will be a priority. The genetic integrity of these agriculturally important species have also been addressed under action 35 of the <i>National Biodiversity Plan</i> .	
II) Has your country incorporated the above global or national target into programmes and strategies?	relevant plans,
a) Yes	
b) No	
Please specify	
III) Current status (please indicate current status related to this target)	
A checklist of Irish bred cultivars has been established and will be distributed to the appropriate stakeholders to determine the number of agricultural plant varieties still surviving in the State.	
IV) Measures taken to achieve target (please indicate activities, legislative measures taken with a view to achieve the target)	sures and other
V) Progress made towards target (please specify indicators used to monitor pro the target)	gress towards
VI) Constraints to achieving progress towards the target	
VII) Any other relevant information	

#### Box XXXIII.

Target 10. Management plans in place for at least 100 major alien species that threaten plants, plant communities and associated habitats and ecosystems.	
I) Has your country established national target corresponding to the above global target?	
a) Yes	Х
b) No	
Please specify	
Management plans in place for at least 10 major alien species that threaten plants, plant communities and associated habitats and ecosystems in Ireland. This target addresses actions 28, 29 & 30 of the <i>National Biodiversity Plan</i> .	
II) Has your country incorporated the above global or national target in programmes and strategies?	to relevant plans,
a) Yes	Х
b) No	
Please specify	
An All-Ireland programme is being put in place to address the challenges posed by Invasive Alien Species	
III) Current status (please indicate current status related to this target)	
At present <i>Rhododendron ponticum</i> is one of the few plants for which serious efforts are being made to control its population. The arrival in Lough Corrib of Lagarosiphon major is viewed seriously as a task force has been established to address the control of this species	
IV) Measures taken to achieve target (please indicate activities, legislative measures and other steps taken with a view to achieve the target)	
Irish Law prohibits the introduction into the wild of any exotic species except by licence under the Wildlife Acts. All Ireland programme on Invasive Species is being pursued.	
V) Progress made towards target (please specify indicators used to monitor progress towards the target)	
VI) Constraints to achieving progress towards the target	
Legislation is required to ban the importation, sale and movement of a number of known invasive plants.	
VII) Any other relevant information	

#### Box XXXIV.

Target 11. No species of wild flora endangered by international trade.	
I) Has your country established national target corresponding to the above global target?	
a) Yes	Х
b) No	
Please specify	
No species of wild flora endangered by international trade. The <i>National Biodiversity Plan</i> has an action to increase training and capacity (Action 27) for border control, and its impact on international trade. Action 53 of the <i>National Biodiversity Plan</i> specifically allocates € 6 million to overseas initiatives.	
II) Has your country incorporated the above global or national target in programmes and strategies?	to relevant plans,
a) Yes	
b) No	
Please specify	
III) Current status (please indicate current status related to this target)	
CITES is fully implemented by Customs officers in Ireland, and training workshops are held annually.	
IV) Measures taken to achieve target (please indicate activities, legislative measures and other steps taken with a view to achieve the target)	
V) Progress made towards target (please specify indicators used to monitor progress towards the target)	
VI) Constraints to achieving progress towards the target	
Lack of Public Awareness may be contributing to endangerment of plant species overseas.	
VII) Any other relevant information	

#### Box XXXV.

Target 12. Thirty percent of plant-based products derived from sources that are sustainably managed.
I) Has your country established national target corresponding to the above global target?
a) Yes X
b) No
Please specify
A research programme is required to determine the usage of plant-based products arising from within and outside of Ireland.
II) Has your country incorporated the above global or national target into relevant plans, programmes and strategies?
a) Yes
b) No
Please specify
III) Current status (please indicate current status related to this target)
Harvesting of peat moss and turf is a major Industry in Ireland. There is now a moratorium on establishing new turf cutting of raised bogs.
IV) Measures taken to achieve target (please indicate activities, legislative measures and other steps taken with a view to achieve the target)
V) Progress made towards target (please specify indicators used to monitor progress towards the target)
VI) Constraints to achieving progress towards the target
Achieving a better understanding of sustainable practices specifically in regard to small holder turf cutting in the west of Ireland is dependent upon the provision of guidelines and protocols.
VII) Any other relevant information

#### Box XXXVI.

Target 13. The decline of plant resources, and associated indigenous and local knowledge, innovations and practices that support sustainable livelihoods, local food security and health care, halted.	
I) Has your country established national target corresponding to the above global target	et?
a) Yes	Х
b) No	
Please specify	
Safeguard the traditional practices based on plant resources, and their associated known support local communities and their livelihoods in Ireland.	wledge that
II) Has your country incorporated the above global or national target into r programmes and strategies?	relevant plans,
a) Yes	
b) No	
Please specify	
III) Current status (please indicate current status related to this target)	
IV) Measures taken to achieve target (please indicate activities, legislative measures and other steps taken with a view to achieve the target)	
V) Progress made towards target (please specify indicators used to monitor progress towards the target)	
A checklist of archived materials, ethnographic records and bibliography covering traditional practices with reference to plant materials is being developed.	
VI) Constraints to achieving progress towards the target	
VII) Any other relevant information	

#### Box XXXVII.

Target 14. The importance of plant diversity and the need for its conservation incorporated into communication, educational and public-awareness programmes.	
I) Has your country established national target corresponding to the above global target	et?
a) Yes	Х
b) No	
Please specify	
Ensure that plant conservation and biodiversity issues are incorporated into the formal curricula at all levels, and in informal education and national public awareness program goal for this target is to have an efficient Clearing House Mechanism to act as the foca Global Strategy for Plant Conservation. Much of the materials for this website already levels for engaging the public will be vital, and could be used as a teaching resource for secondary level pupils. This target supports action 43 & 44 of the <i>National Biodiversity</i>	nmes. A major I point for the exist, different or Primary and
II) Has your country incorporated the above global or national target into r programmes and strategies?	relevant plans,
a) Yes	
b) No	
Please specify	
III) Current status (please indicate current status related to this target)	
IV) Measures taken to achieve target (please indicate activities, legislative measures a taken with a view to achieve the target)	nd other steps
V) Progress made towards target (please specify indicators used to monitor progress t target)	owards the
VI) Constraints to achieving progress towards the target	
Achieving this target is dependent upon having a Clearing House Mechanism in operation.	
VII) Any other relevant information	

#### Box XXXVIII.

Target 15. The number of trained people working with appropriate facilities in plant conservation increased, according to national needs, to achieve the targets of this Strategy.	
I) Has your country established national target corresponding to the above global target?	
a) Yes	X
b) No	
Please specify	
The number of trained people working with appropriate facilities in plant conserved, to achieve the targets of this Strategy. This target supports actions 4 Biodiversity Plan.	
II) Has your country incorporated the above global or national target into relevand strategies?	ant plans, programmes
a) Yes	
b) No	
Please specify	
III) Current status (please indicate current status related to this target)	
IV) Measures taken to achieve target (please indicate activities, legislative measures and other steps taken with a view to achieve the target)	
V) Progress made towards target (please specify indicators used to monitor progress towards the target)	
VI) Constraints to achieving progress towards the target	
VII) Any other relevant information	

#### Box XXXIX.

Target 16. Networks for plant conservation activities established or strengthened at national, regional and international levels.
I) Has your country established national target corresponding to the above global target?
a) Yes X
b) No
Please specify
Broadly based Irish network for plant conservation established to achieve the targets for this strategy.
II) Has your country incorporated the above global or national target into relevant plans, programmes and strategies?
a) Yes
b) No
Please specify
III) Current status (please indicate current status related to this target)
IV) Measures taken to achieve target (please indicate activities, legislative measures and other steps taken with a view to achieve the target)
V) Progress made towards target (please specify indicators used to monitor progress towards the target)
VI) Constraints to achieving progress towards the target
VII) Any other relevant information

Box XL.	
Please elaborate below on the implementation of this strategy specifically focus	ing on:
a) outcomes and impacts of actions taken;	
b) contribution to the achievement of the goals of the Strategic Plan of the	Convention;
c) contribution to progress towards the 2010 target;	
d) progress in implementing national biodiversity strategies and action pla	ns;
e) contribution to the achievement of the Millennium Development Goals;	
f) constraints encountered in implementation.	
Ecosystem Approach	
The ecosystem approach is a strategy for the integrated management of land, water and living resources that promotes conservation and sustainable use in an equitable way. Application of the ecosystem approach will help to reach a balance of the three objectives of the Convention. At its second meeting, the Conference of the Parties has affirmed that the ecosystem approach is the primary framework for action under the Convention (decision II/8). The Conference of the Parties, at its fifth meeting, endorsed the description of the ecosystem approach and operational guidance and recommended the application of the principles and other guidance on the ecosystem approach. The seventh meeting of the Conference of the Parties agreed that the priority at this time should be facilitating implementation of the ecosystem approach. Please provide relevant information by responding to the following questions.	
3. 2 <sup>1</sup> Is your country applying the ecosystem approach, taking into accognidance contained in the annex to decision V/6? (decision V/6)	ount the principles and
a) No	
b) No, but application is under consideration	
c) Yes, some aspects are being applied	Х
d) Yes, substantially implemented	
4. 2 Is your country developing practical expressions of the ecosystem approand legislation and for implementation activities, with adaptation to local, conditions? (decision V/6)	
a) No	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Please note that all the questions marked with **?** have been previously covered in the second national reports and some thematic reports.

b) No, but development is under consideration	
c) Yes, practical expressions have been developed for applying some principles of the ecosystem approach	Х
d) Yes, practical expressions have been developed for applying most principles of the ecosystem approach	
<b>5.</b> Is your country strengthening capacities for the application of the ecosyproviding technical and financial support for capacity-building to apply the (decision V/6)	
a) No	Х
b) Yes, within the country	
c) Yes, including providing support to other Parties	
6. ? Has your country promoted regional cooperation in applying the ecosyst national borders? (decision V/6)	tem approach across
a) No	X
b) Yes, informal cooperation (please provide details below)	
c) Yes, formal cooperation (please provide details below)	
Further comments on regional cooperation in applying the ecosystem approach acr	ross national borders.
Management of cross-border conservation sites and river catchments <b>Bioforest:</b> Forestry and Environment Impacts Addressing Water Quality and  This research project is looking at:	d Biodiversity
(i) Biodiversity assessment of afforestation sites	
(ii) Assessment of biodiversity at different stages of the forest cycle	
(iii) Investigation of experimental methods to enhance biodiversity in plantati	ion forests
Part (ii) of the study has been completed and the results show that the best indica biodiversity over the forest cycle is stand structural stage. Fifteen recommendation relation to forest planning and management practices that will maintain and / or explantation forests. In order for twelve of these recommendations to be implement would be required to the Forest Service's Forest Biodiversity Guidelines.	itor of changes in ons were made in nhance biodiversity in
7. Is your country facilitating the exchange of experiences, capacity building, tea awareness raising to assist with the implementation of the ecosystem approach? VII/11)	
a) No	
b) No, some programmes are under development	
c) Yes, some programmes are being implemented (please provide details below)	Х
d) Yes, comprehensive programmes are being implemented (please provide details below)	
Further comments on facilitating the exchange of experiences, capacity building and awareness raising to assist with the implementation of the ecosystem approach	

The Marine Institure of Ireland is involved with ICES (International Council for the Exploration of the Seas) in the development of frameworks for the implementation of the ecosystem approach in the marine area.

	our country creating an enabling environment for the implementation ch, including through development of appropriate institutional frameworks?								
a)	No								
b)	No, but relevant policies and programmes are under development	X							
c)	Yes, some policies and programmes are in place (please provide details below)								
d)	Yes, comprehensive policies and programmes are in place (please provide details below)								
Further approa	comments on the creation of an enabling environment for the implementation.	tion of the ecosystem							
	C. ARTICLES OF THE CONVENTION								
	G. ARTIGLES OF THE CONVENTION								

a) No b) Yes, bilateral cooperation (please give details below) c) Yes, multilateral cooperation (please give details below) d) Yes, regional and/or subregional cooperation (please give details below) e) Yes, other forms of cooperation (please give details below) Further comments on cooperation with other Parties in respect of areas beyond national jurisdiction for	Article 5 – Cooperation	
b) Yes, bilateral cooperation (please give details below)  c) Yes, multilateral cooperation (please give details below)  d) Yes, regional and/or subregional cooperation (please give details below)  e) Yes, other forms of cooperation (please give details below)  Further comments on cooperation with other Parties in respect of areas beyond national jurisdiction for the conservation and sustainable use of biodiversity.  The Marine Institute of Ireland is involved in a wide range of national and international co-operative	<b>9. ?</b> Is your country actively cooperating with other Parties in respect of a jurisdiction for the conservation and sustainable use of biological diversity?	areas beyond national
c) Yes, multilateral cooperation (please give details below)  d) Yes, regional and/or subregional cooperation (please give details below)  e) Yes, other forms of cooperation (please give details below)  Further comments on cooperation with other Parties in respect of areas beyond national jurisdiction for the conservation and sustainable use of biodiversity.  The Marine Institute of Ireland is involved in a wide range of national and international co-operative	a) No	
d) Yes, regional and/or subregional cooperation (please give details below)  e) Yes, other forms of cooperation (please give details below)  Further comments on cooperation with other Parties in respect of areas beyond national jurisdiction for the conservation and sustainable use of biodiversity.  The Marine Institute of Ireland is involved in a wide range of national and international co-operative	b) Yes, bilateral cooperation (please give details below)	
e) Yes, other forms of cooperation (please give details below)  Further comments on cooperation with other Parties in respect of areas beyond national jurisdiction for the conservation and sustainable use of biodiversity.  The Marine Institute of Ireland is involved in a wide range of national and international co-operative	c) Yes, multilateral cooperation (please give details below)	Х
Further comments on cooperation with other Parties in respect of areas beyond national jurisdiction for the conservation and sustainable use of biodiversity.  The Marine Institute of Ireland is involved in a wide range of national and international co-operative	d) Yes, regional and/or subregional cooperation (please give details below)	
the conservation and sustainable use of biodiversity.  The Marine Institute of Ireland is involved in a wide range of national and international co-operative	e) Yes, other forms of cooperation (please give details below)	
	Further comments on cooperation with other Parties in respect of areas beyond in the conservation and sustainable use of biodiversity.	national jurisdiction for

	s your country working with other Parties to develop regional, subre nisms and networks to support implementation of the Convention? (decision		bioregional
a)	No		
b)	No, but consultations are under way		
c)	Yes, some mechanisms and networks have been established (please provide details below)		Х
d)	Yes, existing mechanisms have been strengthened (please provide details below)		
	r comments on development of regional, subregional or bioregional mechar t implementation of the Convention.	nisms and	networks to
	of the nature conservation activity carried out in Ireland takes place in t mmes. Ireland has contributed to the recent review of the EU Biodiversity S		t of the EU
optimiz	s your country taking steps to harmonize national policies and program zing policy coherence, synergies and efficiency in the implementation c nment agreements (MEAs) and relevant regional initiatives at the national le	of various	multilateral
a)	No		
b)	No, but steps are under consideration		
c)	Yes, some steps are being taken (please specify below)		X
d)	Yes, comprehensive steps are being taken (please specify below)		
Furthe	r comments on the harmonization of policies and programmes at the nation	al level.	
Actions	s at National and EU level take account of obligations under global & regiona	al MEA's.	
Box XI	LI.		
Please	elaborate below on the implementation of this strategy specifically focusing	on:	
a)	outcomes and impacts of actions taken;		
b)	contribution to the achievement of the goals of the Strategic Plan of the Co	nvention;	
c)	contribution to progress towards the 2010 target;		
d)	progress in implementing national biodiversity strategies and action plans;		
e)	contribution to the achievement of the Millennium Development Goals;		
f)	constraints encountered in implementation.		

## Article 6 - General measures for conservation and sustainable use

	<b>12.</b> Has your country put in place effective national strategies, plans and programmes to provide a national framework for implementing the three objectives of the Convention? (Goal 3.1 of the Strategic Plan)						
a)	No						
b) No, but relevant strategies, plans and programmes are under development							
c)	Yes, some strategies, plans and programmes are in place (please provide details below)	Х					
d)	Yes, comprehensive strategies, plans and programmes are in place (please provide details below)						
	comments on the strategies, plans and programmes for implementing th nvention.	e three objectives of					
	Our first National Biodiversity Plan was published in 2002 and an interim review on the implementation of the Plan was published in 2005.						
13. ? (decisio	Has your country set measurable targets within its national strategie	s and action plans?					
a)	No						
b)	No, measurable targets are still in early stages of development						
c)	No, but measurable targets are in advanced stages of development						
d)	Yes, relevant targets are in place (please provide details below)						
e)	Yes, reports on implementation of relevant targets available (please provide details below)	X					
Further	comments on targets set within national biodiversity strategies and action	plans.					
The int	terim review of the National Biodiversity Plan reported on progress of in s.	nplementation of the					
	as your country identified priority actions in its national biodiversity strate on VI/27 A)	egy and action plan?					
a)	No						
b)	No, but priority actions are being identified						
c)	Yes, priority actions identified (please provide details below)	X					
Further	comments on priority actions identified in the national biodiversity strategy	and action plan.					
	Priority is given to actions that are relevant to the conservation of habitats and species of European mportance.						

	as your country integrated the conservation g into relevant sectoral or cross-sectoral pla		
a)	No		
b)	Yes, in some sectors (please provide deta	ails below)	X
c)	Yes, in major sectors (please provide det	ails below)	
d)	Yes, in all sectors (please provide details	below)	
	r information on integration of the conserv g into relevant sectoral or cross-sectoral pla		odiversity and benefit-
The De	epartment of Agriculture and Food have esta	ablished biodiversity units for ag	riculture and forestry.
	re migratory species and their habitats add on plan (NBSAP)? (decision VI/20)	dressed by your country's nationa	al biodiversity strategy
a)	Yes		Х
b)	No		
I) If <b>YE</b>	ES, please briefly describe the extent to wh	nich it addresses	
(a)	Conservation, sustainable use and/or restoration of migratory species	Major management programme past 7 years for Atlantic sall ensure that all stocks reach the Major review ongoing in relation	mon. Objective is to ir Conservation limits.
		Introduction of SAC's for salm systems in Ireland.	on in all major river
(b)	Conservation, sustainable use and/or restoration of migratory species' habitats, including protected areas	Designation of SPA's under (79/409/eec) and SAC's under (92/43/EEC) for migratory spece.g. Greenland White-Fronted nosed dolphin and Wetlands.	the habitats Directive cies and their habitats
(c)	Minimizing or eliminating barriers or obstacles to migration		
(d)	Research and monitoring for migratory species	Extensive research and monitor international scale is ongoing	ing on a national and
(e)	Transboundary movement	Through International Council for the Seas (ICES) intensive transl of migratory species is carried or	ooundary monitoring
II) If	NO, please briefly indicate below		
(a)	The extent to which your country addresses migratory species at national level		
(b)	Cooperation with other Range States		

## **Biodiversity and Climate Change**

17. Has your country implemented projects aimed at mitigating and adapting to incorporate biodiversity conservation and sustainable use? (decision VII/15)	climate change that						
a) No							
b) No, but some projects or programs are under development	Х						
c) Yes, some projects have been implemented (please provide details below)	X						
Further comments on the projects aimed at mitigating and adapting to climate ch biodiversity conservation and sustainable use.	nange that incorporate						
The National Climate Change Strategy, published in 2000, provides the framework for Ireland to meet its commitments under the Kyoto Protocol. The strategy recognises the importance of a strengthened relationship between agriculture and forestry policy, in order to maximise the dividends from land use change. Among the criteria for the management of land use change are landscape, biodiversity, collution control and agriculture. Furthermore the Strategy recognises the importance of sinks in mitigating climate change.							
The Marine Institute recently commissioned an overview of climate change impacts and their possible implications for the marine environment, this document will be published shortly and should assist in identifying the areas where additional research is urgently required. The report will also emphasis the need to incorporate the possible effects of climate change into any future biological models. Fundamental to this whole process are the changes which climate change will bring to biodiversity and the development of predictive ecological models which will take account of various future temperature scenarios.							
18. Has your country facilitated coordination to ensure that climate change mitiprojects are in line with commitments made under the United Nations Frame Climate Change and the United Nations Convention to Combat Desertification? (dec	ework Convention on						
a) No	Х						
b) No, but relevant mechanisms are under development							
c) Yes, relevant mechanisms are in place (please provide details below)							
Further comments on the coordination to ensure that climate change mitigation are in line with commitments made under the UNFCCC and the UNCCD.	nd adaptation projects						
Box XLII.							
Please elaborate below on the implementation of this article and associated of focusing on:	decisions specifically						
a) outcomes and impacts of actions taken;							
b) contribution to the achievement of the goals of the Strategic Plan of the C	Convention;						
c) contribution to progress towards the 2010 target;							
d) progress in implementing national biodiversity strategies and action plans	s;						
e) contribution to the achievement of the Millennium Development Goals;							
f) constraints encountered in implementation.							

#### Article 7 - Identification and monitoring

biological diversity at the genetic, species, ecosystem level?						
a) No						
<ul> <li>b) Yes, selected/partial programmes at the genetic, species and/o ecosystem level only (please specify and provide details below)</li> </ul>	X					
<ul> <li>Yes, complete programmes at ecosystem level and selected/partial inventories at the genetic and/or species level (please specify an provide details below)</li> </ul>	I					
Further comments on ongoing programmes to identify components of biod species and ecosystem level.	iversity at the genetic,					
<u>Ecosystems</u>						

Surveys have been carried out on a number of habitat types of conservation importance including coastal habitats, bogs, woodlands, turloughs (seasonal lakes) etc.

#### Species

The National Parks and Wildlife Service have a number of surveys ongoing for a number of species including rare flora, certain mammals e.g. hare and other wetland birds, countryside breeding birds, waders, certain fish species (lampray, shad, pollan) and certain invertebrates (e.g. hover flies, whorled snails)

#### Genetic level

Genetic diversity within and between populations of Nationally rare flora (e.g. *Spiranthes romanzoffiana* & *Saxifraga hirculus*) is being investigated to determine viable population sizes.

20. ? On Article 7(b), which components of biological diversity identified in accordance with Annex I of the Convention, have ongoing, systematic monitoring programmes?

a) at ecosystem level (please provide percentage based on area covered)	X
<ul> <li>b) at species level (please provide number of species per taxonomic group and percentage of total known number of species in each group)</li> </ul>	X
c) at genetic level (please indicate number and focus of monitoring programmes)	

Further comments on ongoing monitoring programmes at the genetic, species and ecosystem level.

#### 20a Ecosystems

#### Raised Bogs

A project is currently being implemented by NPWS to monitor the condition of a representative number of raised bogs which were surveyed in 1994. Some restoration work has been initiated on these bogs. The sites selected for monitoring harbour the following habitats; active raised bog, degraded raised bog, and bog woodland.

#### Coastal Dune Systems and associated Salt Marshes

Monitoring methodology is currently being developed and piloted by NPWS to monitor the conservation status of a selection of dune habitats and associated salt marsh habitats.

#### Rivers & Inland Waters

Benthic Macro-invertebrate and Physico-chemical monitoring of rivers and inland waters is carried out by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).

#### 20b Species

- To complement ongoing roost monitoring surveys of the Lesser Horseshoe Bat (*Rhinolophus hipposideros*), a bat monitoring programme is currently being undertaken. The methodology is suitable for 4 bat species
- A national monitoring programme for the Otter (*Lutra lutra*) is currently being conducted to determine the conservation status of this species. Presence /absence data will be recorded together with notable pressures to the species.
- The focus of the bird monitoring programme has been on certain priority species and groups of
  migratory birds such as wintering waterbirds and breeding seabirds. A Countryside Bird Survey
  monitors the abundance and distribution of breeding bird populations, which will allow the
  assessment of the effects of temporal changes in the change of the environment on the more
  common species.
- A monitoring programme has been initiated by the National Parks and Wildlife Service for the Natterjack toad (*Bufo calamita*). This programme will record essential baseline information on population structure and investigate interactions with environmental parameters.
- The Central Fisheries Board carry out surveillance of salmon populations in selected rivers.
- A pilot monitoring programme for the freshwater mussel (*Margaritifera margaritifera*) has recently been initiated. This programme involves monitoring mussel numbers in permanent transects and life cohorts in randomly selected plots. Any changes in population structure will be assessed against a number of environmental parameters such as river structure and water quality.
- A study on the conservation ecology of *Saxifraga hirculus* has been initiated. This research will provide details on the population dynamics of the species and will also derive indicators for future monitoring.

l	21.	? Or	n Articl	le 7(c),	does you	r country	have	ongoing,	systematic	monitoring	programmes	on	any	of
I	the f	ollow	ing ke	y threa	its to biodi	versity?								

a)	No	
b)	Yes, invasive alien species (please provide details below)	
c)	Yes, climate change (please provide details below)	X
d)	Yes, pollution/eutrophication (please provide details below)	Х
e)	Yes, land use change/land degradation (please provide details below)	X
f)	Yes, overexploitation or unsustainable use (please provide details below)	

Further comments on monitoring programmes on key threats to biodiversity.

#### 22c Climate change

Ireland participates in the monarch programme with the UK in order to model and monitor effects of climate change.

Physico-chemical monitoring of rivers and inland waters is carried out by the Environmental Protection

Λ ~		<b>ICV</b>
$\Delta$	$\omega$ r	11.11

A Site Inspection Reporting (SIR) programme has been set up to report on impacts that may potentially affect the integrity of protected areas.

The impacts of grazing is being monitored by the National Parks & Wildlife Service (NPWS) in areas of upland and coastal ecosystems.

<b>22. ?</b> On A	rticle 7 (d),	does your	country hav	e a mecha	nism to m	naintain a	and orga	nize data (	derived
from invento	ries and mo	nitoring pro	grammes ar	nd coordina	te informa	ation colle	ection an	d manage	ment at
the national	level?								

a)	No	
b)	No, but some mechanisms or systems are being considered	
c)	Yes, some mechanisms or systems are being established	X
d)	Yes, some mechanisms or systems are in place (please provide details below)	
e)	Yes, a relatively complete system is in place (please provide details below)	

Further information on the coordination of data and information collection and management.

A Biological Records Centre is being established. The Centre will be an essential mechanism and resource for documentation, monitoring and research in the area of biodiversity.

## 23. Poes your country use indicators for national-level monitoring of biodiversity? (decision III/10)

a) No	
<ul> <li>b) No, but identification of potential indicators is under way (pleadescribe)</li> </ul>	x X
<ul> <li>Yes, some indicators identified and in use (please describe and, available, provide website address, where data are summarized a presented)</li> </ul>	
<ul> <li>d) Yes, a relatively complete set of indicators identified and in use (pleadescribe and, if available, provide website address, where data a summarized and presented</li> </ul>	I

#### Further comments on the indicators identified and in use.

A set of indicators are being developed by Teagasc (The Irish Agriculture and Food Development Authority) to monitor the effect of national agri-environmental measures.

Specific indicators are being derived by the National Parks and Wildlife Service to assess conservation status at a habitat or species level. These will also tie into the EU set of Headline Indicators where appropriate.

#### Box XLIII.

Please elaborate below on the implementation of this article and associated decisions specifically focusing on:

- a) outcomes and impacts of actions taken;
- b) contribution to the achievement of the goals of the Strategic Plan of the Convention;
- c) contribution to progress towards the 2010 target;
- d) progress in implementing national biodiversity strategies and action plans;
- e) contribution to the achievement of the Millennium Development Goals;
- f) constraints encountered in implementation.
- a & b) Identifying components of biodiversity allows progress with setting conservation priorities. Monitoring conservation status or the effects of conservation management will influence future management to ensure adequate conservation measures will be taken to prevent the loss of biodiversity
- c) The designation of protected areas and legal protection for threatened species affords protection to many of our important ecosystems and species.
- d) In 2005 Ireland undertook a review of the implementation of the National Biodiversity Plan which showed a good level of progress in its implementation.

Decisions on Taxonomy	
24. Plas your country developed a plan to implement the suggested actions a IV/1? (decision IV/1)	as annexed to decision
a) No	Х
b) No, but a plan is under development	
c) Yes, a plan is in place (please provide details below)	
d) Yes, reports on implementation available (please provide details below)	
Further information on a plan to implement the suggested actions as annexed to	decision IV/1.
<b>25.</b> Is your country investing on a long-term basis in the development of approfor your national taxonomic collections? (decision IV/1)	oropriate infrastructure
a) No	Х
b) Yes (please provide details below)	
Further information on investment on a long-term basis in the develop infrastructure for your national taxonomic collections.	oment of appropriate

_	
26.? Does your country provide training programmes in taxonomy and work to i taxonomic research? (decision IV/1)	increase its capacity of
a) No	
b) Yes (please provide details below)	X
Further information on training programmes in taxonomy and efforts to incitaxonomic research.	rease the capacity of
Basic training provided by some Universities.	
27. Has your country taken steps to ensure that institutions responsible f inventories and taxonomic activities are financially and administratively stable	
a) No	
b) No, but steps are being considered	
c) Yes, for some institutions	
d) Yes, for all major institutions	X
28.* 2 Is your country collaborating with the existing regional, subregional partnerships and institutions in carrying out the programme of work, including the control of	
taxonomic needs and identifying regional-level priorities? (decision VI/8)	
a) No	X
	X
a) No	
<ul> <li>a) No</li> <li>b) No, but collaborative programmes are under development</li> <li>c) Yes, some collaborative programmes are being implemented (please provide details about collaborative programmes, including results of</li> </ul>	
<ul> <li>a) No</li> <li>b) No, but collaborative programmes are under development</li> <li>c) Yes, some collaborative programmes are being implemented (please provide details about collaborative programmes, including results of regional needs assessments)</li> <li>d) Yes, comprehensive collaborative programmes are being implemented (please provide details about collaborative programmes, including</li> </ul>	
<ul> <li>a) No</li> <li>b) No, but collaborative programmes are under development</li> <li>c) Yes, some collaborative programmes are being implemented (please provide details about collaborative programmes, including results of regional needs assessments)</li> <li>d) Yes, comprehensive collaborative programmes are being implemented (please provide details about collaborative programmes, including results of regional needs assessment and priority identification)</li> <li>Further information on the collaboration your country is carrying out to implemented</li> </ul>	
<ul> <li>a) No</li> <li>b) No, but collaborative programmes are under development</li> <li>c) Yes, some collaborative programmes are being implemented (please provide details about collaborative programmes, including results of regional needs assessments)</li> <li>d) Yes, comprehensive collaborative programmes are being implemented (please provide details about collaborative programmes, including results of regional needs assessment and priority identification)</li> <li>Further information on the collaboration your country is carrying out to implemented</li> </ul>	
<ul> <li>a) No</li> <li>b) No, but collaborative programmes are under development</li> <li>c) Yes, some collaborative programmes are being implemented (please provide details about collaborative programmes, including results of regional needs assessments)</li> <li>d) Yes, comprehensive collaborative programmes are being implemented (please provide details about collaborative programmes, including results of regional needs assessment and priority identification)</li> <li>Further information on the collaboration your country is carrying out to implemented</li> </ul>	ent the programme of
<ul> <li>a) No</li> <li>b) No, but collaborative programmes are under development</li> <li>c) Yes, some collaborative programmes are being implemented (please provide details about collaborative programmes, including results of regional needs assessments)</li> <li>d) Yes, comprehensive collaborative programmes are being implemented (please provide details about collaborative programmes, including results of regional needs assessment and priority identification)</li> <li>Further information on the collaboration your country is carrying out to implement work for the GTI, including regional needs assessment and priority identification.</li> <li>29. * Has your country made an assessment of taxonomic needs and capacities and capacities and capacities are some collaboration and capacities are some collaboration.</li> </ul>	ent the programme of

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> The questions marked with \* in this section on Taxonomy are similar to some questions contained in the format for a report on the implementation of the programme of work on the Global Taxonomy Initiative. Those countries that have submitted such a report do not need to answer these questions unless they have updated information to provide.

	capacities identified)					
c)	Yes, thorough assessment made (please provide below a list of needs and capacities identified)					
Further	comments on national assessment of taxonomic needs and capacities.					
A questionnaire has been sent to all taxonomists as part of an assessment of taxonomic needs.						
	Is your country working on regional or global capacity building to su tion of, taxonomic information in collaboration with other Parties? (annex t					
a)	No	Х				
b)	Yes, relevant programmes are under development					
c)	Yes, some activities are being undertaken for this purpose (please provide details below)					
d)	Yes, many activities are being undertaken for this purpose (please provide details below)					
	comments on regional or global capacity-building to support access to mic information in collaboration with other Parties.	o, and generation of,				
	Has your country developed taxonomic support for the implementation and of the Convention as called upon in decision VI/8? (annex to decision VI/8)					
a)	No	Х				
b)	Yes, for forest biodiversity (please provide details below)					
c)	Yes, for marine and coastal biodiversity (please provide details below)					
d)	Yes, for dry and sub-humid lands (please provide details below)					
e)	Yes, for inland waters biodiversity (please provide details below)					
f)	Yes, for mountain biodiversity (please provide details below)					
g)	Yes, for protected areas (please provide details below)					
h)	Yes, for agricultural biodiversity (please provide details below)					
i)	Yes, for island biodiversity (please provide details below)					
	comments on the development of taxonomic support for the implementate under the Convention.	ion of the programmes				

	Has your country developed taxonomic support for the implementation of the Convention as called upon in decision VI/8?	he cross-cutting issues
a)	No	
b)	Yes, for access and benefit-sharing (please provide details below)	
c)	Yes, for Article 8(j) (please provide details below)	
d)	Yes, for the ecosystem approach (please provide details below)	
e)	Yes, for impact assessment, monitoring and indicators (please provide details below)	
f)	Yes, for invasive alien species (please provide details below)	Х
g)	Yes, for others (please provide details below)	
	comments on the development of taxonomic support for the implement issues under the Convention.	entation of the cross-
	iled catalogue of all known Alien Invasive Plants in Ireland has been pub c Gardens in 2002.	olished by the National
	Article 8 - In-situ conservation  [excluding paragraphs (a) to (e), (h) and (j)  On Article 8(i), has your country endeavored to provide the conditions no present uses and the conservation of biological diversity and so	eeded for compatibility
compo		V
a)		X
	No, but potential measures are being identified	
	Yes, some measures undertaken (please provide details below)	
	Yes, comprehensive measures undertaken (please provide details below)	
	comments on the measures taken to provide the conditions needed for t uses and the conservation of biological diversity and sustainable use of its	
	On Article 8(k), has your country developed or maintained the necess egulatory provisions for the protection of threatened species and population	
a)	No	
b)	No, but legislation is being developed	
	Yes, legislation or other measures are in place (please provide details below) $\label{eq:continuous}$	Х
Further popula	information on the legislation and/or regulations for the protection of the tions.	nreatened species and
issue d	are provisions of the Wildlife Acts 1976 and 2000, that relate or are of protection of threatened species. A number of EU Directives and threatened species.	

1		
	On Article 8(I), does your country regulate or manage processes and country and article 7 as having significant adverse effects on biological diversit	
a) I	No	
b) I	No, but relevant processes and categories of activities being identified	
c) '	Yes, to a limited extent (please provide details below)	Х
d) '	Yes, to a significant extent (please provide details below)	
	comments on the regulation or management of the processes and cased by Article 7 as having significant adverse effects on biodiversity.	ategories of activities
environ	ral Environment Protection Scheme provides incentives to farmers to ma imentally sensitive fashion. Farmers must maintain their land in good envi o draw down EU farm payments.	
Box XL	IV.	
Please focusir	elaborate below on the implementation of this article and associated ong on:	decisions specifically
a)	outcomes and impacts of actions taken;	
b)	contribution to the achievement of the goals of the Strategic Plan of the C	Convention;
c)	contribution to progress towards the 2010 target;	
d)	progress in implementing national biodiversity strategies and action plans	s;
e)	contribution to the achievement of the Millennium Development Goals;	
f)	constraints encountered in implementation	
	Programme of Work on Protected Areas (Article 8 (a)	to (e))
	s your country established suitable time bound and measurable national and indicators? (decision VII/28)	-level protected areas
a)	No (please specify reasons)	
b)	No, but relevant work is under way	
c)	Yes, some targets and indicators established (please provide details below)	

Further comments on targets and indicators for protected areas.

details below)

A number of targets have been set by the Department of the Environment, Heritage and Local Government in relation to the natural heritage in the Department's Statement of Strategy.

d) Yes, comprehensive targets and indicators established (please provide

Key Performance Indicators relating to these targets are as follows:

• Complete designation of Natura 2000 sites (of European importance) and progress designation of

Χ

sites of national importance.

- Monitor threats to conservation status of designated sites
- Publish species and habitats surveys and report on monitoring of conservation status of habitats and species
- Implement species action plans and report on invasive species, jointly with Northern Ireland authorities
- Promote wider co-operation on North-South biodiversity strategies and plans
- Publish Guidelines and Codes of Best Practice for natural heritage conservation
- Conserve and develop National Parks and Nature Reserves.
- Adopt Management Plans for all National Parks and Natura 2000 sites

Significant progress has been made on all these fronts. Significant resources have been expended in particular in completion of the Natura 2000 network of sites. The network represents areas that have been identified as being of the highest ecological value for natural habitats and species of rare, endangered or vulnerable plants and animals. Ireland has substantially met commitments under Natura 2000 and is seeking to finalise minor outstanding commitments by early 2006.

37	. Has	your	country	taken	action	to es	tablish	or o	expand	prot	ected	areas	in	any	large	or	relatively
unf	ragm	ented	l natural	area o	r areas	unde	r high	threa	at, inclu	ding	secur	ing thr	eate	ened	spec	ies?	(decision
VII.	/28)																

a) No	
b) No, but relevant programmes are under development	
c) Yes, limited actions taken (please provide details below)	
d) Yes, significant actions taken (please provide details below)	Х

Further comments on actions taken to establish or expand protected areas.

#### Designated Sites

In the west of Ireland the vast bulk of natural and semi-natural habitats are contained within extensive designated Natura 2000 sites.

It is current policy to abide by the criteria and standards for National Parks laid down by the IUCN. The management objectives for National Parks are detailed below:-

- To protect the natural heritage allowing for, and if necessary, managing for the continuation and restoration of natural processes
- To protect and where appropriate to restore and develop other heritage and aesthetic qualities
- To provide for public access and to encourage public appreciation and enjoyment of the parks under conditions compatible with the above objectives
- To develop a harmonious relationship between National Parks and the surrounding communities, taking into account the social and economic needs of local communities

At present there are six National Parks as follows:

Killarney National Park, Co. Kerry (10,289 ha)

Glenveagh National Park, Co. Donegal (16,958 ha)

Connemara National Park, Co. Galway (2,957 ha)

Wicklow Mountain National Park, Co. Wicklow (15,925 ha)

The Burren National Park, Co. Clare (1,673 ha)

Ballycroy National Park, Co. Mayo (11,779 ha)

	is your country taken any action to address the under representation of matems in the existing national or regional systems of protected areas? (decisi					
a)	No					
b)	Not applicable					
c)	No, but relevant actions are being considered					
d)	Yes, limited actions taken (please provide details below)					
e)	Yes, significant actions taken (please provide details below) X					
	r comments on actions taken to address the under representation of martems in the existing national or regional systems of protected areas.	rine and inland water				
sites. evalua habitat Ireland	timately 428,000 hectares of marine areas have been proposed for design. These proposals are being evaluated by the European Commission. It is artion will lead to a requirement for more marine sites. These are likely its, e.g. sandbanks, rather than intertidal coastal habitats. It is proposed that will proposed additional marine areas as Special Areas of Conservation, nea corral off the west coast.	nticipated that the EU to relate to offshore t in the medium term,				
protect	is your country identified and implemented practical steps for improvir ted areas into broader land and seascapes, including policy, planning a on VII/28)					
a)	No					
b)	No, but some programmes are under development					
c)	Yes, some steps identified and implemented (please provide details below)	Х				
d)	Yes, many steps identified and implemented (please provide details below)					
	r comments on practical steps for improving integration of protected areas pes, including policy, planning and other measures.	into broader land and				
Protected areas are required under statute to be incorporated into Development Plans of local authorities. Local authorities are the planning authorities in Ireland and are required to take account of the ecological sensitivity of sites when considering planning applications.  In addition, the provisions of the Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) will ensure the formal, systematic evaluation of the likely significant environmental effects of implementing a plan or programme before a decision is made to adopt the plan or programme. The process should build on experience gained from implementation of the EU Environmental Impact Assessment Directive and provide a mechanism for improving the integration of protected areas into broader planning policy.						

	your country applying environmental impact assessment guidelines to pricing effects on protected areas? (decision VII/28)	projects or plans for
a)	No	
b)	No, but relevant EIA guidelines are under development	
c)	Yes, EIA guidelines are applied to some projects or plans (please provide details below)	
d)	Yes, EIA guidelines are applied to all relevant projects or plans (please provide details below)	X

Further comments on application of environmental impact assessment guidelines to projects or plans for evaluating effects on protected areas.

# THE FOLLOWING ARE CRITERIA REQUIRED TO BE USED UNDER IRISH STATUTE FOR DETERMINING WHETHER A DEVELOPMENT WOULD OR WOULD NOT BE LIKELY TO HAVE SIGNIFICANT EFFECTS ON THE ENVIRONMENT

#### 1. Characteristics of proposed development

The characteristics of proposed development, in particular:

- the size of the proposed development,
- the cumulation with other proposed development,
- the use of natural resources,
- the production of waste,
- pollution and nuisances,
- the risk of accidents, having regard to substances or technologies used.

#### 2. Location of proposed development

The environmental sensitivity of geographical areas likely to be affected by proposed development, having regard in particular to:

- the existing land use,
- the relative abundance, quality and regenerative capacity of natural resources in the area,
- the absorption capacity of the natural environment, paying particular attention to the following areas:
- (a) wetlands,
- (b) coastal zones,
- (c) mountain and forest areas,
- (d) nature reserves and parks,

# (e) areas classified or protected under legislation, including special protection ar eas designated pursuant to Directives 79/409/EEC and 92/43/EEC,

- (f) areas in which the environmental quality standards laid down in legislation of the EU have already been exceeded,
- (g) densely populated areas,
- (h) landscapes of historical, cultural or archaeological significance.

#### 3. Characteristics of potential impacts

The potential significant effects of proposed development in relation to criteria set out under paragraphs 1 and 2 above, and having regard in particular to:

- the extent of the impact (geographical area and size of the affected population),
- the transfrontier nature of the impact,
- the magnitude and complexity of the impact,
- the probability of the impact,
- the duration, frequency and reversibility of the impact

<b>41.</b> Has your country identified legislative and institutional gaps and barriers testablishment and management of protected areas? (decision VII/28)	that impede effective					
a) No						
b) No, but relevant work is under way						
c) Yes, some gaps and barriers identified (please provide details below)	X					
d) Yes, many gaps and barriers identified (please provide details below)						
Further comments on identification of legislative and institutional gaps and effective establishment and management of protected areas.	barriers that impede					
One of the critical methods to ensure the conservation of nature, in line with the both European and national legislation, is with the full co-operation and participat It is acknowledged that farmers, in particular play and will continue to play conserving nature. One of the gaps to date in Ireland has been the completi communication strategy to ensure that landowners are fully involved with the naprocess.	ion of landowners. a crucial role in on of an effective					
Significant progress has been made to date in developing management plans for Management Plans provides a framework for the conservation and enhancement plans in these sites. The plan covers the policies and practical actions in relation management as well as other functions such as consultation with interested partie this plan is 5 years	ent of the natural on to all aspects of					
In total, 295 draft conservation management plans for Natura 2000 sites have Progress has also been made in designating plans for National Parks. Mana Wicklow Mountains National Park and Killarney National Park were published in completed a phase of public consultation. Text for management plans for Glenve Ballycroy National Park, Co.Mayo and the Burren National Park are currently bein	gement Plans for 2005. Both plans agh National Park,					
<b>42.</b> Has your country undertaken national protected-area capacity needs assessr capacity building programmes? (decision VII/28)	nents and established					
a) No	Х					
b) No, but assessments are under way						
c) Yes, a basic assessment undertaken and some programmes established (please provide details below)						
d) Yes, a thorough assessment undertaken and comprehensive programmes established (please provide details below)						
Further comments on protected-area capacity needs assessment and establishment of capacity building programmes.						

_			
		your country implementing country-level sustainable financing plans t s of protected areas? (decision VII/28)	hat support national
Г	a)	No	
	b)	No, but relevant plan is under development	X
	c)	Yes, relevant plan is in place (please provide details below)	
	d)	Yes, relevant plan is being implemented (please provide details below)	
		comments on implementation of country-level sustainable financing plans s of protected areas.	that support national
	A number of national initiatives have been developed to support national systems of protected areas. Two of the main schemes are detailed below the REPS Scheme and the Farm Plan Scheme.		
	Rur	al Environmental Protection Scheme (REPS)	
Rural Environment Protection Scheme (REPS), is a scheme designed to reward farmers for carrying our their farming activities in an environmentally friendly manner and to bring about environmental improvement on existing farms.			
	The	objectives of the Scheme are to:	
<ul> <li>establish farming practices and production methods which reflect the increasing concern for conservation, landscape protection and wider environmental problems;</li> <li>protect wildlife habitats and endangered species of flora and fauna;</li> <li>produce quality food in an extensive and environmentally friendly manner.</li> </ul>		g concern for	
	Lands within protected areas are defined as 'Target Areas' under this scheme. Farmers in the target areas who participate in the REPS scheme receive higher payments than those farming elsewhere. Farmers with small areas of land in a protected area can get REPS payments for that part of their farm. In either case, the farmer is subject to certain conditions regarding farming and land use practices, set out in the REPS plan for the farm.		
Fa	arm F	Plan Scheme for Designated Areas and Commonages	
ar th	nd Loo e Dej	a farmer chooses not to participate in REPS, and the Department of the Ecal Government seek to change the farm operation in some way or to encopartment can prepare a farm plan. This will normally be confined just to I address the conservation requirements.	l a particular activity,
		your country implementing appropriate methods, standards, criteria and indectiveness of protected areas management and governance? (decision VII/2	
	a)	No	
	b)	No, but relevant methods, standards, criteria and indicators are under development	
	c)	Yes, some national methods, standards, criteria and indicators developed and in use (please provide details below)	
	d)	Yes, some national methods, standards, criteria and indicators developed and in use and some international methods, standards, criteria and indicators in use (please provide details below)	

Further comments on methods, standards, criteria and indicators for evaluating the effectiveness of protected areas management and governance.

The integrity of designated sites is monitored on a 3 year cycle. All impacts and activities, their influence and intensity are recorded. Activity codes are derived from the Natura 2000 forms. The area affected by specific activities is estimated and trends will be derived.

Scientific monitoring programmes are being designed and implemented for species and habitats listed in the annexes of the Habitats Directive. These programmes monitor the conservation status of a representative sample of the national resource of the protected species or habitat. In this way the effectiveness of protected areas can be evaluated. Pressure, state and response indicators developed are specific to the species or habitat, e.g. trends in population size or area negatively affected by development.

#### Box XLV.

Please elaborate below on the implementation of this article and associated decisions specifically focusing on:

- a) outcomes and impacts of actions taken;
- b) contribution to the achievement of the goals of the Strategic Plan of the Convention;
- c) contribution to progress towards the 2010 target;
- d) progress in implementing national biodiversity strategies and action plans;
- e) contribution to the achievement of the Millennium Development Goals;
- f) constraints encountered in implementation.

### Article 8(h) - Alien species

<b>45.</b> Has your country identified alien species introduced into its territory and established a system for tracking the introduction of alien species?			
	a)	No	
	b)	Yes, some alien species identified but a tracking system not yet established	Х
	c)	Yes, some alien species identified and tracking system in place	
	d)	Yes, alien species of major concern identified and tracking system in place	
<b>46.</b> Phas your country assessed the risks posed to ecosystems, habitats or species by the introduction of these alien species?			
	a)	No	
	b)	Yes, but only for some alien species of concern (please provide details below)	
	c)	Yes, for most alien species (please provide details below)	Х
Further information on the assessment of the risks posed to ecosystems, habitats or species by the introduction of these alien species.			
A comprehensive review of alien invasive species in the island of Ireland has been developed and a			

ctratady ic haind	MANAINNAM:	to implement	the recommendations.
strateuv is beiliu	acvelopea	to illibicilicit	the reconnicidations.

47. Plas your country undertaken measures to prevent the introduction of, control or eradicate, those alien species which threaten ecosystems, habitats or species?				
a) No				
b) No, but potential measures are under consideration				
c) Yes, some measures are in place (please provide details below)	Х			
d) Yes, comprehensive measures are in place (please provide details below)				
Further information on the measures to prevent the introduction of, control or species that threaten ecosystems, habitats or species.	eradicate those alien			
Active control programmes for Rhododendron ponticum and Heracleum mantegaz	zzianum are in place.			
Awareness campaigns are underway for Zebra Mussel and Lagarosiphan major.				
48. In dealing with the issue of invasive species, has your country developed mechanisms for international cooperation, including the exchange of best practice				
a) No				
b) Yes, bilateral cooperation	X			
c) Yes, regional and/or subregional cooperation				
d) Yes, multilateral cooperation				
49. ? Is your country using the ecosystem approach and precautionary approaches as appropriate in its work on alien invasive species? (decision V/8)	and bio-geographical			
a) No				
b) Yes (please provide details below)	X			
Further comments on the use of the ecosystem approach and precautionary approaches in work on alien invasive species.	and bio-geographical			
The above mentioned study on invasive alien species takes account of precautionary approaches.	the eco-system and			
<b>50.</b> Has your country identified national needs and priorities for the implementation of the Guiding Principles? (decision VI/23)				
a) No				
b) No, but needs and priorities are being identified	X			
c) Yes, national needs and priorities have been identified (please provide below a list of needs and priorities identified)				
Further comments on the identification of national needs and priorities for the implementation of Guiding Principles.				

<b>51.</b> Has your country created mechanisms to coordinate national programmes for applying the Guiding Principles? (decision VI/23)			
a)	No		
b)	No, but mechanisms are under development	X	
c)	Yes, mechanisms are in place (please provide details below)		
	comments on the mechanisms created to coordinate national programme principles.	s for implementing the	
	s your country reviewed relevant policies, legislation and institutions in t es, and adjusted or developed policies, legislation and institutions? (decision and institutions)		
a)	No		
b)	No, but review under way	X	
c)	Yes, review completed and adjustment proposed (please provide details below)		
d)	Yes, adjustment and development ongoing		
e)	Yes, some adjustments and development completed (please provide details below)		
	information on the review, adjustment or development of policies, legislathe Guiding Principles.	tion and institutions in	
	your country enhancing cooperation between various sectors in order to etection, eradication and/or control of invasive alien species? (decision VI/		
a)	No		
	No, but potential coordination mechanisms are under consideration	X	
c)	Yes, mechanisms are in place (please provide details below)		
Further	comments on cooperation between various sectors.		
<b>54.</b> Is your country collaborating with trading partners and neighboring countries to address threats of invasive alien species to biodiversity in ecosystems that cross international boundaries? (decision VI/23)			
	No	,	
b)	Yes, relevant collaborative programmes are under development	X	
c)	Yes, relevant programmes are in place (please specify below the measures taken for this purpose)		
Further	comments on collaboration with trading partners and neighboring countries	es.	
Work a	s mentioned above is being carried out jointly with Northern Ireland and ir	n liaison with the wider	

specie	your country developing capacity to use risk assessment to address three to biodiversity and incorporate such methodologies in environmental impategic environmental assessment (SEA)? (decision VI/23)	
a)	No	
b)	No, but programmes for this purpose are under development	
c)	Yes, some activities for developing capacity in this field are being undertaken (please provide details below)	Х
d)	Yes, comprehensive activities are being undertaken (please provide details below)	
Furthe	r information on capacity development to address threats of invasive alien	species.
Risk as	ssessments will be used on IAS for the Water Framework Directive, prepara	ition underway .
	as your country developed financial measures and other policies and tools to the threats of invasive species? (decision VI/23)	o promote activities to
a)	No	Х
b)	No, but relevant measures and policies are under development	
c)	Yes, some measures, policies and tools are in place (please provide details below)	
d)	Yes, comprehensive measures and tools are in place (please provide details below)	
	r comments on the development of financial measures and other polic tion of activities to reduce the threats of invasive species.	ies and tools for the
Box XI	LVI.	
Please focusin	elaborate below on the implementation of this article and associated ag on:	decisions specifically
a)	outcomes and impacts of actions taken;	
b)	contribution to the achievement of the goals of the Strategic Plan of the Co	onvention;
c)	contribution to progress towards the 2010 target;	
d)	progress in implementing national biodiversity strategies and action plans	;
e)	contribution to the achievement of the Millennium Development Goals;	
f)	constraints encountered in implementation.	

## Article 8(j) - Traditional knowledge and related provisions

## **GURTS**

<b>57.</b> Has your country created and developed capacity-building programmes to smallholder farmers, indigenous and local communities, and other relevant stake participate in decision-making processes related to genetic use restriction technological communities.	holders to effectively	
a) No	Х	
b) No, but some programmes are under development		
c) Yes, some programmes are in place (please provide details below)		
d) Yes, comprehensive programmes are in place (please provide details below)		
Further comments on capacity-building programmes to involve and enable indigenous and local communities and other relevant stakeholders to effectively packing processes related to GURTs.		
Status and Trends		
<b>58.</b> Has your country supported indigenous and local communities in undertaking field studies to determine the status, trends and threats related to the knowledge, innovations and practices of indigenous and local communities? (decision VII/16)		
a) No	Х	
b) No, but support to relevant studies is being considered		
c) Yes (please provide information on the studies undertaken)		
Further information on the studies undertaken to determine the status, trends a the knowledge, innovations and practices of indigenous and local communities identified.		
Akwé:Kon Guidelines		
<b>59.</b> Has your country initiated a legal and institutional review of matters environmental and social impact assessment, with a view to incorporating the Akw national legislation, policies, and procedures?		
a) No	Х	
b) No, but review is under way		
c) Yes, a review undertaken (please provide details on the review)		
Further information on the review.		
-		

	s your country used the Akwé:Kon Guidelines in any project proposed to nd/or land and waters traditionally occupied by indigenous and local co		
a)	No	Х	
b)	No, but a review of the Akwé: Kon guidelines is under way		
c)	Yes, to some extent (please provide details below)		
d)	Yes, to a significant extent (please provide details below)		
Further	information on the projects where the Akwé: Kon Guidelines are applied.		
	Capacity Building and Participation of Indigenous and Local (	Communities	
<b>61.</b> Has your country undertaken any measures to enhance and strengthen the capacity of indigenous and local communities to be effectively involved in decision-making related to the use of their traditional knowledge, innovations and practices relevant to the conservation and sustainable use of biodiversity? (decision V/16)			
a)	No		
b)	No, but some programmes being developed		
c)	Yes, some measures taken (please provide details below)	Х	
d)	Yes, comprehensive measures taken (please provide details below)		
Further commu	information on the measures to enhance and strengthen the capacity of nities.	indigenous and local	
Ireland supports capacity building for the promotion of community based biodiversity protection and conservation in fragile catchment and river basin ecosystems in East Africa through best practices in land management			
<b>62.</b> Has your country developed appropriate mechanisms, guidelines, legislation or other initiatives to foster and promote the effective participation of indigenous and local communities in decision making, policy planning and development and implementation of the conservation and sustainable use of biodiversity at international, regional, subregional, national and local levels? (decision V/16)			
a)	No	Х	
b)	No, but relevant mechanisms, guidelines and legislation are under development		
c)	Yes, some mechanisms, guidelines and legislation are in place (please provide details below)		
Further	information on the mechanisms, guidelines and legislation developed.		

<b>63.</b> Has your country developed mechanisms for promoting the full and effective participation of indigenous and local communities with specific provisions for the full, active and effective participation of women in all elements of the programme of work? (decision V/16, annex)					
a) No X					
b) No, but relevant mechanisms are being developed					
c) Yes, mechanisms are in place (please provide details below)					
Further comments on the mechanisms for promoting the full and effective parti indigenous and local communities in all elements of the programme of work.	cipation of women of				
Support to implementation					
<b>64.</b> Has your country established national, subregional and/or regional indigenous biodiversity advisory committees?	and local community				
a) No	Х				
b) No, but relevant work is under way					
c) Yes					
<u></u>	,				
<b>65.</b> Has your country assisted indigenous and local community organizations to hold regional meetings to discuss the outcomes of the decisions of the Conference of the Parties and to prepare for meetings under the Convention?					
a) No					
b) Yes (please provide details about the outcome of meetings)	X				
Further information on the outcome of regional meetings.					
Ireland provided €50,000 to the Ad-hoc Open-ended Working Group on ABS and 8J held in Granada in 2006.					
<b>66.</b> Has your country supported, financially and otherwise, indigenous and local communities in formulating their own community development and biodiversity conservation plans that will enable such communities to adopt a culturally appropriate strategic, integrated and phased approach to their development needs in line with community goals and objectives?					
a) No	Х				
b) Yes, to some extent (please provide details below)					
c) Yes, to a significant extent (please provide details below)					
Further information on the support provided.					

#### Box XLVII.

Pleas focus		laborate below on on:	the	implementation	of	this	article	and	associated	decisions	specifically
	a)	outcomes and impa	cts	of actions taken;							
	b)	contribution to the a	achie	evement of the g	oal	s of t	he Stra	tegic	Plan of the	Conventio	า;

- d) progress in implementing national biodiversity strategies and action plans;
- e) contribution to the achievement of the Millennium Development Goals;
- f) constraints encountered in implementation.

contribution to progress towards the 2010 target;

### Article 9 - Ex-situ conservation

67. On Article 9(a) and (b), has your country adopted measures for the ex-situ conservation of components of biological diversity native to your country and originating outside your country?

a) No	
b) No, but potential measures are under review	
c) Yes, some measures are in place (please provide details below)	X
d) Yes, comprehensive measures are in place (please provide details below)	

Further information on the measures adopted for the *ex-situ* conservation of components of biodiversity native to your country and originating outside your country.

Seed collections of genetically representative samples of selected threatened native vascular plants and Irish crop varieties are stored in the Irish Threatened Plant Genebank, housed at Trinity College, Dublin. Other crop varieties are stored as living and seed genebanks by the Irish Seed Savers Association. Selected native forage species, including some grasses and clovers, are stored in genebanks at Teagasc Oak Park Research Centre, and University College Dublin's Department of Agriculture and Food Science Ex situ living collections of vascular plants, including numerous threatened taxa, are maintained at Trinity College Botanic Garden, and at the National Botanic Gardens, Glasnevin. Both of these institutions are currently drawing up a set of targets for PlantNetwork (the UK and Ireland network of plant collections) to help implement Target 8 of the *Global Strategy for Plant Conservation* (ex situ conservation & recovery).

The Irish Threatened Plant Species Conservation Programme has been developed as a cooperative venture between the National Botanic Gardens, Trinity Botanic Gardens and the Wildlife Service. Irish threatened plants will be grown ex situ in order to develop cultivation and propagation protocols for all threatened plant species in Ireland.

Dublin Zoo and Fota Island Zoo participate in a number of programmes of ex-situ conservation in relation to endangered species.

<b>68.</b> On Article 9(c), has your country adopted measures for the reintroduction into their natural habitats under appropriate conditions?	of threatened species
a) No	
b) No, but potential measures are under review	
c) Yes, some measures are in place (please provide details below)	Х
d) Yes, comprehensive measures are in place (please provide details below)	
Further comments on the measures for the reintroduction of threatened spechabitats under appropriate conditions.	ies into their natural
Selected threatened vascular plants have been reintroduced or translocated by Garden and by BEC Consultants Ltd:	Trinity College Botanic
Otanthus maritimus (translocation & reintroduction) – Cotton Weed	
Gymnocarpium robertianum (translocation) – Limestone Fern	
Trifolium subterraneum (reintroduction) – Subterraneum Clover	
Inula salicina (reintroduction) – Irish Fleabane	
Hordeum secalinum (translocation) – Meadow Barley	
Schoenoplectus triqueter (translocation) – Triangular Club-Rush	
The Irish Threatened Plant Species Conservation Programme intends to undertak management programmes for all Irish Priority Species.	e species recovery or
The natterjack toad was reintroduced to one historical site in Kerry, in south-wes 1990s. This site now supports a self-sustaining population of the toad. There are breeding habitat for the toad at this site. Strategic pond creation has been unatural range of the toad in Kerry. This is to facilitate genetic exchange between and to ensure the long-term survival of the species at the edge of its European reintroduce the Golden Eagle to Glenveagh National Park commenced in 2000. very successful with 40 birds out of the 43 released surviving to date.	e plans to expand the indertaken within the n isolated populations n range. A project to
<b>69.</b> On Article 9(d), has your country taken measures to regulate and mai biological resources from natural habitats for <i>ex-situ</i> conservation purposes seecosystems and <i>in-situ</i> populations of species?	_
a) No	
b) No, but potential measures are under review	
c) Yes, some measures are in place (please provide details below)	X
d) Yes, comprehensive measures are in place (please provide details below)	
Further information on the measures to regulate and manage the collection of bio natural habitats for <i>ex-situ</i> conservation purposes so as not to threaten ec populations of species.	
Licensing is undertaken by the National Parks & Wildlife Service for the taking Protected species and Protected habitats.	g or interferenæ with

### Box XLVIII.

Please elaborate below on the implementation of this article and associated focusing on:	decisions specifically						
a) outcomes and impacts of actions taken;							
b) contribution to the achievement of the goals of the Strategic Plan of the Convention;							
c) contribution to progress towards the 2010 target;							
d) progress in implementing national biodiversity strategies and action pla	ns;						
e) contribution to the achievement of the Millennium Development Goals;							
f) constraints encountered in implementation.							
Article 10 - Sustainable use of components of biolog	ical diversity						
<b>70.</b> On Article 10(a), has your country integrated consideration of the conseuse of biological resources into national decision-making?	rvation and sustainable						
a) No							
b) No, but steps are being taken							
c) Yes, in some relevant sectors (please provide details below) X							
d) Yes, in most relevant sectors (please provide details below)							
Further information on integrating consideration of conservation and sustain resources into national decision-making.	nable use of biological						
National Wildlife legislation regulates the exploitation on hunting of huntable spe	cies.						
Exploitation of Salmon in freshwaters is regulated by National Fisheries legislatio	n.						
Exploitation of Marine fisheries is regulated at EU level.							
<b>71.</b> On Article 10(b), has your country adopted measures relating to the use that avoid or minimize adverse impacts on biological diversity?	e of biological resources						
a) No							
b) No, but potential measures are under review							
c) Yes, some measures are in place (please provide details below)	X						
d) Yes, comprehensive measures are in place (please provide details below)							
Further information on the measures adopted relating to the use of biological r minimize adverse impacts on biological diversity.	resources that avoid or						
See answer to Q70							

<b>72.</b> On Article 10(c), has your country put in place measures that protect and use of biological resources that is compatible with conservation or sustainable use	
a) No	X
b) No, but potential measures are under review	
c) Yes, some measures are in place (please provide details below)	
d) Yes, comprehensive measures are in place (please provide details below)	
Further information on the measures that protect and encourage customary use of that is compatible with conservation or sustainable use requirements.	of biological resources
This provision is of less relevance in an Irish context.	
73. On Article 10(d), has your country put in place measures that help local polyimplement remedial action in degraded areas where biological diversity has been r	
a) No	
b) No, but potential measures are under review	
c) Yes, some measures are in place (please provide details below)	Х
d) Yes, comprehensive measures are in place (please provide details below)	
Further information on the measures that help local populations develop and imple in degraded areas where biodiversity has been reduced.	ement reme dial action
Certain Agri-environmental incentives are directed at helping local communities t common grazing land.	to restore overgrazed
74. Plas your country identified indicators and incentive measures for sec conservation and sustainable use of biodiversity? (decision V/24)	tors relevant to the
a) No	
b) No, but assessment of potential indicators and incentive measures is under way	
c) Yes, indicators and incentive measures identified (please describe below)	X
Further comments on the identification of indicators and incentive measures for so conservation and sustainable use of biodiversity.	ectors relevant to the
A package of incentive measures is directed at the farming sector.	

75. Plas your country implemented sustainable use practices, programmes sustainable use of biological diversity, especially in pursuit of poverty alleviation?	
a) No	
b) No, but potential practices, programmes and policies are under review	
c) Yes, some policies and programmes are in place (please provide details below)	Х
d) Yes, comprehensive policies and programmes are in place (please provide details below)	
Further information on sustainable use programmes and policies.	
Sustainable Development is a guiding principle for Ireland's oversea's aid pro Cooperation Ireland. Through its environment policy, the development cooperatio to strengthen Ireland's support to biodiversity conservation to reduce poverty.	
The programme intends to build capacities in partner countries to ensure the biodiversity related issues into Poverty Reduction Strategy Papers (PRSPs) and Sustainable Development (NSSD).	
Development Cooperation Ireland is also working to raise the awareness of its smainstream environmental concerns into all policies and programmes.	staff to and capacity to
<b>76.</b> Has your country developed or explored mechanisms to involve the privation the sustainable use of biodiversity? (decision V/24)	ate sector in initiatives
a) No	X
b) No, but mechanisms are under development	
c) Yes, mechanisms are in place (please describe below)	
Further comments on the development of mechanisms to involve the private sec sustainable use of biodiversity.	tor in initiatives on the
1	
77. Has your country initiated a process to apply the Addis Ababa Principles Sustainable Use of Biodiversity? (decision VII/12)	and Guidelines for the
a) No	Х
b) No, but the principles and guidelines are under review	
c) Yes, a process is being planned	
d) Yes, a process has been initiated (please provide detailed information)	
Further information on the process to apply the Addis Ababa Principles as Sustainable Use of Biodiversity.	nd Guidelines for the

financia	as your country taken any initiative or action to develop and transfer ted al resources to assist in the application of the Addis Ababa Principles a able Use of Biodiversity? (decision VII/12)	
a)	No	X
b)	No, but relevant programmes are under development	
c)	Yes, some technologies developed and transferred and limited financial resources provided (please provide details below)	
d)	Yes, many technologies developed and transferred and significant financial resources provided (please provide details below)	
	comments on the development and transfer of technologies and provisiost in the application of the Addis Ababa Principles and Guidelines for the rsity.	
	Biodiversity and Tourism	
	Has your country established mechanisms to assess, monitor and monopolity?	neasure the impact of
a)	No	
b)	No, but mechanisms are under development	X
c)	Yes, mechanisms are in place (please specify below)	
d)	Yes, existing mechanisms are under review	
	comments on the establishment of mechanisms to assess, monitor and a on biodiversity.	measure the impact of
underta develor raise st an env	2005, Failte Ireland (The National Tourism Body) established an Environmake research in association with partner organizations on a range of end a clearer understanding of the impact of tourism on the environment. The andards in environmental practice across a range of tourism providers. The ironmental awareness and promotion programme which will emphasismental conservation to the future of Irish tourism	vironmental issues to e Unit will also work to ne Unit will co-ordinate
to incre	Has your country provided educational and training programmes to the training awareness of the impacts of tourism on biodiversity and upgrade ocal level to minimize the impacts? (decision V/25)	
	a) No	
	b) No, but programmes are under development	X
	C) Yes, programmes are in place (please describe below)	
Funth a	comments on advantional and training are are already to the second	 
	comments on educational and training programmes provided to tourism of tional. Tourism, Development, Authority, (Failte, Ireland), also, does, not	•
biodive	ational Tourism Development Authority (Failte Ireland) also does not rsity and tourism but have a range of training programmes for the industramental protection.	

With Failte Ireland the Marine Institute has established a range of training programmes for Marine and Countryside guides.

The National Parks and Wildlife Service are implementing an environment awarness programme on a pilot basis, called 'Leave no Trace'. This programme, originally developed in the United States, aims to encourage visitors to take personal responsibility for their impact on the natural environment.

<b>81</b> . Does	you	r country	, provi	ide indigenou	s a	nd local	communities	with	capacity-bui	Iding and	financial
resources	to	support	their	participation	in	tourism	policy-makin	g, d	evelopment	planning,	product
deve lopme	ent a	and mana	igeme	nt? (decision	VII	/14)					

a) No	
b) No, but relevant programmes are being considered	
c) Yes, some programmes are in place (please provide details below)	X
<ul> <li>d) Yes, comprehensive programmes are in place (please provide details below)</li> </ul>	

Further comments in the capacity-building and financial resources provided to indigenous and local communities to support their participation in tourism policy-making, development planning, product development and management.

Individuals and businesses in local communities are supported in all aspects of tourism development through the measures of the EU-supported Leader Programmes. Local tourism enterprises participate in and are assisted by the network of Exchequer-supported Regional Tourism Authorities.

**82.** Has your country integrated the Guidelines on Biodiversity and Tourism Development in the development or review of national strategies and plans for tourism development, national biodiversity strategies and actions plans, and other related sectoral strategies? (decision VII/14)

a)	No, but the guidelines are under review	
b)	No, but a plan is under consideration to integrate some principles of the guidelines into relevant strategies	
c)	Yes, a few principles of the guidelines are integrated into some sectoral plans and NBSAPs (please specify which principle and sector)	Х
d)	Yes, many principles of the guidelines are integrated into some sectoral plans and NBSAPs (please specify which principle and sector)	

Further information on the sectors where the principles of the Guidelines on Biodiversity and Tourism Development are integrated.

One of the principles of funding under Tourism Programmes is that all projects must obtain planning approval from the relevant local authority and the project promoter must comply with any conditions laid down in the approval. As stated above at Question 79, it would be a matter for the planning authority to judge if an Environmental Impact Assessment would be required for any individual project which would cover impact on all aspects of biodiversity.

#### Box XLIX.

Please elaborate below on the implementation of this article and associated decisions specifically focusing on:

- a) outcomes and impacts of actions taken;
- b) contribution to the achievement of the goals of the Strategic Plan of the Convention;
- c) contribution to progress towards the 2010 target;
- d) progress in implementing national biodiversity strategies and action plans;
- e) contribution to the achievement of the Millennium Development Goals;
- f) constraints encountered in implementation.

### Article 11 - Incentive measures

83. Plas your country established programmes to identify and adopt economically and socially sound
measures that act as incentives for the conservation and sustainable use of components of biological
diversity?

a) No		
b) No, but relevant programmes are under	er deve lopment	
c) Yes, some programmes are in place (p	olease provide details below)	X
<ul> <li>d) Yes, comprehensive programmes are below)</li> </ul>	e in place (please provide details	

Further comments on the programmes to identify and adopt incentives for the conservation and sustainable use of biodiversity.

The revised Rural Environmental Protection Scheme (REPS) introduced on 1<sup>st</sup> June 2004 includes far greater emphasis on biodiversity with specific actions for conservation and enhancement of biodiversity at farm level. The Department of Agriculture and Food will seek to ensure, in any future revisions of REPS, that the conservation and sustainable use of biodiversity is a priority.

The Department of Agriculture and Food support policies and measures to adapt support mechanisms for extensive farming systems which will preserve and promote biodiversity and be environmentally sensitive. The Single Farm Payment Scheme commenced in 2005. Implementation of cross compliance requires all applicants under the scheme to maintain all their land in "Good Agriculture and Environmental Condition" (GAEC) and comply with 19 statutory Management Requirements.

The National Parks and Wildlife Farm Plan Scheme, launched the summer of 2005, provides compensation for losses, and payment for works done by farmers whose land is designated as SAC, SPA, NHA or commonage. It applies only to farmers who do not join the REPS scheme

The Native Woodland Scheme, introduced in July 2001 with the aim of encouraging the proactive protection and expansion of Irelands native woodland resource and associated biodiversity, using appropriate "close to nature" silviculture. The scheme provides financial support for landowners to protect and enhance both existing native woodlands. The 2005 allocation for the scheme is €2 million.

The Kerry Cattle grant scheme and the Irish Draught Mare scheme are grant funded schemes aimed at providing incentives to promote the conservation of these rare breeds. The preservation of these breeds is also an optional undertaking with additional payment in REPS.

84. Plas your country developed the mechanisms or approaches to ensure adequate incorporation of both market and non-market values of biological diversity into relevant plans, policies and programmes and other relevant areas? (decisions III/18 and IV/10)		
a) No	X	
b) No, but relevant mechanisms are under development		
c) Yes, mechanisms are in place (please provide details below)		
d) Yes, review of impact of mechanisms available (please provide detail	S	
below)	]	
Further comments on the mechanism or approaches to incorporate market arbiodiversity into relevant plans, policies and programmes.	d non-market values of	
<b>85.</b> Plas your country developed training and capacity-building programmes measures and promote private -sector initiatives? (decision III/18)	to implement incentive	
a) No		
b) No, but relevant programmes are under development		
	X - REPS training for	
	farmers and planners	
	is based on the	
	requirements and measures of the	
	scheme, which now	
	includes far greater	
	emphasis on	
	biodiversity actions	
	Implementation of	
	biodiversity awareness strategy	
	for farmers involving:	
	- countryside	
	management series of	
	information I - regular	
c) Yes, some programmes are in place	articles/features in	
	farming publications	
	- Teagasc bimonthly	
	publication, "Todays	
	Farm" farm walks - Development of a	
	module on ecology	
	and biodiversity for	
	delivery on training	
	programmes for	
	prospective farmers.	
	In the Certificate in	
	Farming programme run by Teagasc a	
	number of modules	
	incorporating	

	biodiversity are taken, including Farming and
	the Environment,
	Farming and
	Biodiversity, Safe Use
	of Pesticide Products
	and Introduction to
	Crop Pesticides.
d) Yes, many programmes are in place	

**86.** Does your country take into consideration the proposals for the design and implementation of incentive measures as contained in Annex I to decision VI/15 when designing and implementing incentive measures for the conservation and sustainable use of biodiversity? (decision VI/15)

a) No

b) Yes (please provide details below)

Further information on the proposals considered when designing and implementing the incentive measures for the conservation and sustainable use of biodiversity.

The provisions of this decision are consistent with National Policy on incentive measures.

**87.** Has your country made any progress in removing or mitigating policies or practices that generate perverse incentives for the conservation and sustainable use of biological diversity? (decision VII/18)

a) No	
b) No, but identification of such policies and practices is under way	
<ul> <li>Yes, relevant policies and practices identified but not entirely remove mitigated (please provide details below)</li> </ul>	ed or X
<ul> <li>d) Yes, relevant policies and practices identified and removed or mitig (please provide details below)</li> </ul>	ated

Further information on perverse incentives identified and/or removed or mitigated.

Implementation of cross compliance requires all applicants for farm payments to maintain all their land in "Good Agriculture and Environmental Condition" ( GAEC ) and comply with 19 statutory Management Requirements

#### Box L.

Please elaborate below on the implementation of this article and associated decisions specifically focusing on:

- a) outcomes and impacts of actions taken;
- b) contribution to the achievement of the goals of the Strategic Plan of the Convention;
- c) contribution to progress towards the 2010 target;
- d) progress in implementing national biodiversity strategies and action plans;
- e) contribution to the achievement of the Millennium Development Goals;
- f) constraints encountered in implementation.

## Article 12 - Research and training

88. On Article 12(a), has your country established programmes for scientific and technical education and training in measures for the identification, conservation and sustainable use of biological diversity and its components?		
a) No		
b) No, but programmes are under development		
c) Yes, programmes are in place (please provide details below)	Х	
Further information on the programmes for scientific and technical education measures for identification, conservation and sustainable use of biodiversity.	and training in the	
Biodiversity conservation is integrated into a number of courses at both Second &	Third level education.	
<b>89.</b> On Article 12(b), does your country promote and encourage research wh conservation and sustainable use of biological diversity?	nich contributes to the	
a) No		
b) Yes (please provide details below)	X	
Further information on the research which contributes to the conservation a biodiversity.	nd sustainable use of	
A National Platform for Biodiversity Research has been established. A draft frambeen developed setting out a framework for a biodiversity knowledge programme		
There is an active environmental research sector in Ireland. Research is carried out by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and the National Parks and Wildlife Service, who co-ordinate and work in partnership with environmental research underway by Government agencies and the third level sector. The environmental research base in Ireland has been fostered through EPA's Environmental Research, Technological Development and Innovation Programme under the current National Development Plan and through the biodeiversity research programme managed by the National Parks and Wildlife Service.		
Many of the work programmes of the Marine Institute are designed to monitor the status of a wide range of Marine Biological systems. The institute has, over the past twelve months, re-organised its marine data services to upgrade the collation, analysis and provision to outside agencies and individuals of key marine data sets.		
<b>90.</b> On Article 12(c), does your country promote and cooperate in the use of scientific advances in biological diversity research in developing methods for conservation and sustainable use of biological resources?		
a) No		
b) Yes (please provide details below)	X	
Further information on the use of scientific advances in biodiversity research in developing methods for conservation and sustainable use of biodiversity.		
The results of Biodiversity research is implemented at operational level.		

Box LI.		
Please elal	porate below on the implementation of this article specifically focusing or	1:
a)	outcomes and impacts of actions taken;	
b)	contribution to the achievement of the goals of the Strategic Plan of the	e Convention;
c)	contribution to progress towards the 2010 target;	
d)	progress in implementing national biodiversity strategies and action pla	ins;
e)	contribution to the achievement of the Millennium Development Goals;	
f)	constraints encountered in implementation.	
	Article 13 - Public education and awarenes	s
	our country implementing a communication, education and public away public participation in support of the Convention? (Goal 4.1 of the Strate	
a) No	)	
b) No	o, but a CEPA strategy is under development	Х
	es, a CEPA strategy developed and public participation promoted to a mited extent (please provide details below)	
	es, a CEPA strategy developed and public participation promoted to a gnificant extent (please provide details below)	
	omments on the implementation of a CEPA strategy and the promotion of the Convention.	of public participation
	Awareness campaign is being developed as part of Irelands CEPA s campaign will be launched during 2006.	strategy. This Pub
	our country undertaking any activities to facilitate the implementation communication, Education and Public Awareness as contained in the ann VI/19)	
a) N	0	
b) N	o, but some programmes are under development	
	es, some activities are being undertaken (please provide details elow)	Х
	es, many activities are being undertaken (please provide details elow)	
	omments on the activities to facilitate the implementation of the program	me of work on CEP <i>F</i>
	eland's Public Environmental Information Service) produce a number of	
	hich are available on its website. ENEO have a drop in information co	

ENFO (Ireland's Public Environmental Information Service) produce a number of biodiversity related leaflets which are available on its website. ENFO have a drop in information center in central Dublin which is open to the public and includes a reference library of environmental material and a childrens corner. They have also produced a number of exhibitions related to the conservation of biodiversity. These exhibitions are made available to local authorities and community groups across the country.

A revised science syllabus for the Junior Certificate was introduced in September 2004. A specific aim is to foster an appreciation of and respect for the environment which includes the importance of

conservation, pollution and waste management to the environment and the impact of humans on the environment. At Leaving Certificate level the biology syllabus has a specific aim of œveloping an appreciation of nature and biodiversity. The Green Schools Programme, administered by an Taisce (the National Trust for Ireland), is playing an important role promoting environmental awareness in schools.

Irelands National Parks and Nature Reserves with visitor facilities promote Public Awareness through the provisions of training programmes and interpretive material.

<b>93.</b> Is your country strongly and effectively promoting biodiversity-related issues through the press, the various media and public relations and communications networks at national level? (decision VI/19)			
a) No			
b) No, but some programmes are under development	X		
c) Yes, to a limited extent (please provide details below)			
d) Yes, to a significant extent (please provide details below)			
Further comments on the promotion of biodiversity-related issues and public relations and communications networks at national level			
<b>94.</b> Does your country promote the communication, education a the local level? (decision VI/19)	nd public awareness of biodiversity at		
a) No			
b) Yes (please provide details below)	X		
Further information on the efforts to promote the communicatio biodiversity at the local level.	n, education and public awareness of		
<ul> <li>Ireland's National Biodiversity Plan has a section dealing with providing for biodiversity at local level, under which there are two specific actions for Local Authorites</li> <li>Each Local Authority to prepare a local Biodiversity Plan in consultation with relevant stakeholders</li> <li>Each Local Authority to designate a contact officers for natural heritage conservation matters in its area.</li> </ul>			
The majority of the local authorities have appointed Heritage Officer with biodiversity responsibilities. A number of local authorities have commenced the production of their Local Biodiversity Action Plans.			
<b>95.</b> Is your country supporting national, regional and internation Initiative on Education and Public Awareness? (decision VI/19)	nal activities prioritized by the Global		
a) No	X		
b) No, but some programmes are under development			
c) Yes, some activities supported (please provide details belo	ow)		
d) Yes, many activities supported (please provide details bel	ow)		
Further comments on the support of national, regional and international activities prioritized by the Global Initiative on Education and Public Awareness.			

<b>96.</b> Has your country developed adequate capacity to deliver initiatives on communication, education and public awareness?		
a) No		
b) No, but some programmes are under development		
c) Yes, some programmes are being implemented (please provide details below)	X	
d) Yes, comprehensive programmes are being implemented (please provide details below)		
Further comments on the development of adequate capacity to deliver initiative education and public awareness.	s on communication,	
See 94		
<b>97.</b> Does your country promote cooperation and exchange programmes for biodi awareness at the national, regional and international levels? (decisions IV /10 and		
a) No		
b) Yes (please provide details below)	X	
Further comments on the promotion of cooperation and exchange program education and awareness, at the national, regional and international levels.	nmes for biodiversity	
Development Cooperation Ireland has supported the training of African partner country hydrologists through a specialized scholarship programme in Ireland. The training had a strong focus on holistic approaches to water resource management with a strong focus on environmental sustainability and biodiversity conservation.		
Since 2003, Development Cooperation Ireland has been providing funds to an Operational Research programme in Ethiopia. This programme brings together Ethiopian, Irish and British academic institutions to consider issues around sustainable development, including integrated watershed management, soil and water conservation.		
Development Cooperation Ireland has also contributed to the hosting of the first conference on health and biodiversity which was held in Ireland in August 2005.		
<b>98.</b> Is your country undertaking some CEPA activities for implementation of crothematic programmes of work adopted under the Convention?	oss-cutting issues and	
a) No (please specify reasons below)	Х	
<ul> <li>b) Yes, some activities undertaken for some issues and thematic areas (please provide details below)</li> </ul>		
c) Yes, many activities undertaken for most issues and thematic areas (please provide details below)		
<ul> <li>d) Yes, comprehensive activities undertaken for all issues and thematic areas (please provide details below)</li> </ul>		
Further comments on the CEPA activities for implementation of cross-cutting issues and thematic programmes of work adopted under the Convention.		

a)	No	X
b)	Yes (please provide details below)	
biodive	r comments on the initiatives by major groups, key actors and stakeholersity conservation in their practice and education programmes as well as tooss-sectoral plans, programmes and policies.	
esta bli	Is your country communicating the various elements of the 2010 bid shing appropriate linkages to the Decade on Education for Sustainable nentation of your national CEPA programmes and activities? (decision VII/24	Development in the
a)	No	
b)	No, but some programmes are under development	
c)	Yes, some programmes developed and activities undertaken for this purpose (please provide details below)	Х
d)	Yes, comprehensive programmes developed and many activities undertaken for this purpose (please provide details below)	
	r comments on the communication of the various elements of the 2010 bitablishment of linkages to the Decade on Education for Sustainable Developr	
	010 target at International & EU level will form a key element to the Public aunched during 2006.	Awareness campaign
Ireland	contributed funds to the IUCN for the development of the 2010 strategy.	
Box LI	Ι.	
Please focusin	elaborate below on the implementation of this article and associated g on:	decisions specifically
a j	) outcomes and impacts of actions taken;	
b)	) contribution to the achievement of the goals of the Strategic Plan of the C	Convention;
c)	contribution to progress towards the 2010 target;	
d]	) progress in implementing national biodiversity strategies and action plans	<b>3</b> ;
e e	) contribution to the achievement of the Millennium Development Goals;	
f)	constraints encountered in implementation.	

### Article 14 - Impact assessment and minimizing adverse impacts

	On Article 14.1(a), has your country developed legislation requiring an ment of proposed projects likely to have adverse effects on biological diversi	
a)	No	
b)	No, legislation is still in early stages of development	
c)	No, but legislation is in advanced stages of development	
d)	Yes, legislation is in place (please provide details below)	Х
e)	Yes, review of implementation available (please provide details below)	
	r information on the legislation requiring EIA of proposed projects likely to diversity.	have adverse effects
	al Planning legislation requires prior assessment of most types of works that and scapes and sites.	at are likely to grossly
subject	ition, under EU legislation any plan or project that might effect a Natur t to impact assessment and can only proceed if it is judged not to have a sons of overwhelming public interest.	
is give	On Article 14.1(b), has your country developed mechanisms to ensure to the environmental consequences of national programmes and policies that adverse impacts on biological diversity?	
a)	No	
b)	No, mechanisms are still in early stages of development	
c)	No, but mechanisms are in advanced stages of development	
d)	Yes, mechanisms are in place (please provide details below)	Х
enviror	r comments on the mechanisms developed to ensure that due considerance and policies that are likele impacts on biodiversity.	
	ational Spatial Strategy and the provisions of the EU SEA directive proving of programmes and policies that could impact on biodiversity.	ride a basis for prior
	On Article 14.1(c), is your country implementing bilateral, regional nents on activities likely to significantly affect biological diversity outtion?	
a)	No	
b)	No, but assessment of options is in progress	
c)	Yes, some completed, others in progress (please provide details below)	X
d)	Yes (please provide details below)	
	r information on the bilateral, regional and/or multilateral agreements cantly affect biodiversity outside your country's jurisdiction.	on activities likely to
	s relating to Trade Marine Fisheries and Agriculture are largely governe al legislation.	d by EU rather than

or damage originating in your territory to biological diversity in the territory of oth beyond the limits of national jurisdiction?	nt or minimize danger ner Parties or in areas	
a) No	Х	
b) No, mechanisms are still in early stages of development		
c) No, but mechanisms are in advanced stages of development		
d) Yes, mechanisms are in place based on current scientific knowledge		
105. 2 On Article 14.1(e), has your country established national mechanisms for to activities or events which present a grave and imminent danger to biological div		
a) No		
b) No, mechanisms are still in early stages of development	X	
c) No, but mechanisms are in advanced stages of development		
d) Yes, mechanisms are in place (please provide details below)		
There are operational plans to deal with certain types of emergencies from a biodiversity point of view e.g. oil spillages, an outbreak of Avian Influenza.  106. Is your country applying the Guidelines for Incorporating Biodiversity-related Issues into Environment-Impact-Assessment Legislation or Processes and in Strategic Impact Assessment as contained in the annex to decision VI/7 in the context of the implementation of paragraph 1 of Article 14? (decision VI/7)		
106. Is your country applying the Guidelines for Incorporating Biodiversity Environment-Impact-Assessment Legislation or Processes and in Strategic Imcontained in the annex to decision VI/7 in the context of the implementation of part (decision VI/7)	npact Assessment as	
106. Is your country applying the Guidelines for Incorporating Biodiversity Environment-Impact-Assessment Legislation or Processes and in Strategic Incontained in the annex to decision VI/7 in the context of the implementation of processes.	npact Assessment as	
106. Is your country applying the Guidelines for Incorporating Biodiversity Environment-Impact-Assessment Legislation or Processes and in Strategic Imcontained in the annex to decision VI/7 in the context of the implementation of part (decision VI/7)  a) No	npact Assessment as	
106. Is your country applying the Guidelines for Incorporating Biodiversity Environment-Impact-Assessment Legislation or Processes and in Strategic Imcontained in the annex to decision VI/7 in the context of the implementation of part (decision VI/7)  a) No b) No, but application of the guidelines under consideration	npact Assessment as	
106. Is your country applying the Guidelines for Incorporating Biodiversity Environment-Impact-Assessment Legislation or Processes and in Strategic Imcontained in the annex to decision VI/7 in the context of the implementation of part (decision VI/7)  a) No b) No, but application of the guidelines under consideration c) Yes, some aspects being applied (please specify below)	npact Assessment as paragraph 1 of Article	
106. Is your country applying the Guidelines for Incorporating Biodiversity Environment-Impact-Assessment Legislation or Processes and in Strategic Incontained in the annex to decision VI/7 in the context of the implementation of part (decision VI/7)  a) No b) No, but application of the guidelines under consideration c) Yes, some aspects being applied (please specify below) d) Yes, major aspects being applied (please specify below)	npact Assessment as paragraph 1 of Article	
106. Is your country applying the Guidelines for Incorporating Biodiversity Environment-Impact-Assessment Legislation or Processes and in Strategic Incontained in the annex to decision VI/7 in the context of the implementation of part (decision VI/7)  a) No b) No, but application of the guidelines under consideration c) Yes, some aspects being applied (please specify below) d) Yes, major aspects being applied (please specify below)  Further comments on application of the guidelines.	npact Assessment as paragraph 1 of Article X	
106. Is your country applying the Guidelines for Incorporating Biodiversity Environment-Impact-Assessment Legislation or Processes and in Strategic Imcontained in the annex to decision VI/7 in the context of the implementation of place (decision VI/7)  a) No b) No, but application of the guidelines under consideration c) Yes, some aspects being applied (please specify below) d) Yes, major aspects being applied (please specify below)  Further comments on application of the guidelines. EU Environmental legislation takes the principles of VI/7 into account.	npact Assessment as paragraph 1 of Article X	
<ul> <li>106. Is your country applying the Guidelines for Incorporating Biodiversity Environment-Impact-Assessment Legislation or Processes and in Strategic Importance in the annex to decision VI/7 in the context of the implementation of place (decision VI/7)</li> <li>a) No</li> <li>b) No, but application of the guidelines under consideration</li> <li>c) Yes, some aspects being applied (please specify below)</li> <li>d) Yes, major aspects being applied (please specify below)</li> <li>Further comments on application of the guidelines.</li> <li>EU Environmental legislation takes the principles of VI/7 into account.</li> <li>107. On Article 14 (2), has your country put in place national legislative, admeasures regarding liability and redress for damage to biological diversity? (decision of the process of the principles of the place national legislative, admeasures regarding liability and redress for damage to biological diversity? (decision of the place national legislative)</li> </ul>	npact Assessment as paragraph 1 of Article X	
<ul> <li>106. Is your country applying the Guidelines for Incorporating Biodiversity Environment-Impact-Assessment Legislation or Processes and in Strategic Importance in the annex to decision VI/7 in the context of the implementation of particle 14? (decision VI/7)</li> <li>a) No</li> <li>b) No, but application of the guidelines under consideration</li> <li>c) Yes, some aspects being applied (please specify below)</li> <li>d) Yes, major aspects being applied (please specify below)</li> <li>Further comments on application of the guidelines.</li> <li>EU Environmental legislation takes the principles of VI/7 into account.</li> <li>107. On Article 14 (2), has your country put in place national legislative, admeasures regarding liability and redress for damage to biological diversity? (decisinal) No</li> </ul>	mpact Assessment as paragraph 1 of Article X  X  ministrative or policy on VI/11)	
<ul> <li>106. Is your country applying the Guidelines for Incorporating Biodiversity Environment-Impact-Assessment Legislation or Processes and in Strategic Incontained in the annex to decision VI/7 in the context of the implementation of place (decision VI/7)</li> <li>a) No</li> <li>b) No, but application of the guidelines under consideration</li> <li>c) Yes, some aspects being applied (please specify below)</li> <li>d) Yes, major aspects being applied (please specify below)</li> <li>Further comments on application of the guidelines.</li> <li>EU Environmental legislation takes the principles of VI/7 into account.</li> <li>107. On Article 14 (2), has your country put in place national legislative, admeasures regarding liability and redress for damage to biological diversity? (decising a) No</li> <li>b) Yes (please specify the measures)</li> <li>Further comments on national legislative, administrative or policy measures regarding liability and redresses and in Strategic Importance of the importance of the implementation of processes and in Strategic Importance of the implementation of processes and in Strategic Importance of the implementation of processes and in Strategic Importance of the implementation of processes and in Strategic Importance of the implementation of processes and in Strategic Importance of the implementation of processes and in Strategic Importance of the implementation of processes and in Strategic Importance of the implementation of processes and in Strategic Importance of the implementation of processes and in Strategic Importance of the implementation of processes and in Strategic Importance of the implementation of processes and in Strategic Importance of the implementation of processes and in Strategic Importance of the implementation of the implem</li></ul>	mpact Assessment as paragraph 1 of Article X  X  ministrative or policy on VI/11)	

108.	Has your country put in place any measures to prevent damage to biological	l diversity?	
a)	No		
b)	No, but some measures are being developed		
c)	Yes, some measures are in place (please provide details below)		
d)	Yes, comprehensive measures are in place (please provide details below)	Х	
Furthe	r information on the measures in place to prevent damage to biological diver	rsity.	
	e Rangers employed by the Ministry of the Environment carry out work in al Wildlife legislation. Court action is taken when required.	n the field to enforce	
<b>109.</b> Is your country cooperating with other Parties to strengthen capacities at the national level for the prevention of damage to biodiversity, establishment and implementation of national &gislative regimes, policy and administrative measures on liability and redress? (decision VI/11)			
a)	No		
b)	No, but cooperation is under consideration		
c)	No, but cooperative programmes are under development	Х	
d)	Yes, some cooperative activities being undertaken (please provide details below)		
e)	Yes, comprehensive cooperative activities being undertaken (please provide details below)		
	r comments on cooperation with other Parties to strengthen capacities fige to biodiversity.	or the prevention of	
See re	sponses on earlier Questions in relation to Capacity Building.		
Box LIII.			
Please focusin	elaborate below on the implementation of this article and associated ong on:	decisions specifically	
а	) outcomes and impacts of actions taken;		
b	) contribution to the achievement of the goals of the Strategic Plan of the C	Convention;	
c)	contribution to progress towards the 2010 target;		
d	) progress in implementing national biodiversity strategies and action plans	<b>;</b> ;	
е	) contribution to the achievement of the Millennium Development Goals;		
f)	constraints encountered in implementation.		

### Article 15 - Access to genetic resources

110.	?	Has	your	country	endea	vored	l to	facil	itate	access	to	genetic	res	ources	for	enviro	nmenta	ally
			•	er Partie	•						ed d	consent	and	mutuall	ly a	agreed	terms,	in
				<b>J</b> 1	•													

a) No	
b) Yes (please provide details below)	X

Further information on the efforts taken by your country to facilitate access to genetic resources for environmentally sound uses by other Parties, on the basis of prior informed consent and mutually agreed terms.

Ireland has provided national funding towards the establishment and maintenance of national genebanks. It has recently up-loaded details of cereals and potato genebank collections to the EURISCO web site to facilitate germplasm information exchange. AS part of the funding programme Ireland has provided financial assistance for the propagation of endangered native Irish Apple varieties.

The National Botanic Gardens provides access to germplasm under a Material Transfer Agreement. The Gardens has drawn up a set of policies with regard to the extent of such access, and the terms under which such material is provided to third parties.

Ireland has contributed funds to UNEP to support the implementation of the Bonn Guidelines on Access to genetic resources and the fair and equitable sharing of the benefits arising from their utilization in Africa.

111. Plas your country taken measures to ensure that any scientific research based on genetic resources provided by other Parties is developed and carried out with the full participation of such Parties, in accordance with Article 15(6)?

a) No	
b) No, but potential measures are under review	
c) Yes, some measures are in place (please provide details below)	X
d) Yes, comprehensive measures are in place (please provide details below)	

Further information on the measures to ensure that any scientific research based on genetic resources provided by other Contracting Parties is developed and carried out with the full participation of such Contracting Parties.

Research carried out under the Exchequer funded Grant Scheme for Genetic Resources for Food and Agriculture is used in the development and formulation of conservation plans for rare domestic breeds. All relevant stakeholders are involved in consultations about the research being undertaken.

Research carried out under this funding is published and made freely available to all stakeholders who may be involved in the conservation of the relevant genetic resource. In addition the research may be presented at relevant International and National conferences.

Material in the National Botanic Gardens obtained during overseas expeditions is governed by Mutually Agreed Terms, whereby provision to third parties is only undertaken with full consent and knowledge of the original country.

112. Has your country taken measures to ensure the fair and equitable sharesearch and development and of the benefits arising from the commercial and resources with any Contracting Party providing such resources, in accordance with	I other use of genetic			
a) No				
b) No, but potential measures are under review				
c) Yes, some measures are in place (please provide details below)	X			
d) Yes, comprehensive legislation is in place (please provide details below)				
e) Yes, comprehensive statutory policy or subsidiary legislation are in place (please provide details below)				
f) Yes, comprehensive policy and administrative measures are in place (please provide details below)				
Further information on the type of measures taken.				
Research carried out under the Advisory Committee for Genetic Resources for Foc published and made freely available to all stakeholders who may be involved in the relevant genetic resource.				
To date no circumstances of commercial exploitation have arisen. Research material at the National Botanic Gardens is published in a journal, Glasra, whic exchange agreements with over 400 other institutions.				
113. In developing national measures to address access to genetic resource has your country taken into account the multilateral system of access and benefit International Treaty on Plant Genetic Resources for Food and Agriculture?				
a) No	Х			
b) Yes (please provide details below)				
Further information on national measures taken which consider the multilateral benefit-sharing as set out in the International Treaty on Plant Genetic Res Agriculture.				
Ireland is currently reviewing the need to update national legislation in keeping under international agreements such as International Treaty on Plant Gene Convention on Biological Diversity.				
<b>114.</b> Is your country using the Bonn Guidelines when developing and drafting legislative, administrative or policy measures on access and benefit-sharing and/or when negotiating contracts and other a rrangements under mutually agreed terms for access and benefit-sharing? (decision VII/19A)				
a) No				
b) No, but steps being taken to do so (please provide details below)	Х			
c) Yes (please provide details below)				
Please provide details and specify successes and constraints in the implementation of the Bonn Guidelines.				

role of disclosi rights	Has your country adopted national policies or measures, including legislation in the lectual property rights in access and benefit-sharing arrangemen ure of origin/source/legal provenance of genetic resources in applications for where the subject matter of the application concerns, or makes use of, goment)?	ts (i.e. the issue of rintellectual property			
a)	No				
b)	No, but potential policies or measures have been identified (please specify below)	Х			
c)	No, but relevant policies or measures are under development (please specify below)				
d)	Yes, some policies or measures are in place (please specify below)				
e)	Yes, comprehensive policies or measures adopted (please specify below)				
	r information on policies or measures that address the role of IPR in acces ements.	s and benefit-sharing			
<u> </u>					
116. I	Has your country been involved in capacity-building activities related to g?	access and benefit-			
a)	Yes (please provide details below)				
b)	No	X			
recipie buildin whethe	Please provide further information on capacity-building activities (your involvement as donor or recipient, key actors involved, target audience, time period, goals and objectives of the capacity-building activities, main capacity-building areas covered, nature of activities). Please also specify whether these activities took into account the Action Plan on capacity-building for access and benefit-sharing adopted at COP VII and available in annex to decision VII/19F.				
Box LI	<b>v</b> .				
Please focusin	elaborate below on the implementation of this article and associated og on:	decisions specifically			
a)	outcomes and impacts of actions taken;				
b)	contribution to the achievement of the goals of the Strategic Plan of the C	Convention;			
c)	contribution to progress towards the 2010 target;				
d)	progress in implementing national biodiversity strategies and action plans	<b>5</b> ;			
e)	contribution to the achievement of the Millennium Development Goals;				
f)	constraints encountered in implementation.				

## Article 16 - Access to and transfer of technology

117. 2 On Article 16(1), has your country taken measures to provide or facilitate access for and transfer to other Parties of technologies that are relevant to the conservation and sustainable use of biological diversity or make use of genetic resources and do not cause significant damage to the environment?			
a) No			
b) No, but potential measures are under review			
c) Yes, some measures are in place (please provide details below)	X		
d) Yes, comprehensive measures are in place (please provide details below)			
Further information on the measures to provide or facilitate access for and transference technologies that are relevant to the conservation and sustainable use of biodiv genetic resources and do not cause significant damage to the environment.			
Development Co-Operation Ireland has contributed funds to UNEP to support the Bonn Guidelines on " Access to genetic resources and the fair and equitable slarising from their utilization in Africa"			
<b>118.</b> On Article 16(3), has your country taken measures so that Parties we resources are provided access to and transfer of technology which make use of mutually agreed terms?			
a) No	X		
b) No, but potential measures are under review			
c) Yes, some measures are in place			
d) Yes, comprehensive legislation is in place			
e) Yes, comprehensive statutory policy or subsidiary legislation are in place			
f) Yes, comprehensive policy and administrative arrangements are in place			
g) Not applicable			
<b>119.</b> On Article 16(4), has your country taken measures so that the private so to joint development and transfer of relevant technology for the benefit of Govern the private sector of developing countries?			
a) No	X		
b) No, but potential measures are under review			
c) Yes, some policies and measures are in place (please provide details below)			
d) Yes, comprehensive policies and measures are in place (please provide details below)			
e) Not applicable			
Further information on the measures taken.			

### Box LV.

Please el	aborate below on the implementation of this article specifically focusing or	ı:
a)	outcomes and impacts of actions taken;	
b)	contribution to the achievement of the goals of the Strategic Plan of the G	Convention;
c)	contribution to progress towards the 2010 target;	
d)	progress in implementing national biodiversity strategies and action plans	s;
e)	contribution to the achievement of the Millennium Development Goals;	
f)	constraints encountered in implementation.	
P	rogramme of Work on transfer of technology and technology	y cooperation
	as your country provided financial and technical support and training ntation of the programme of work on transfer of technology and tech	
	n VII/29)	mology cooperation.
a)	No	
b)	No, but relevant programmes are under development	X
c)	Yes, some programmes being implemented (please provide details below)	
d)	Yes, comprehensive programmes being implemented (please provide details below)	
Further	comments on the provision of financial and technical support and trai	ning to assist in the
	ntation of the programme of work on transfer of technology and technolog	
See 117		
	your country taking any measures to remove unnecessary impediment initiatives for technology transfer and for scientific and technical cooperation	
a)	No	Х
b)	No, but some measures being considered	
c)	Yes, some measures are in place (please provide details below)	
d)		
	below)	
	comments on the measures to remove unnecessary impediments to fur s for technology transfer and for scientific and technical cooperation.	nding of multi-country
<u>I</u>		

	s your country made any technology assessments addressing technology ers in relevant sectors as well as related needs in capacity building? (annotation)	
a)	No	X
b)	No, but assessments are under way	
c)	Yes, basic assessments undertaken (please provide details below)	
d)	Yes, thorough assessments undertaken (please provide details below)	
	omments on technology assessments addressing technology needs, opports sectors as well as related needs in capacity building.	ortunities and barriers
	s your country made any assessments and risk analysis of the potential costs with the introduction of new technologies? (annex to decision VII/	
a)	No	Х
b)	No, but assessments are under way	
c)	Yes, some assessments undertaken (please provide details below)	
d)	Yes, comprehensive assessments undertaken (please provide details below)	
	comments on the assessments and risk analysis of the potential benefits has the introduction of new technologies.	, risks and associated

<b>124.</b> Has your country identified and implemented any measures to develop or s information systems for technology transfer and cooperation, including assess needs? (annex to decision VII/29)	
a) No	
b) No, but some programmes are under development	Х
c) Yes, some programmes are in place and being implemented (please provide details below)	
d) Yes, comprehensive programmes are being implemented (please provide details below)	
Further comments on measures to develop or strengthen appropriate infortechnology transfer and cooperation.	rmation systems for
Development Cooperation I reland has contributed to UNEP's Africa Environment Programme which works to strengthen the capacity of African cand access environmental data and information to support the managemental resources. UNEP also received funds to promote and encoconservation and protection through capacity-building and pilot projects.	ountries to harness gement of Africa's
<b>125.</b> Has your country taken any of the measures specified under Target 3.2 work as a preparatory phase to the development and implementation of administrative, legislative and policy frameworks to facilitate cooperation as wadaptation of technologies of relevance to the Convention? (annex to decision VII/	national institutional, ell as access to and
a) No	X
b) No, but a few measures being considered	
c) Yes, some measures taken (please specify below)	
d) Yes, many measures taken (please specify below)	
Further comments on the measures taken as a preparatory phase to the implementation of national institutional, administrative, legislative and policy fra cooperation as well as access to and adaptation of technologies of relevance to the	meworks to facilitate
Box LVI.	
Please elaborate below on the implementation of this article and associated focusing on:	decisions specifically
a) outcomes and impacts of actions taken;	
b) contribution to the achievement of the goals of the Strategic Plan of the C	Convention;
c) contribution to progress towards the 2010 target;	
d) progress in implementing national biodiversity strategies and action plans	<b>;</b> ;
e) contribution to the achievement of the Millennium Development Goals;	
f) constraints encountered in implementation.	

### Article 17 - Exchange of information

from pu	On Article 17(1), has your country taken measures to facilitate the exablicly available sources with a view to assist with the implementation of etechnical and scientific cooperation?	
a) I	No	
l (d	No, but potential measures are under review	
c) '	es, some measures are in place	X
d) \	es, comprehensive measures are in place	
	The following question (127) is for DEVELOPED COUNTRIL	ES
countrie	On Article 17(1), do these measures take into account the special es and include the categories of information listed in Article 17(2), such a io-economic research, training and surveying programmes, specialized known and so on?	as technical, scientific
a)	No	Х
b)	Yes, but they do not include the categories of information listed in Article 17(2), such as technical, scientific and socio-economic research, training and surveying programmes, specialized knowledge, repatriation of information and so on	
c)	Yes, and they include categories of information listed in Article 17 (2), such as technical, scientific and socio-economic research, training and surveying programmes, specialized knowledge, repatriation of information and so on	
Box LV	II.	
Please of focusing	elaborate below on the implementation of this article and associated on:	decisions specifically
a)	outcomes and impacts of actions taken;	
b)	contribution to the achievement of the goals of the Strategic Plan of the G	Convention;
c)	contribution to progress towards the 2010 target;	
d)	progress in implementing national biodiversity strategies and action plans	S;

e) contribution to the achievement of the Millennium Development Goals;

f) constraints encountered in implementation.

## Article 18 - Technical and scientific cooperation

<b>128.</b> On Article 18(1), has your country taken measures to promote international technical and scientific cooperation in the field of conservation and sustainable use of biological diversity?				
a) No				
b) No, but potential measures are under review				
c) Yes, some measures are in place (please provide details below)	X			
d) Yes, comprehensive measures are in place (please provide details below)				
Further information on the measures to promote international technical and scient	ific cooperation.			
The Marine Institute of Ireland are involved in a wide range of national and interesearch programmes which will support the objective of sustaining biodiversity in				
Ireland has provided voluntary additional financial contributions to enable deve countries with economies in transition to participate in CBD meetings.	eloping countries and			
Ireland has supported the training of African partner country hydrologists t scholarship programme in Ireland.	hrough a specialized			
The Operational Research Programme in Ethiopia supported by Development Coresponds to research into local crop varieties, soil and water conservation to improdoes support to the Consultative Group on International Agricultural Research (CG	ve watersheds etc. as			
<b>129.</b> On Article 18(4), has your country encouraged and developed methods of cooperation for the development and use of technologies, including indigenous and traditional technologies, in pursuance of the objectives of this Convention?				
a) No	X			
b) No, but relevant methods are under development				
d) Yes, methods are in place				
<b>130.</b> On Article 18(5), has your country promoted the establishment of joint and joint ventures for the development of technologies relevant to the objectives	·			
a) No	X			
b) Yes (please provide some examples below)				
Examples for the establishment of joint research programmes and joint ventures f technologies relevant to the objectives of the Convention.	or the development of			
<b>131.</b> Has your country established links to non-governmental organizations, private sector and other institutions holding important databases or undertaking significant work on biological diversity through the CHM? (decision V/14)				
a) No	Х			
b) No, but coordination with relevant NGOs, private sector and other institutions under way				
c) Yes, links established with relevant NGOs, private sector and institutions				

### The following question (132) is for DEVELOPED COUNTRIES

	s your country further developed the CHM to assist developing countries in transition to gain access to information in the field of scientific and	
	No No	X
b)	Yes, by using funding opportunities	
c)	Yes, by means of access to, and transfer of technology	
d)	Yes, by using research cooperation facilities	
e)	Yes, by using repatriation of information	
f)	Yes, by using training opportunities	
g)	Yes, by using promotion of contacts with relevant institutions, organizations and the private sector	
h)	Yes, by using other means (please specify below)	
	omments on CHM developments to assist developing countries and countrient to gain access to information in the field of scientific and technical coope	
	s your country used CHM to make information available more useful makers? (decision V/14)	for researchers and
a)	No	
b)	No, but relevant initiatives under consideration	Х
c)	Yes (please provide details below)	
Further o	omments on development of relevant initiatives.	
	s your country developed, provided and shared services and tools to enhantation of the CHM and further improve synergies among biodiversity V/14)	
a) No	0	X
b) Ye	es (please specify services and tools below)	
	comments on services and tools to enhance and facilitate the implementation conventions.	entation of CHM and

Box LVIII.	
Please elaborate below on the implementation of this article and associousing on:	ciated decisions specifically
a) outcomes and impacts of actions taken;	
b) contribution to the achievement of the goals of the Strategic Plan of	of the Convention;
c) contribution to progress towards the 2010 target;	
d) progress in implementing national biodiversity strategies and actio	n plans;
e) contribution to the achievement of the Millennium Development Go	pals;
f) constraints encountered in implementation.	
Article 19 - Handling of biotechnology and distribut	ion of its benefits
<b>135.</b> On Article 19(1), has your country taken measures to provide for biotechnological research activities by those Contracting Parties which prov such research?	
a) No	
b) No, but potential measures are under review	X
c) Yes, some measures are in place	
d) Yes, comprehensive legislation are in place	
e) Yes, comprehensive statutory policy and subsidiary legislation are in	place
f) Yes, comprehensive policy and administrative measures are in place	
<b>136.</b> On Article 19(2), has your country taken all practicable measure priority access by Parties, on a fair and equitable basis, to the results biotechnologies based upon genetic resources provided by those Parties?	
a) No	X
b) No, but potential measures are under review	
c) Yes, some measures are in place	
d) Yes, comprehensive measures are in place	
·	,

#### Box LIX.

Please focusii		laborate below or on:	n the	implementation	of this	article	and	associated	decisions	specifically
a	1)	outcomes and im	pacts	of actions taken;						
k	)	contribution to th	e achie	evement of the g	oals of t	he Stra	tegic	Plan of the	Conventio	n;

- d) progress in implementing national biodiversity strategies and action plans;
- e) contribution to the achievement of the Millennium Development Goals;
- f) constraints encountered in implementation.

c) contribution to progress towards the 2010 target;

### Article 20 - Financial resources

#### Box LX.

Please describe for each of the following items the quantity of financial resources, both internal and external, that have been utilized, received or provided, as applicable, to implement the Convention on Biological Diversity, on an annual basis, since your country became a Party to the Convention.

Bio	Biological Diversity, on an annual basis, since your country became a Party to the Convention.						
a)	Budgetary allocations by national and local Governments as well as different sectoral ministries	See Box LX					
b)	Extra-budgetary resources (identified by donor agencies)						
c)	Bilateral channels (identified by donor agencies)						
d)	Regional channels (identified by donor agencies)						
e)	Multilateral channels (identified by donor agencies)						
f)	Private sources (identified by donor agencies)						
g)	Resources generated through financial instruments, such as charges for use of biodiversity						

#### Box LXI.

Please	describe	in deta	il below	any	major	financing	programmes,	such	as	biodiversity	trust	funds	or
specific	program	mes th	at have I	been	establ	ished in yo	our country.						

The National Parks and Wildlife Service of the Department of the Environment, Heritage and Local Government is the is the lead Department with responsibility for the implementation of the National Biodiversity Plan. The budget allocated for this purpose for the years 2002-2004 was €69.636m. Other Departments such as Agriculture and Food, Communication Marine and Natural Resources, Foreign Affairs and the Environment Protection Agency have also allocated significant financial resources towards the implementation of the National Biodiversity Plan.

<b>137.</b> On Article 20(1), has your country provided financial support and incentivactivities that are intended to achieve the objectives of the Convention?	ves to those national
a) No	
b) Yes, incentives only (please provide a list of such incentives below)	
c) Yes, financial support only	X
d) Yes, financial support and incentives (please provide details below)	
Further comments on financial support and incentives provided.	
The next question (138) is for DEVELOPED COUNTRIES	
<b>138.</b> On Article 20(2), has your country provided new and additional financial developing country Parties to meet the agreed incremental costs to them of impliwhich fulfill the obligations of the Convention?	
a) No	
b) Yes (please indicate the amount, on an annual basis, of new and additional financial resources your country has provided)	Х
Further comments on new and additional financial resources provided.	
Additional financial resources, totaling €3 million over the 2002-2004 period were p establishment of the UNEP/Development Cooperation Multilateral Environmental True	
The next question (139) is for DEVELOPING COUNTRIES OR COUNTRIES WILLIAM IN TRANSITION	ITH ECONOMIES
139. On Article 20(2), has your country received new and additional financial reto meet the agreed full incremental costs of implementing measures which fulfill the Convention?	
a) No	
b) Yes	

	Has your country established a process to monitor financial support to be trovided by the private sector? (decision V/11)	piodiversity, including						
a)	No							
b)	No, but procedures being established	X						
c)	Yes (please provide details below)							
	Further comments on processes to monitor financial support to biodiversity, including support provided by the private sector.							
	Has your country considered any measures like tax exemptions in nationage financial support to biodiversity? (decision V/11)	al taxation systems to						
a)	No	X						
b)	No, but exemptions are under development (please provide details below)							
(c)	Yes, exemptions are in place (please provide details below)							
Further	comments on tax exemptions for biodiversity-related donations.							
official incentiv	las your country reviewed national budgets and monetary policies, including development assistance allocated to biodiversity, with particular attentives and their performance as well as perverse incentives and ways and megation? (decision VI/16)	ion paid to positive						
a)	No							
b)	No, but review is under way	Х						
c)	Yes (please provide results of review below)							
	comments on review of national budgets and monetary policies, including development assistance.	g the effectiveness of						

in the	s your country taking concrete actions to review and further integrate biodiv development and implementation of major international development initial al sustainable development plans and relevant sectoral policies and plans?	atives,	as well as in	
a)	No			
b)	No, but review is under way			
c)	Yes, in some initiatives and plans (please provide details below)			
d)	Yes, in major initiatives and plans (please provide details below)		Х	
	comments on review and integration of biodiversity considerations in and plans.	relev	ant initiatives,	
in May recipier	pment Co-operation Ireland (DCI) adopted a policy for environmentally sust 2005, which will help to ensure that support through aid will take account countries. One of the guiding principles of this policy is that poverty recewardship of the environment.	int of l	biodiversity in	
	s your country enhancing the integration of biological diversity into the sesistance programmes? (decision VII/21)	ectoral	development	
a)	No			
b)	No, but relevant programmes are under development			
c)	c) Yes, into some sectoral development and assistance programmes (please provide details below)			
d)	Yes, into major sectoral development and assistance programmes (please provide details below)		X	
Further prograr	comments on the integration of biodiversity into sectoral developm	ient a	nd assistance	
See 14	3			
	The next question (145) is for DEVELOPED COUNTRIES			
support	Please indicate with an " $\mathbf{X}$ " in the table below in which area your country had to developing countries and/or countries with economies in transition. Ple below if necessary.			
	Areas		Support provided	
	Indertaking national or regional assessments within the framework of decision VI/8)	MEA		
b) /	n-situ conservation (decision V/16)		Х	
	Enhance national capacity to establish and maintain the mechanisms to praditional knowledge (decision VI/10)	otect		
d) E	Ex-situ conservation (decision V/26)		Х	

e) Implementation of the Global Strategy for Plant Conservation (decision VI/9)

f)	Implementation of the Bonn Guidelines (decision VI/24)	Х				
g)	Implementation of programme of work on agricultural biodiversity (decision V/5)	x				
h)	Preparation of first report on the State of World's Animal Genetic Resources (decision VI/17)					
i)	Support to work of existing regional coordination mechanisms and development of regional and sub regional networks or processes (decision VI/27)	x				
j)	Development of partnerships and other means to provide the necessary support for the implementation of the programme of work on dry and subhumid lands biological diversity (decision VII/2)					
k)	Financial support for the operations of the Coordination Mechanism of the Global Taxonomy Initiative (decision $VII/9$ )					
I)	Support to the implementation of the Action Plan on Capacity Building as contained in the annex to decision VII/19 (decision VII/19)	x				
m)	Support to the implementation of the programme of work on mountain biological diversity (decision $VII/27$ )					
-	Support to the implementation of the programme of work on protected areas (de on VII/28)	х				
o)	Support to the development of national indicators (decision VII/30)					
p)	Others (please specify)					
further information on financial support provided to developing countries and countries with economies a transition.						
Through its Central America Programme, Ireland is supporting programmes to assist communities to manage and protect reserves for the preservation of biodiversity.						

# The next question (146) is for DEVELOPING COUNTRIES OR COUNTRIES WITH ECONOMIES IN TRANSITION

**146.** Please indicate with an "X" in the table below in which areas your country has applied for funds from the Global Environment Facility (GEF), from developed countries and/or from other sources. The same area may have more than one source of financial support. Please elaborate in the space below if necessary.

	Areas	Applied for funds from					
	Aleas	GEF	Bilateral	Other			
a)	Preparation of national biodiversity strategies or action plans						
b)	National capacity self-assessment for implementation of Convention (decision VI/27)						
c)	Priority actions to implement the Global Taxonomy Initiative (decision $\ensuremath{\text{V/9}}\xspace)$						
d)	In-situ conservation (decision V/16)						

e)	Development of national strategies or action plans to deal with alien species (decision VI/23)		
f)	Ex-situ conservation, establishment and maintenance of $Ex$ -situ conservation facilities (decision V/26)		
g)	Projects that promote measures for implementing Article 13 (Education and Public Awareness) (decision VI/19)		
h)	Preparation of national reports (decisions III/9, V/19 and VI/25)		
i)	Projects for conservation and sustainable use of inland water biological diversity (decision IV/4)		
j)	Activities for conservation and sustainable use of agricultural biological diversity (decision $V/5$ )		
k)	Implementation of the Cartagena Protocol on Biosafety (decision VI/26)		
l)	Implementation of the Global Taxonomy Initiative		
m)	Implementation of the Addis Ababa Principles and Guidelines for the Sustainable Use of Biodiversity		
n)	Others (please specify)		
Fur	ther information on application for financial support.		

#### Box LXII.

Please elaborate below on the implementation of this article and associated decisions specifically focusing on:

- a) outcomes and impacts of actions taken;
- b) contribution to the achievement of the goals of the Strategic Plan of the Convention;
- c) contribution to progress towards the 2010 target;
- d) progress in implementing national biodiversity strategies and action plans;
- e) contribution to the achievement of the Millennium Development Goals;
- f) constraints encountered in implementation.

## D. THEMATIC AREAS

**147.** Please use the scale indicated below to reflect the level of challenges faced by your country in implementing the thematic programmes of work of the Convention (marine and coastal biodiversity, agricultural biodiversity, forest biodiversity, inland waters biodiversity, dry and sub-humid lands and mountain biodiversity).

3 = High Challenge

1 = Low Challenge

2 = Medium Challenge

0 = Challenge has been successfully overcome

N/A = Not applicable

	Programme of Work					
Challenges	Agricultur al	Forest	Marine and coastal	Inland water ecosystem	Dry and subhumid lands	Mountain
(a) Lack of political will and support	1	1	2	2	N/A	1
(b) Limited public participation and stakeholder involvement	1	2	3	3	N/A	2
(c) Lack of main- streaming and integration of biodiversity issues into other sectors	1	2	3	3	N/A	2
(d) Lack of precautionary and proactive measures	2	2	3	3	N/A	2
(e) Inadequate capacity to act, caused by institutional weakness	1	1	2	2	N/A	1
(f) Lack of transfer of technology and expertise	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
(g) Loss of traditional knowledge	1	1	1	1	N/A	1
(h) Lack of adequate scientific research capacities to support all the objectives	2	2	2	2	N/A	2
(i) Lack of accessible knowledge and information	1	1	2	2	N/A	2
(j) Lack of public education and awareness at all levels	2	2	2	2	N/A	2
(k) Existing scientific and traditional knowledge not fully utilized	2	2	2	2	N/A	2

(I) Loss of biodiversity	2	2	2	2	N/A	2
and the corresponding goods and services it provides not properly understood and documented	2	2	2	2	IV/A	2
(m) Lack of financial, human, technical resources	2	2	2	2	N/A	2
(n) Lack of economic incentive measures	1	1	2	2	N/A	1
(o) Lack of benefit- sharing	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
(p) Lack of synergies at national and international levels	1	1	1	1	N/A	1
(q) Lack of horizontal cooperation among stakeholders	1	1	2	2	N/A	2
(r) Lack of effective partnerships	1	1	2	2	N/A	1
(s) Lack of engagement of scientific community	1	1	1	1	N/A	1
(t) Lack of appropriate policies and laws	1	2	2	2	N/A	2
(u) Poverty	1	1	1	1	N/A	1
(v) Population pressure	1	2	3	3	N/A	1
(w) Unsustainable consumption and production patterns	2	2	3	2	N/A	1
(x) Lack of capacities for local communities	2	2	2	2	N/A	2
(y) Lack of knowledge and practice of ecosystem-based approaches to management	2	2	2	2	N/A	2
(z) Weak law enforcement capacity	1	1	2	2	N/A	1
(aa) Natural disasters and environmental change	1	1	1	1	N/A	1
(bb) Others (please specify)						

#### Inland water ecosystems

**148.** Has your country incorporated the objectives and relevant activities of the programme of work into the following and implemented them? (decision VII/4)

	Strategies, policies, plans and activities	No	Yes, partially, integrated but not implemented	Yes, fully integrated and implemented	N/A
a)	Your biodiversity strategies and action plans	Х			
b)	Wetland policies and strategies		X		
c)	Integrated water resources management and water efficiency plans being developed in line with paragraph 25 of the Plan of Implementation of the World Summit on Sustainable Development		X		
d)	Enhanced coordination and cooperation between national actors responsible for inland water ecosystems and biological diversity	v			

Further comments on incorporation of the objectives and activities of the programme of work

The NBP Action 79 aimed at maintaining and expanding the catchment based strategy for the protection and improvement of water quality in line with the requirements of the EU Water Framework Directive. Effective implementation of that Directive will meet many of the CBD objectives for inland water ecosystems; especially that a catchment level ecosystem approach be adopted to the protection and sustainable use of inland waters and their biodiversity. The WFD requires that no deterioration of water quality should occur and that where significant departures have occurred from a near natural state that action be taken to restore the impacted area to 'good status'by 2015. Good Status is dependant on achieving near natural ecological conditions for various ecological groupings, such as macrophytes and macroinvertebrates, etc. and also providing the water requirements of wetlands and water dependant species. As such, it is a powerful tool for biodiversity protection.

The implementation of the WFD has been vigorously pursued with regulations bringing it into force in in Ireland being published in December 2003 (S.I.No. 722 of 2003). These Regulations establish seven River Basin Districts (RBDs), three of which are shared with Northern Ireland. It requires the Local Authorities, acting jointly in each RBD, to establish environmental objectives and programs of measures to achieve them). They have to produce River Basin Management Plans and to set up River Basin District Advisory Councils. Co-ordination and guidance at a national level is to be provided by the Dept of Environment, Heritage and Local Government and the Environment Protection Agency (EPA).

Work has been done in describing conditions in each RBD and in identifying areas at risk of failing to achieve good status. In addition a Register of Protected areas has been established which includes over 300 Natura 2000 sites whose water needs now have b be met. Work is now underway to set up monitoring programs to provide a baseline for future reporting and to start to develop programs of measures to deal with the problems identified. Detailed timetables have been set down by which draft RB Management Plans have to be produced for public consultation, final plans are to be in place and the program of measures is to be fully operational. In parallel with and supporting all this activity a considerable amount of national and international research and liason is underway to ensure that scientifically robust and consistant methods are adopted.

While no comprehensive wetland policy currently exists and effective protection of their biodiversity has been limited to those designated as Natura site sites or NHAs a recent Ministerial circular from DoEHLG to the planning authorities, highlighted the importance of wetlands and the need to restore sites damaged by illegal waste activities. This indicates the increasing appreciation of their functions and values which is developing in Ireland. In addition, a Review of Government Policy on Flood Relief, 2003 recommended that wetlands be considered not as a problem but as a resource for reducing flooding damage.

	Has your country identified priorities for ecales, in relation to outcome oriented targets?			ogramm	e of work, including
a)	) No				х
b)	) Outcome oriented targets developed but pr	iority activit	ies not deve	loped	
c)	Priority activities developed but not outcon	ne oriented t	targets		
d) Yes, comprehensive outcome oriented targets and priority activities developed					
	er comments on the adoption of outcome or ling a list of targets (if developed).	riented targ	ets and pric	orities fo	or activities, including
under	Is your country promoting synergies between the Ramsar Convention as well as the implational level? (decision VII/4)				
a)	) Not applicable (not Party to Ramsar Conve	ntion)			
b) No					Х
c)	No, but potential measures were identified implementation	for synergy	and joint		
d)	<ul><li>Yes, some measures taken for joint implem below)</li></ul>	entation (pl	ease specify	,	
e)	<ul><li>Yes, comprehensive measures taken for joi specify below)</li></ul>	nt impleme	ntation (plea	ise	
under	er comments on the promotion of synergies b the Ramsar Convention as well as the impl ational level.				
151.	Has your country taken steps to improve nat	ional data o	n: (decision	vII/4)	
	Issues	Yes	No	No,	but development is under way
a)	Goods and services provided by inland water ecosystems?				Х
1 '	The uses and related socioeconomic variables of such goods and services?				Х
c)	Basic hydrological aspects of water supply as they relate to maintaining ecosystem function?	Х			

d)	Species and all taxonomic levels?	Х			
ı ′	On threats to which inland water ecosystems are subjected?	X			
	er comments on the development of data seave replied "YES" above.	ts, in partic	ular a list of	f data s	ets developed in case
	Has your country promoted the application ical diversity of inland water ecosystems? (de			he rapi	d assessment of the
a)	No, the guidelines have not been reviewed				Х
b)	No, the guidelines have been reviewed and	found inapp	ropriate		
c)	Yes, the guidelines have been reviewed pending	and applic	ation/promo	otion is	
d)	Yes, the guidelines promoted and applied				
	er comments on the promotion and applicati ical diversity of inland water ecosystems.	on of the gu	uidelines on	the rap	id assessment of the
Box L	XIII.				
	elaborate below on the implementation of cally focusing on:	this progra	imme of wo	ork and	associated decisions
	outcomes and impacts of actions taken;				
	<ul><li>contribution to the achievement of the go</li></ul>	als of the St	rategic Plan	of the C	Convention;
С			J		·
	<ul><li>i) progress in implementing national biodive</li></ul>		jies and action	on plans	;;
	e) contribution to the achievement of the Mil				
f)					

# Marine and coastal biological diversity General

	Do your country's strategies and action plans include the following? Ple your response. (decisions II/10 and IV/15)	ease use an " <b>X</b> " to
a)	Developing new marine and coastal protected areas	Х
b)	Improving the management of existing marine and coastal protected areas	Х
c)	Building capacity within the country for management of marine and coastal resources, including through educational programmes and targeted research initiatives (if yes, please elaborate on types of initiatives in the box below)	Х
d)	Instituting improved integrated marine and coastal area management (including catchments management) in order to reduce sediment and nutrient loads into the marine environment	х
e)	Protection of areas important for reproduction, such as spawning and nursery areas	Х
f)	Improving sewage and other waste treatment	Х
g)	Controlling excessive fishing and destructive fishing practices	X
h)	Developing a comprehensive oceans policy (if yes, please indicate current stage of development in the box below)	
i)	Incorporation of local and traditional knowledge into management of marine and coastal resources (if yes, please elaborate on types of management arrangements in the box below)	X
j)	Others (please specify below)	
k)	Not applicable	

Please elaborate on the above activities and list any other priority actions relating to conservation and sustainable use of marine and coastal biodiversity.

- C) Survey programmes to obtain better information which will lead to informed management decisions.
- D) in early stages as part of Ireland's commitments to the EU Water Framework Directive
- E) and G) to a limited extent, as determined by the EU Common Fisheries Policy
- I) under development

# Implementation of Integrated Marine and Coastal Area Management

a) No b) Early stages of development c) Advanced stages of development d) Arrangements in place (please provide details below) Eruther comments on the current status of implementation of integrated marine and coastal area management.  155. Has your country implemented ecosystem-based management of marine and coastal resources, for example through integration of coastal management and watershed management, or through integrated multidisciplinary coastal and ocean management? a) No b) Early stages of development c) Advanced stages of development d) Arrangements in place (please provide details below) e) Not applicable  Further comments on the current status of application of the ecosystem to management of marine and coastal resources.  Marine and Coastal Living Resources  156. Has your country identified components of your marine and coastal ecosystems, which are critical for their functioning, as well as key threats to those ecosystems? a) No b) Plans for a comprehensive assessment of marine and coastal ecosystems are in place (please provide details below) c) A comprehensive assessment is currently in progress d) Critical ecosystem components have been identified, and management plans for them are being developed (please provide details below) e) Management plans for important components of marine and coastal ecosystems are in place (please provide details below) f) Not applicable  Further comments on the current status of assessment, monitoring and research relating to marine and coastal ecosystems, as well as key threats to them		las your country established and/or strengthened institutional, administ ements for the development of integrated management of marine and coast	
c) Advanced stages of development d) Arrangements in place (please provide details below) e) Not applicable  Further comments on the current status of implementation of integrated marine and coastal area management.  155. Has your country implemented ecosystem-based management of marine and coastal resources, for example through integration of coastal management and watershed management, or through integrated multidisciplinary coastal and ocean management?  a) No b) Early stages of development c) Advanced stages of development d) Arrangements in place (please provide details below) e) Not applicable  Further comments on the current status of application of the ecosystem to management of marine and coastal resources.  Marine and Coastal Living Resources  156. Has your country identified components of your marine and coastal ecosystems, which are critical for their functioning, as well as key threats to those ecosystems?  a) No b) Plans for a comprehensive assessment of marine and coastal ecosystems are in place (please provide details below) c) A comprehensive assessment is currently in progress d) Critical ecosystem components have been identified, and management plans for them are being developed (please provide details below) e) Management plans for important components of marine and coastal ecosystems are in place (please provide details below) f) Not applicable  Further comments on the current status of assessment, monitoring and research relating to marine and ecosystems are in place (please provide details below) f) Not applicable	a)	No	
d) Arrangements in place (please provide details below) e) Not applicable  Further comments on the current status of implementation of integrated marine and coastal area management.  155. Has your country implemented ecosystem-based management of marine and coastal resources, for example through integration of coastal management and watershed management, or through integrated multidisciplinary coastal and ocean management?  a) No b) Early stages of development c) Advanced stages of development d) Arrangements in place (please provide details below) e) Not applicable  Further comments on the current status of application of the ecosystem to management of marine and coastal resources.  In early stages of development, through implementation of the EU Water Framework and Habitats Directives  Marine and Coastal Living Resources  156. Has your country identified components of your marine and coastal ecosystems, which are critical for their functioning, as well as key threats to those ecosystems?  a) No b) Plans for a comprehensive assessment of marine and coastal ecosystems are in place (please provide details below) c) A comprehensive assessment is currently in progress d) Critical ecosystem components have been identified, and management plans for them are being developed (please provide details below) e) Management plans for important components of marine and coastal ecosystems are in place (please provide details below) f) Not applicable  Further comments on the current status of assessment, monitoring and research relating to marine and	b)	Early stages of development	
e) Not applicable  Further comments on the current status of implementation of integrated marine and coastal area management.  155. Has your country implemented ecosystem-based management of marine and coastal resources, for example through integration of coastal management and watershed management, or through integrated multidisciplinary coastal and ocean management?  a) No b) Early stages of development c) Advanced stages of development d) Arrangements in place (please provide details below) e) Not applicable  Further comments on the current status of application of the ecosystem to management of marine and coastal resources.  In early stages of development, through implementation of the EU Water Framework and Habitats Directives  Marine and Coastal Living Resources  156. Has your country identified components of your marine and coastal ecosystems, which are critical for their functioning, as well as key threats to those ecosystems?  a) No b) Plans for a comprehensive assessment of marine and coastal ecosystems are in place (please provide details below) c) A comprehensive assessment is currently in progress d) Critical ecosystem components have been identified, and management plans for them are being developed (please provide details below) e) Management plans for important components of marine and coastal ecosystems are in place (please provide details below) f) Not applicable  Further comments on the current status of assessment, monitoring and research relating to marine and	c)	Advanced stages of development	
Further comments on the current status of implementation of integrated marine and coastal area management.  155. Has your country implemented ecosystem-based management of marine and coastal resources, for example through integration of coastal management and watershed management, or through integrated multidisciplinary coastal and ocean management?  a) No b) Early stages of development c) Advanced stages of development d) Arrangements in place (please provide details below) e) Not applicable  Further comments on the current status of application of the ecosystem to management of marine and coastal resources.  In early stages of development, through implementation of the EU Water Framework and Habitats Directives  Marine and Coastal Living Resources  156. Has your country identified components of your marine and coastal ecosystems, which are critical for their functioning, as well as key threats to those ecosystems?  a) No b) Plans for a comprehensive assessment of marine and coastal ecosystems are in place (please provide details below) c) A comprehensive assessment is currently in progress d) Critical ecosystem components have been identified, and management plans for them are being developed (please provide details below) e) Management plans for important components of marine and coastal ecosystems are in place (please provide details below) f) Not applicable  Further comments on the current status of assessment, monitoring and research relating to marine and	d)	Arrangements in place (please provide details below)	X
T55. Has your country implemented ecosystem-based management of marine and coastal resources, for example through integration of coastal management and watershed management, or through integrated multidisciplinary coastal and ocean management?  a) No b) Early stages of development c) Advanced stages of development d) Arrangements in place (please provide details below) e) Not applicable  Further comments on the current status of application of the ecosystem to management of marine and coastal resources.  In early stages of development, through implementation of the EU Water Framework and Habitats Directives  Marine and Coastal Living Resources  156. Has your country identified components of your marine and coastal ecosystems, which are critical for their functioning, as well as key threats to those ecosystems?  a) No b) Plans for a comprehensive assessment of marine and coastal ecosystems are in place (please provide details below) c) A comprehensive assessment is currently in progress d) Critical ecosystem components have been identified, and management plans for them are being developed (please provide details below) e) Management plans for important components of marine and coastal ecosystems are in place (please provide details below) f) Not applicable  Further comments on the current status of assessment, monitoring and research relating to marine and	e)	Not applicable	
for example through integration of coastal management and watershed management, or through integrated multidisciplinary coastal and ocean management?  a) No b) Early stages of development c) Advanced stages of development d) Arrangements in place (please provide details below) e) Not applicable  Further comments on the current status of application of the ecosystem to management of marine and coastal resources.  In early stages of development, through implementation of the EU Water Framework and Habitats Directives  Marine and Coastal Living Resources  156. Has your country identified components of your marine and coastal ecosystems, which are critical for their functioning, as well as key threats to those ecosystems?  a) No b) Plans for a comprehensive assessment of marine and coastal ecosystems are in place (please provide details below) c) A comprehensive assessment is currently in progress d) Critical ecosystem components have been identified, and management plans for them are being developed (please provide details below) e) Management plans for important components of marine and coastal ecosystems are in place (please provide details below) f) Not applicable  Further comments on the current status of assessment, monitoring and research relating to marine and			ne and coastal area
for example through integration of coastal management and watershed management, or through integrated multidisciplinary coastal and ocean management?  a) No b) Early stages of development c) Advanced stages of development d) Arrangements in place (please provide details below) e) Not applicable  Further comments on the current status of application of the ecosystem to management of marine and coastal resources.  In early stages of development, through implementation of the EU Water Framework and Habitats Directives  Marine and Coastal Living Resources  156. Has your country identified components of your marine and coastal ecosystems, which are critical for their functioning, as well as key threats to those ecosystems?  a) No b) Plans for a comprehensive assessment of marine and coastal ecosystems are in place (please provide details below) c) A comprehensive assessment is currently in progress d) Critical ecosystem components have been identified, and management plans for them are being developed (please provide details below) e) Management plans for important components of marine and coastal ecosystems are in place (please provide details below) f) Not applicable  Further comments on the current status of assessment, monitoring and research relating to marine and			
for example through integration of coastal management and watershed management, or through integrated multidisciplinary coastal and ocean management?  a) No b) Early stages of development c) Advanced stages of development d) Arrangements in place (please provide details below) e) Not applicable  Further comments on the current status of application of the ecosystem to management of marine and coastal resources.  In early stages of development, through implementation of the EU Water Framework and Habitats Directives  Marine and Coastal Living Resources  156. Has your country identified components of your marine and coastal ecosystems, which are critical for their functioning, as well as key threats to those ecosystems?  a) No b) Plans for a comprehensive assessment of marine and coastal ecosystems are in place (please provide details below) c) A comprehensive assessment is currently in progress d) Critical ecosystem components have been identified, and management plans for them are being developed (please provide details below) e) Management plans for important components of marine and coastal ecosystems are in place (please provide details below) f) Not applicable  Further comments on the current status of assessment, monitoring and research relating to marine and			
b) Early stages of development c) Advanced stages of development d) Arrangements in place (please provide details below) e) Not applicable  Further comments on the current status of application of the ecosystem to management of marine and coastal resources.  In early stages of development, through implementation of the EU Water Framework and Habitats Directives  Marine and Coastal Living Resources  156. Has your country identified components of your marine and coastal ecosystems, which are critical for their functioning, as well as key threats to those ecosystems?  a) No b) Plans for a comprehensive assessment of marine and coastal ecosystems are in place (please provide details below) c) A comprehensive assessment is currently in progress d) Critical ecosystem components have been identified, and management plans for them are being developed (please provide details below) e) Management plans for important components of marine and coastal ecosystems are in place (please provide details below) f) Not applicable  Further comments on the current status of assessment, monitoring and research relating to marine and	for exa	mple through integration of coastal management and watershed mana	
c) Advanced stages of development d) Arrangements in place (please provide details below) e) Not applicable  Further comments on the current status of application of the ecosystem to management of marine and coastal resources.  In early stages of development, through implementation of the EU Water Framework and Habitats Directives  Marine and Coastal Living Resources  156. Has your country identified components of your marine and coastal ecosystems, which are critical for their functioning, as well as key threats to those ecosystems?  a) No b) Plans for a comprehensive assessment of marine and coastal ecosystems are in place (please provide details below) c) A comprehensive assessment is currently in progress d) Critical ecosystem components have been identified, and management plans for them are being developed (please provide details below) e) Management plans for important components of marine and coastal ecosystems are in place (please provide details below) f) Not applicable  Further comments on the current status of assessment, monitoring and research relating to marine and	a)	No	
d) Arrangements in place (please provide details below) e) Not applicable  Further comments on the current status of application of the ecosystem to management of marine and coastal resources.  In early stages of development, through implementation of the EU Water Framework and Habitats Directives  Marine and Coastal Living Resources  156. Has your country identified components of your marine and coastal ecosystems, which are critical for their functioning, as well as key threats to those ecosystems?  a) No b) Plans for a comprehensive assessment of marine and coastal ecosystems are in place (please provide details below) c) A comprehensive assessment is currently in progress d) Critical ecosystem components have been identified, and management plans for them are being developed (please provide details below) e) Management plans for important components of marine and coastal ecosystems are in place (please provide details below) f) Not applicable  Further comments on the current status of assessment, monitoring and research relating to marine and	b)	Early stages of development	X
e) Not applicable  Further comments on the current status of application of the ecosystem to management of marine and coastal resources.  In early stages of development, through implementation of the EU Water Framework and Habitats Directives  Marine and Coastal Living Resources  156. Has your country identified components of your marine and coastal ecosystems, which are critical for their functioning, as well as key threats to those ecosystems?  a) No  b) Plans for a comprehensive assessment of marine and coastal ecosystems are in place (please provide details below)  c) A comprehensive assessment is currently in progress d) Critical ecosystem components have been identified, and management plans for them are being developed (please provide details below)  e) Management plans for important components of marine and coastal ecosystems are in place (please provide details below)  f) Not applicable  Further comments on the current status of assessment, monitoring and research relating to marine and	c)	Advanced stages of development	
Further comments on the current status of application of the ecosystem to management of marine and coastal resources.  In early stages of development, through implementation of the EU Water Framework and Habitats Directives  Marine and Coastal Living Resources  156. Has your country identified components of your marine and coastal ecosystems, which are critical for their functioning, as well as key threats to those ecosystems?  a) No  b) Plans for a comprehensive assessment of marine and coastal ecosystems are in place (please provide details below)  c) A comprehensive assessment is currently in progress d) Critical ecosystem components have been identified, and management plans for them are being developed (please provide details below)  e) Management plans for important components of marine and coastal ecosystems are in place (please provide details below)  f) Not applicable  Further comments on the current status of assessment, monitoring and research relating to marine and	d)	Arrangements in place (please provide details below)	
In early stages of development, through implementation of the EU Water Framework and Habitats Directives  Marine and Coastal Living Resources  156. Has your country identified components of your marine and coastal ecosystems, which are critical for their functioning, as well as key threats to those ecosystems?  a) No  b) Plans for a comprehensive assessment of marine and coastal ecosystems are in place (please provide details below)  c) A comprehensive assessment is currently in progress  d) Critical ecosystem components have been identified, and management plans for them are being developed (please provide details below)  e) Management plans for important components of marine and coastal ecosystems are in place (please provide details below)  f) Not applicable  Further comments on the current status of assessment, monitoring and research relating to marine and	e)	Not applicable	
Marine and Coastal Living Resources  156. Has your country identified components of your marine and coastal ecosystems, which are critical for their functioning, as well as key threats to those ecosystems?  a) No  b) Plans for a comprehensive assessment of marine and coastal ecosystems are in place (please provide details below)  c) A comprehensive assessment is currently in progress  d) Critical ecosystem components have been identified, and management plans for them are being developed (please provide details below)  e) Management plans for important components of marine and coastal ecosystems are in place (please provide details below)  f) Not applicable  Further comments on the current status of assessment, monitoring and research relating to marine and			ement of marine and
156. Has your country identified components of your marine and coastal ecosystems, which are critical for their functioning, as well as key threats to those ecosystems?  a) No  b) Plans for a comprehensive assessment of marine and coastal ecosystems are in place (please provide details below)  c) A comprehensive assessment is currently in progress  d) Critical ecosystem components have been identified, and management plans for them are being developed (please provide details below)  e) Management plans for important components of marine and coastal ecosystems are in place (please provide details below)  f) Not applicable  Further comments on the current status of assessment, monitoring and research relating to marine and			nework and Habitats
for their functioning, as well as key threats to those ecosystems?  a) No  b) Plans for a comprehensive assessment of marine and coastal ecosystems are in place (please provide details below)  c) A comprehensive assessment is currently in progress  d) Critical ecosystem components have been identified, and management plans for them are being developed (please provide details below)  e) Management plans for important components of marine and coastal ecosystems are in place (please provide details below)  f) Not applicable  Further comments on the current status of assessment, monitoring and research relating to marine and		Marine and Coastal Living Resources	
b) Plans for a comprehensive assessment of marine and coastal ecosystems are in place (please provide details below)  c) A comprehensive assessment is currently in progress  d) Critical ecosystem components have been identified, and management plans for them are being developed (please provide details below)  e) Management plans for important components of marine and coastal ecosystems are in place (please provide details below)  f) Not applicable  Further comments on the current status of assessment, monitoring and research relating to marine and			ems, which are critical
are in place (please provide details below)  c) A comprehensive assessment is currently in progress  d) Critical ecosystem components have been identified, and management plans for them are being developed (please provide details below)  e) Management plans for important components of marine and coastal ecosystems are in place (please provide details below)  f) Not applicable  Further comments on the current status of assessment, monitoring and research relating to marine and	a)	No	X
d) Critical ecosystem components have been identified, and management plans for them are being developed (please provide details below)  e) Management plans for important components of marine and coastal ecosystems are in place (please provide details below)  f) Not applicable  Further comments on the current status of assessment, monitoring and research relating to marine and	b)		
plans for them are being developed (please provide details below)  e) Management plans for important components of marine and coastal ecosystems are in place (please provide details below)  f) Not applicable  Further comments on the current status of assessment, monitoring and research relating to marine and	c)	A comprehensive assessment is currently in progress	
ecosystems are in place (please provide details below)  f) Not applicable  Further comments on the current status of assessment, monitoring and research relating to marine and	d)		
Further comments on the current status of assessment, monitoring and research relating to marine and	e)		
	f)	Not applicable	
			elating to marine and

**157.** Is your country undertaking the following activities to implement the Convention's work plan on coral reefs? Please use an "X" to indicate your response.

	Activities	Not implemented nor a priority	Not implemented but a priority	Currently implemented	Not applicable
a)	Ecological assessment and monitoring of reefs			Х	
b)	Socio-economic assessment and monitoring of communities and stakeholders		X		
c)	Management, particularly through application of integrated coastal management and marine and coastal protected areas in coral reef environments		Х		
d)	Identification and implementation of additional and alternative measures for securing livelihoods of people who directly depend on coral reef services				X
e)	Stakeholder partnerships, community participation programmes and public education campaigns			X	
f)	Provision of training and career opportunities for marine taxonomists and ecologists	Х			
g)	Development of early warning systems of coral bleaching				X
h)	Development of a rapid response capability to document coral bleaching and mortality				Х
i)	Restoration and rehabilitation of degraded coral reef habitats	Х			
j)	Others (please specify below)				

## Please elaborate on ongoing activities.

These answers relate to cold water corals, not all questions relevant.

- a) Efforts are being made to carry out ecological assessment for all developments in marine Special Areas of Conservation designated under the EU Habitats Directive. Reefs ( non coral reefs ) have to be monitored on a 6 year cycle under the EU Habitats Directive.
- f) A limited number of jobs are created for marine ecologists and surveyors with moderate taxonomic skills across a broad range of taxa
- g) and h) Ireland does not have any shallow water tropical reefs
- i) Ireland does have deepwater coral reefs. Restoration and rehabilitation is not considered necessary at present.

#### **Marine and Coastal Protected Areas**

	of the following statements can best describe the current status of eas in your country? Please use an " $\mathbf{X}$ " to indicate your response.	marine and coastal		
•	ne and coastal protected areas have been declared and gazetted ase indicate below how many)	Х		
•	agement plans for these marine and coastal protected areas have a developed with involvement of all stakeholders	Χ		
c) Effec	tive management with enforcement and monitoring has been put in	Х		
-	tional system or network of marine and coastal protected areas is er development	Х		
•	tional system or network of marine and coastal protected areas has a put in place	Х		
man	national system of marine and coastal protected areas includes areas aged for purpose of sustainable use, which may allow extractive vities	X		
	national system of marine and coastal protected areas includes areas h exclude extractive uses	Х		
by s	national system of marine and coastal protected areas is surrounded ustainable management practices over the wider marine and coastal ronment.			
i) Othe	r (please describe below)			
j) Not a	pplicable			
Further com	ments on the current status of marine and coastal protected areas.			
Some 70 marine / coastal sites have been designated Special Area of Conservation under the EU				

habitats Directive.

84 sites have been designated Special Areas of Conservation under the EU Habitats Directive. Management plans for a small number of these sites have been drafted, and the next step is to have stakeholder input into the plans

#### Mariculture

159. Is your country applying the following techniques aimed at minimizing adverse impacts of mariculture on marine and coastal biodiversity? Please check all that apply. Application of environmental impact assessments for mariculture a) Χ developments Development and application of effective site selection methods in the b) Χ framework of integrated marine and coastal area management Development of effective methods for effluent and waste control Χ c) Development of appropriate genetic resource management plans at d) Χ the hatchery level Development of controlled hatchery and genetically sound e) reproduction methods in order to avoid seed collection from nature. f) If seed collection from nature cannot be avoided, development of Χ environmentally sound practices for spat collecting operations, including use of selective fishing gear to avoid by-catch

g)	Use of native species and subspecies in mariculture	Х
h)	Implementation of effective measures to prevent the inadvertent release of mariculture species and fertile polypoids.	Х
i)	Use of proper methods of breeding and proper places of releasing in order to protect genetic diversity	Х
j)	Minimizing the use of antibiotics through better husbandry techniques	Х
k)	Use of selective methods in commercial fishing to avoid or minimize by-catch	Х
I)	Considering traditional knowledge, where applicable, as a source to develop sustainable mariculture techniques	Х
m)	Not applicable	

Further comments on techniques that aim at minimizing adverse impacts of mariculture on marine and coastal biodiversity.

- a) An EIA for farming more than 100 tonnes of Salmon and Trout framing per annum is required under the EU EIA Directive. Assessments are being requested for mariculture in Special Areas of Conservation
- c) Effluent and waste controls are monitored through discharge licensing for some aquaculture facilities.
- J) Efforts to minimize the use of antibiotics in the salmon farming sector are ongoing to improve organic conversions rates.
- K) Increased mesh sizes and escape hatches have been employed in some towed gear fisheries regulated through the CFP.
- L) Can be achieved through the government-stakeholder Co-ordinated Local Aquaculture Management Systems (CLAMS) fora where applicable.

Very detailed fin fish and shellfish management protocols are in place.

# Alien Species and Genotypes

the ma	<b>160.</b> Has your country put in place mechanisms to control pathways of introduction of alien species in the marine and coastal environment? Please check all that apply and elaborate on types of measures in the space below.				
a)	No	X			
b)	Mechanisms to control potential invasions from ballast water have been put in place (please provide details below)				
c)	Mechanisms to control potential invasions from hull fouling have been put in place (please provide details below)				
d)	Mechanisms to control potential invasions from aquaculture have been put in place (please provide details below)				
e)	Mechanisms to control potential invasions from accidental releases, such as aquarium releases, have been put in place (please provide details below)				
f)	Not applicable				
	comments on the current status of activities relating to prevention of in the marine and coastal environment, as well as any eradication activities				

#### Box LXIV.

Please elaborate below on the implementation of this programme of work and associated decisions specifically focusing on:

- a) outcomes and impacts of actions taken;
- b) contribution to the achievement of the goals of the Strategic Plan of the Convention;
- c) contribution to progress towards the 2010 target;
- d) progress in implementing national biodiversity strategies and action plans;
- e) contribution to the achievement of the Millennium Development Goals;
- f) constraints encountered in implementation.

# Agricultural biological diversity

	<b>161.</b> Plas your country developed national strategies, programmes and plans that ensure the development and successful implementation of policies and actions that lead to the conservation and sustainable use of agrobiodiversity components? (decisions III/11 and IV/6)				
a) No					
b) No, but strategies, programmes and plans are under development					
c) Yes, some strategies, programmes and plans are in place (please provide details below)	Х				
d) Yes, comprehensive strategies, programmes and plans are in place (please provide details below)					
Further comments on agrobiodiversity components in national strategies, program	mes and plans.				
The National Biodiversity Plan sets out a comprehensive list of actions under various themes and sectors, including agriculture. Significant progress has already been made in addressing many of the action points relating to agriculture. Preliminary work on a sectoral Biodiversity Action Plan for agriculture, which will address the relevant action points in greater detail, is being undertaken by the Department of Agriculture and Food.					
Ireland has completed and submitted to the Food and Agriculture Organisation (FAO) a Country Report on Farm Animal Genetic Resources as part of the State This Country report assessed the state of agricultural biodiversity in the farm an and identified national priorities for the conservation and utilisation of Farm Anin and made recommendations for enhanced international co-operation in the biodiversity. The National priorities listed in the above report are being currently in the state of the priorities and the state of the state o	of the World Report. imal sector in Ireland nal Genetic Resources field of farm animal				
<b>162.</b> Plas your country identified ways and means to address the potential impacts of genetic use restriction technologies on the <i>In-situ</i> and <i>Ex-situ</i> conservation and sustainable use, including food security, of agricultural biological diversity? (decision V/5)					
a) No					
b) No, but potential measures are under review	X				
c) Yes, some measures identified (please provide details below)					
d) Yes, comprehensive measures identified (please provide details below)					
Further information on ways and means to address the potential impacts of genetic use restriction technologies on the <i>In-situ</i> and <i>Ex-situ</i> conservation and sustainable use of agricultural biodiversity.					
This is addressed at EU level					

Annex to decision V/5 - Programme of work on agricultura	i bloalversity
Programme element 1 – Assessment	
<b>163.</b> Has your country undertaken specific assessments of components of agricular on plant genetic resources, animal genetic resources, pollinators, pest managed cycling?	
a) No	
b) Yes, assessments are in progress (please specify components below)	X
c) Yes, assessments completed (please specify components and results of assessments below)	f
Further comments on specific assessments of components of agricultural biodive	rsity.
Breed surveys of farm animal genetic resources have been carried out in the past to continue these surveys into the future. The results of these surveys were post Domestic Animal Diversity-Information System and the EAAP Animal Genetic Date Funding has also been provided from the national Exchequer for the conservation Resources including identification, evaluation, characterisation and conservation.	ted on the FAO a Bank.
Ag-Biota, an agri-environmental research project focusing on biodiversity is func Environmental Protection Agency and will run for a period of five years from Janu the project are:	
<ul> <li>Selection of suitable bio -indicators for the assessment of environmental qual agri-environmental policy.</li> <li>To inform agri-environmental policy, by providing experimentally objective in the potential environmental impact of current and proposed future agriculture.</li> <li>To promote a greater understanding of agro -ecology and the development of environmentally-compatible agriculture that conserves, and utilises biologica.</li> <li>To further advance understanding in an area of current ecological theory that practical relevance and consequence.</li> </ul>	formation concerning al practices f a more I processes. t has important
Irish Seed Savers Association in partnership with University College Dublin are a collection of native crop varieties.	ssembling an extensive
<b>164.</b> Is your country undertaking assessments of the interactions between ag the conservation and sustainable use of the components of biodiversity referr Convention (e.g. ecosystems and habitats; species and communities; genome scientific or economic importance)?	ed to in Annex I of the
a) No	
b) Yes, assessments are under way	Х
c) Yes, some assessments completed (please provide details below)	
d) Yes, comprehensive assessments completed (please provide detail below)	Is

Further comments on assessment of biodiversity components (e.g. ecosystems and habitats; species and communities; genomes and genes of social, scientific or economic importance).

Projects include Termoncarragh EU Life Project investigating best practice in the management of farmland to benefit nature conservation and the Farmland Birds Project which aims to assess the impact of the Rural Environment Protection Scheme (REPS) on breeding and wintering bird population on farmland.

A comprehensive EU Life funded assessment is also in progress on the interactions between farming practices and nature conservation in the Burren area of Co Clare.

	servation of Galway Sheep' project investigated the practices of Galway stion efforts.	heep breeders in their
farmers	s your country carried out an assessment of the knowledge, innovati and indigenous and local communities in sustaining agricultural bi in services for food production and food security?	
a)	No	x
b)	Yes, assessment is under way	
c)	Yes, assessment completed (please specify where information can be retrieved below)	
	comments on assessment of the knowledge, innovations and pract is and local communities.	ices of farmers and
	s your country been monitoring an overall degradation, status quo or restural biodiversity since 1993 when the Convention entered into force?	toration/rehabilitation
a)	No	X
b)	Yes, no change found (status quo)	
c)	Yes, overall degradation found (please provide details below)	
d)	Yes, overall restoration or rehabilitation observed (please provide details below)	
Further c	omments on observations.	
	Programme element 2 - Adaptive management	
positive,	s your country identified management practices, technologies and police and mitigate the negative, impacts of agriculture on biodiversity, and enhity to sustain livelihoods?	
a)	No	
b)	No, but potential practices, technologies and policies being identified	
c)	Yes, some practices, technologies and policies identified (please provide details below)	
d)	Yes, comprehensive practices, technologies and policies identified (please provide details below)	x
	omments on identified management practices, technologies and policies.	
Commona Code of Country	egislation introduced prescribing farming practices on conservation sites age Framework Plans - prescriptions for farming to allow recovery of degrescood Farming Practice anew EU Single Payment Scheme, farmers will have to comply with a rangent requirements including maintaining their lands in "Good Agricultural".	ge of statutory

Details of a National Nitrates Action Programme, which will place limits on the quantity and timing of fertiliser application in line with the EU Nitrates Directive, is being negotiated with the European Commission.

The Rural Environment Protection Scheme (REPS) is a voluntary scheme that has been in existence since 1994. Participating farmers must follow an agri-environmental plan drawn up in accordance with the scheme specifications. A revised scheme (REPS 3) was introduced in June 2004 with a considerably greater emphasis on biodiversity issues.

#### Programme element 3 - Capacity-building

**168.** Has your country increased the capacities of farmers, indigenous and local communities, and their organizations and other stakeholders, to manage sustainable agricultural biodiversity and to develop strategies and methodologies for *In-situ* conservation, sustainable use and management of agricultural biological diversity?

- a) No

  b) Yes (please specify area/component and target groups with increased capacity)
- Further comments on increased capacities of farmers, indigenous and local communities, and their organizations and other stakeholders.

Compensation provided to sheep farmers for destocking under Commonage Framework Plans. Increased payments in REPS 3 with introduction of compulsory biodiversity requirements. Incorporation of increased biodiversity content in national farmer training programmes. Training provided to breeders of rare farm animals to maintain genetic variation and agricultural biodiversity.

Projects funded by the Department of Agriculture and Food under the Conservation of Genetic Resources for Food & Agriculture fund.

**169.** Has your country put in place operational mechanisms for participation by a wide range of stakeholder groups to develop genuine partnerships contributing to the implementation of the programme of work on agricultural biodiversity?

- a) No
- b) No, but potential mechanisms being identified
- c) No, but mechanisms are under development

X - The National
Advisory Committee
on Genetic Resources
for Food &
Agriculture was
established in 1996
to a dvise and aid in
the development and
implementation of
plans aimed at
achieving the
following objectives:

d) Yes, mechanisms are in place

- the development and utilisation of genetic resources to increase national food security;
- the identification, evaluation and

conservation of unique genetic resources whose survival is being threatened or endangered; the promotion of public awareness and support for genetic resource conservation management strategies and the participation in international and EU programmes aimed at coordinated management of genetic resources. National Platform for Biodiversity Research Regular involvement of stakeholders in the design and implementation of REPS3 including the biodiversity oriented elements 170. Has your country improved the policy environment, including benefit-sharing arrangements and incentive measures, to support local-level management of agricultural biodiversity? Χ a) b) No, but some measures and arrangements being identified c) No, but measures and arrangements are under development d) Yes, measures and arrangements are being implemented (please specify below) Further comments on the measures taken to improve the policy environment. Not relevant in Ireland

Programme element 4 – Mainstreaming			
171. Is your country mainstreaming or integrating national plans or strategies for the conservation and sustainable use of agricultural biodiversity in sectoral and cross-sectoral plans and programmes?			
	a)	No	
	b)	No, but review is under way	
	c)	No, but potential frameworks and mechanisms are being identified	
	d)	Yes, some national plans or strategies mainstreamed and integrated into some sectoral plans and programmes (please provide details below)	Х
	e)	Yes, some national plans or strategies mainstreamed into major sectoral plans and programmes (please provide details below)	
		omments on mainstreaming and integrating national plans or strategies iinable use of agricultural biodiversity in sectoral and cross-sectoral plans	
		nal Biodiversity Plan is being implemented since 2002.	
The d	eve	lopment of a Biodiversity Action Plan for Agriculture is currently in progre	SS.
the n	nain	your country supporting the institutional framework and policy and plan streaming of agricultural biodiversity in agricultural strategies and a on into wider strategies and action plans for biodiversity?	
a)	) N	lo	
b)	) Y	es, by supporting institutions in undertaking relevant assessments	X
c)	Y	es, by developing policy and planning guidelines	X
d]	) Y	es, by developing training material	
e)	) Y	es, by supporting capacity-building at policy, technical and local levels	
f)	а	es, by promoting synergy in the implementation of agreed plans of ction and between ongoing assessment and intergovernmental rocesses.	x
Furthe	er co	omments on support for institutional framework and policy and planning r	mechanisms.
policy The D Imple	in a epa mer	ortment of Agriculture and Food established a Biodiversity Unit in 2004 to agriculture and produce Biodiversity Action Plan for Agriculture. In Interdepartmental Station of Agriculture and Food is represented on the Interdepartmental Station of the National Biodiversity Plan 2002-2006.	Steering Group on the

<b>173.</b> In the case of centers of origin in your country, is your country promot conservation, on farm, <i>In-situ</i> , and <i>Ex-situ</i> , of the variability of genetic resagriculture, including their wild relatives?	**
a) No	
b) Yes (please provide details below)	X
Further comments on of the conservation of the variability of genetic resources for in their center of origin.	r food and agriculture

In-situ conservation of rare native animal breeds and plant varieties supported through REPS.

Support for both *in-situ* and *ex-situ* conservation provided through cattle, sheep and horse breed societies and for plant varieties through Irish Seed Savers Association.

#### Box LXV.

Please provide information concerning the actions taken by your country to implement the Plan of Action for the International Initiative for the Conservation and Sustainable Use of Pollinators.

#### Box LXVI.

Please elaborate below on the implementation of this programme of work and associated decisions specifically focusing on:

- a) outcomes and impacts of actions taken;
- b) contribution to the achievement of the goals of the Strategic Plan of the Convention;
- c) contribution to progress towards the 2010 target;
- d) progress in implementing national biodiversity strategies and action plans;
- e) contribution to the achievement of the Millennium Development Goals;
- f) constraints encountered in implementation.

# **Forest Biological Diversity**

#### General

**174.** Has your country incorporated relevant parts of the work programme into your national biodiversity strategies and action plans and national forest programmes?

a) No		
b) Yes, p	lease describe the process used	X
c) Yes, proces	please describe constraints/obstacles encountered in the	Х
d) Yes, p	lease describe lessons learned	Х
e) Yes, p work	lease describe targets for priority actions in the programme of	Х

Further comments on the incorporation of relevant parts of the work programme into your NBSAP and forest programmes

- a) Not applicable
- b) National Biodiversity Plan, inspection procedures, consultation procedures, forest Service Guidelines, conditions of grant aid and felling licenses and research.
- c) There is a need for further research.

Public and stakeholder consultation has a positive outcome.

## Box LXVII.

Please indicate what recently applied tools (policy, planning, management, assessment and measurement) and measures, if any, your country is using to implement and assess the programme of work. Please indicate what tools and measures would assist the implementation.

Please see comments for 174

#### Box LXVIII.

Please indicate to what extent and how your country has involved indigenous and local communities, and respected their rights and interests, in implementing the programme of work.

• Note: Due to Irelands history of practically 100% deforestation in the centuries up to 1900, there is very limited activities involving the use of traditional forest related knowledge, or traditional rights in forests. Although a lot of the traditional knowledge has been lost there are attempts to promote and encourage use of the remaining forest knowledge available.

#### Box LXIX.

Please indicate what efforts your country has made towards capacity building in human and capital resources for the implementation of the programme of work.

- Recruitment of dedicated ecologists in the Forest Service, National Parks and Wildlife Service and Coillte, the State Forestry Company.
- Development of GIS databases and plans.
- Funding and development of the Native Woodland Scheme. The provision of relevant training for forestry inspectors and consultants in relation to the scheme.
- Protection against invasive alien species (through inspections).
- Forest service inspections and audits to ensure that forestry operations are in compliance with national standards and guidelines.
- The development of the afforestation consent system and procedures, which is enshrined in legislation.

#### Box LXX.

Please indicate how your country has collaborated and cooperated (e.g., south-south, north-south, south-north, north-north) with other governments, regional or international organizations in implementing the programme of work. Please also indicate what are the constraints and/or needs identified.

- Ireland has particularly collaborated and cooperated with Northern Ireland (UK). Ireland, North and South, comprises one biogeographical unit and co-operation on biodiversity issues.
- The Ministerial Conference on the Protection of Forests in Europe has improved and developed the indicators relating to the criteria pertaining to Sustainable Forest Management.
- Ireland is an active participant in the United Nations Forum on Forests.
- Ireland is an active member of many other international forestry and conservation processes.

## Expanded programme of work on forest biological diversity

# Programme element 1 – Conservation, sustainable use and benefit-sharing 175. Is your country applying the ecosystem approach to the management of all types of forests? a) No (please provide reasons below) b) No, but potential measures being identified (please provide details below) c) Yes (please provide details below) X

Comments on application of the ecosystem approach to management of forests (including effectiveness of actions taken, lessons learned, impact on forest management, constraints, needs, tools, and targets).

Ireland's forest policy requires that forest development and operations must be sustainable and compatible with the protection of the environment.

This entails:

- (a) Designating areas that have particular sensitivities and planning forestry with these to the fore.
- (b)Using published guidelines, including the Forest Biodiversity Guidelines, (the Forest Service Guidelines are obligatory and must be complied with) and the Code of Best Forest Practice
- (c)Inspections to ensure compliance
- (d) Audit the Irish National Forest Standard to gauge changes over time,
- (e) Coillte Teo (the State Forest Company) uses Forest Management Unit (FMU) planning, which is based on the ecosystem approach.

The inventory and classification of broadleaf woodlands will provide a framework for the Native Woodland Scheme, selection of protected areas and biodiversity guidelines.

Legislation: Forestry Acts 1946, 1988 and Statutory Instrument 538 of 2001 make implicit the need for good forest management, control felling and make forest operations subject to the Wildlife and Planning Acts.

Sustainable Forest Management (SFM): Ireland is committed to the principles of SFM and is a signatory to the Ministerial Conference on the Protection of Forests in Europe (MCPFE) Lisbon Agreement 1998. Ireland has developed and published the Irish National Standard, which outlines the criteria and indicators relating to the national implementation of SFM.

Research: The BIOFOREST project is investigating biodiversity in plantation forestry and will augment existing research. The BIOSCAPE project is examining the biodiversity of different forests and forested landscapes. The BioAssess project (the Biodiversity Assessment Tools Project) is developing a tool-box for assessing the impacts of policies on biodiversity in Europe, in addition it is measuring the impact of land-use change on biodiversity across Europe's biogeographic regions.

The Native Woodland Scheme (NWS), launched in 2001, applies an ecosystem approach. The scheme includes training courses in native woodland apprecation, conservation, management and establishment.

# **176.** Has your country undertaken measures to reduce the threats to, and mitigate its impacts on forest biodiversity?

Options	X	Details
		Please specify below the major threats identified in relation to each objective of goal 2 and the measures undertaken to address priority actions
a) Yes	X	
		Please provide reasons below
b) No		

Further comments on measures to reduce threats to, and mitigate the impacts of threatening processes on forest biodiversity (including effectiveness of actions taken, lessons learned, impacts on forest biodiversity, constraints, needs, tools and targets).

The National Biodiversity Plan includes a commitment to prepare a national study on alien species. To this end, a joint all-Ireland review of alien species has been initiated with Northern Ireland.

With regard to the impact of pollution on forest biodiversity, Ireland participates in the European Commission's Forest Focus monitoring programme. Efforts to reduce pollution are ongoing through the Integrated Pollution Control licensing system from the Environmental Protection Agency.

With regard to fragmentation and changes to other land uses, the Forestry Acts and the Wildlife Act (1976, 2000) in addition to other legislation such as Planning legislation provides protection to existing woodlands, while agricultural schemes give some protection and provide enhancement measures for hedgerows. (Hedgerows are a valuable component of woodland connectivity in Ireland.) Some areas of broadleaf woodland/scrub continue to be cleared. The Native Woodland Scheme places particular importance on connectivity in the creation of new native woodlands.

The importance of deadwood is recognised by the Forest Biodiversity Guidelines, which require that some deadwood should be left *in situ* after both thinning and final harvesting.

# **177.** Is your country undertaking any measures to protect, recover and restore forest biological diversity?

Options	X	Details
		Please identify priority actions in relation to each objective of goal 3 and describe measures undertaken to address these priorities
a) Yes	Х	
		Please provide reasons below
b) No		

Further comments on measures to protect, recover and restore forest biological diversity (including effectiveness of actions taken, lessons learned, impacts on forest biodiversity, constraints, needs, tools and targets).

All forest operations must adhere to Forest Service environmental and forest practice guidelines which include the Forest Biodiversity Guidelines, and which encourage an ecosystem approach to forest planning and management. Most measures are habitat oriented rather than species oriented. However, where a rare/threatened species is present, for example Hen Harrier, Freshwater Pearl Mussel, the site must be managed in a way to ensure the protection, survival and where possible enhancement of the species.

The Native Woodland Scheme and to some extent the Woodland Improvement Scheme and NeighbourWood Scheme perform this function. The National Biodiversity Plan pays particular attention to the need for the integration of the conservation and sustainable use of biological diversity in all sectors.

# **178.** Is your country undertaking any measures to promote the sustainable use of forest biological diversity?

Options	X	Details
		Please specify priority actions in relation to each objective of goal 4 and describe measures undertaken to address these priorities
a) Yes	X	
		Please provide reasons below
b) No		

Further comments on the promotion of the sustainable use of forest biological diversity (including effectiveness of actions taken, lessons learned, impacts on forest biodiversity, constraints, needs, tools and targets).

There is very little harvesting of non-timber resources in Ireland – practically all harvesting is timber harvesting (logging). The Forestry Acts control timber harvesting - a Felling Licence is required from the Forest Service before harvesting and there is usually a condition to replant. The Forest Harvesting and the Environment Guidelines ensure that forest harvesting adopts sound planning procedures, operating techniques and control measures to reduce any potentially adverse effects. They address issues relating to soil conservation, protection of water quality, biodiversity as well as the maintenance of forest health and productivity.

**179.** Is your country undertaking any measures to promote access and benefit-sharing of forest genetic resources?

Options	X	Details
		Please specify priority actions in relation to each objective of goal 5 and describe measures undertaken
a) Yes		
		Please provide reasons below
b) No	Х	

Further comments on the promotion of access and benefit-sharing of forest genetic resources. (including effectiveness of actions taken, lessons learned, impacts on forest biodiversity, constraints, needs, tools and targets)

#### Programme element 2 - Institutional and socio-economic enabling environment

**180.** Is your country undertaking any measures to enhance the institutional enabling environment for the conservation and sustainable use of forest biological diversity, including access and benefit-sharing?

Options	X	Details
		Please identify priority actions in relation to each objective of Goal 1 and describe measures undertaken to address these priorities
a) Yes	X	
		Please provide reasons below
b) No		

Further comments on the enhancement of the institutional enabling environment for the conservation and sustainable use of forest biological diversity, including access and benefit-sharing (including effectiveness of actions taken, lessons learned, impacts on forest biodiversity, constraints, needs, tools and targets).

The Forestry Acts, Wildlife Acts, Forest Service Guidelines. Code of Best Forest Practice, National Irish Forest Standard, consultation procedures and inspections by Forest Service personnel and personnel from the National Parks and Wildlife Service as well as other stakeholders ensure that the requirements of the above legislation/regulations are implemented. A new Forestry Bill will be drafted in 2006.

**181.** Is your country undertaking any measures to address socio -economic failures and distortions that lead to decisions that result in loss of forest biological diversity?

Options	X	Details
		Please identify priority actions in relation to each objective of Goal 2 and describe measures undertaken to address these priorities
a) Yes	X	
		Please provide reasons below
b) No		

Further comments on review of socio-economic failures and distortions that lead to decisions that result in loss of forest biological diversity (including effectiveness of actions taken, lessons learned, impacts on forest biodiversity, constraints, needs, tools and targets).

The majority of Irish forests are non-indigenous plantations and many of the larger semi-natural woods are protected either by State ownership or through designation. Measures are available to protect these areas.

**182.** Is your country undertaking any measures to increase public education, participation and awareness in relation to forest biological diversity?

Options	X	Details
a) Yes	Х	Please identify priority actions in relation to each objective of goal 3 and describe measures undertaken to address these priorities
		Please provide reasons below
b) No		

Further comments on measures to increase public education, participation and awareness in relation to forest biological diversity (including effectiveness of actions taken, lessons learned, impacts on forest biodiversity, constraints, needs, tools and targets).

Guidelines published, public consultation, Native Woodland Scheme training, information days, funding of NGOs that promote Sustainable Forest Management. Ireland's National Tree Week promotes and raises public awareness of all aspects of forests including their biodiversity values. The Peoples Millennium Forest Project was also very effective in this regard.

#### Programme element 3 - Knowledge, assessment and monitoring

**183.** Is your country undertaking any measures to characterize forest ecosystems at various scales in order to improve the assessment of the status and trends of forest biological diversity?

Options	X	Details
	X	Please identify priority actions in relation to each objective of Goal 1 and describe measures undertaken to address these priorities
a) Yes		
		Please provide reasons below
b) No		

Further comments on characterization of forest ecosystems at various scales (including effectiveness of actions taken, lessons learned, impacts on forest biodiversity, constraints, needs, tools and targets).

The National Forest Inventory, the Inventory of semi-natural woodlands and the Bioforest research project have begun this task.

**184.** Is your country undertaking any measures to improve knowledge on, and methods for, the assessment of the status and trends of forest biological diversity?

X	Details
х	Please identify priority actions in relation to each objective of goal 2 and describe measures undertaken to address these priorities
	Please provide reasons below

Further comments on improvement of knowledge on and methods for the assessment of the status and trends (including effectiveness of actions taken, lessons learned, impacts on forest biodiversity, constraints, needs, tools and targets).

Some research programmes are implemented, for example the BIOFOREST project, BIOSCAPE project and BIOASSESS project (see question 8). Long term research has also been conducted around the country, for example in the Wicklow and Killarney National Parks, Brackloon Wood and the ICP plots.

The National Forest Inventory includes forest biodiversity.

**185.** Is your country undertaking any measures to improve the understanding of the role of forest biodiversity and ecosystem functioning?

X	Details
X	Please identify priority actions in relation to each objective of goal 3 and describe measures undertaken to address these priorities
	Please provide reasons below

Further comments on the improvement of the understanding of the role of forest biodiversity and ecosystem functioning (including effectiveness of actions taken, lessons learned, impacts on forest biodiversity, constraints, needs, tools and targets).

Criteria and indicators for Sustainable Forest Management have been adopted and improved through the Ministerial Conferences for the Protection of Forests in Europe (MCPFE) and incorporated into the Irish National Forest Standard and progressed through involvement with the Cost Action Programmes.

**186.** Is your country undertaking any measures at national level to improve the infrastructure for data and information management for accurate assessment and monitoring of global forest biodiversity?

Options	X	Details
	×	Please identify priority actions in relation to each objective of goal 4 and describe measures undertaken to address these priorities
a) Yes		
		Please provide reasons below
b) No		

Further comments on the improvement of the infrastructure for data and information management (including effectiveness of actions taken, lessons learned, impacts on forest biodiversity, constraints, needs, tools and targets).

The European Commissions Forest Focus monitoring programme is providing funding for a bio-soils monitoring programme which will commence in 2005.

An audit of the Irish National Forest Standard is being developed at present, which will include the biodiversity criterion. Research programmes are also in place.

# Box LXXI.

	laborate below on the implementation of this programme of work and lly focusing on:	associated decisions
a)	outcomes and impacts of actions taken;	
b)	contribution to the achievement of the goals of the Strategic Plan of the C	convention;
c)	contribution to progress towards the 2010 target;	
d)	progress in implementing national biodiversity strategies and action plans	;;
e)	contribution to the achievement of the Millennium Development Goals;	
f)	constraints encountered in implementation.	
	Biological diversity of dry and sub-humid lands	
	your country supporting scientifically, technically and financially, at the he activities identified in the programme of work? (decisions V/23 and VII/2	
a) N	lo	
b) Y	es (please provide details below)	
	comments on scientific, technical and financial support, at the national a vities identified in the programme of work.	and regional levels, to
This par	t is not relevant to Ireland	
into its	as your country integrated actions under the programme of work of dry national biodiversity strategies and action plans or the National Action Pro 7 (decisions V/23, VI/4 and VII/2)	
a) N	lo	
b) Y	es (please provide details below)	
	comments on actions under the programme of work of dry and sub-humid biodiversity strategies and action plans or the National Action Programme	
program	as your country undertaken measures to ensure synergistic/collaborative in mee of work between the national UNCCD process and other procedural conventions? (decisions V/23, VI/4 and VII/2)	
a) N	lo	
b) Y	es, some linkages established (please provide details below)	
c) Y	es, extensive linkages established (please provide details below)	
program	comments on the measures to ensure the synergistic/collaborative im nme of work between the national UNCCD processes and other proc mental conventions.	

Programme Part A: Assessment	
<b>190.</b> Has your country assessed and analyzed information on the state of dryla and the pressures on it, disseminated existing knowledge and best practices, and in order to determine adequate activities? (Decision V/23, Part A: Assessment, activities 1 to 6)	filled knowledge gaps
a) No	
b) No, but assessment is ongoing	
c) Yes, some assessments undertaken (please provide details below)	
d) Yes, comprehensive assessment undertaken (please provide details below)	
Further comments on the relevant information on assessments of the stadissemination of existing knowledge and best practices.	tus and trends and
Programme Part B: Targeted Actions	
<b>191.</b> Has your country taken measures to promote the conservation and subiological diversity of dry and sub-humid lands and the fair and equitable sharing out of the utilization of its genetic resources, and to combat the loss of biologica sub-humid lands and its socio-economic consequences? (part B of annex I of decito 9)	of the benefits arising al diversity in dry and
a) No	
b) Yes, some measures taken (please provide details below)	
c) Yes, many measures taken (please provide details below)	
Further comments on the measures taken to promote the conservation and subiological diversity of dry and sub-humid lands and the fair and equitable sharing out of the utilization of its genetic resources, and to combat the loss of biological sub-humid lands and its socio-economic consequences.	of the benefits arising

<b>192.</b> Has your country taken measures to strengthen national capacities, including local capacities, to enhance the implementation of the programme of work?			
a)	No	X	
b)	Yes, some measures taken (please provide details below)		
c)	Yes, comprehensive measures taken (please provide details below)		
d)	Yes, all identified capacity needs met (please provide details below)		
Further comments on measures taken to strengthen national capacities, including local capacities, to enhance the implementation of the programme of work.			

#### Box LXXII.

Please elaborate below on the implementation of this programme of work and associated decisions specifically focusing on:

- a) outcomes and impacts of actions taken;
- b) contribution to the achievement of the goals of the Strategic Plan of the Convention;
- c) contribution to progress towards the 2010 target;
- d) progress in implementing national biodiversity strategies and action plans;
- e) contribution to the achievement of the Millennium Development Goals;
- f) constraints encountered in implementation.

#### Mountain Biodiversity

# Programme Element 1. Direct actions for conservation, sustainable use ad benefit sharing 193. Has your country taken any measures to prevent and mitigate the negative impacts of key threats to mountain biodiversity? a) No b) No, but relevant measures are being considered c) Yes, some measures taken (please provide details below) Χ d) Yes, many measures taken (please provide details below) Further comments on the measures taken to prevent and mitigate the negative impacts of key threats

to mountain biodiversity

Currently the main impacts on uplands result from overstocking, plantation forestry operations, peat extraction, fire, farm abandonment, erosion and potentially climate change

Prevention of damage has focused on the designation of Natura 2000 sites. Under this legislation many sites (Natural Heritage Areas) have recently been designated for the habitat blanket bog and several of these occur in uplands.

A recently introduced measure under the Rural Environment Protection Scheme ( REPS ) gives financial incentives to farmers to farm hill land in a sustainable manner. This measure which applies to shared grazing, to Natura 2000 sites and to other designated sites was developed jointly by representatives of agriculture and nature.

National Parks ( state-owned properties ) have been established in several upland areas. Their management is elaborated through management plans in association with local stakeholders.

Infrastructure especially access roads is a threat particularly that associated with wind energy installations Guidelines on wind energy development have recently been produced by Dept Of Environment, Heritage & Local Government and include guidance on mitigation of natural heritage impact.

In specific areas of high recreational impact paths have been constructed to mitigate impact.

<b>194.</b> Has your country taken any measures to protect, recover and restore mount	tain biodiversity?
a) No	
b) No, but some measures are being considered	
c) Yes, some measures taken (please provide details below)	X
d) Yes, many measures taken (please provide details below)	
Further comments on the measures taken to protect, recover and restore mountai	n biodiversity
See 193	
<b>195.</b> Has your country taken any measures to promote the sustainable use o resources and to maintain genetic diversity in mountain ecosystems?	f mountain biological
a) No	
b) No, but some measures are being considered	
c) Yes, some measures taken (please provide details below)	X
d) Yes, many measures taken (please provide details below)	
Further comments on the measures to promote the sustainable use of mountain and to maintain genetic diversity in mountain ecosystems	in biological resources
See 193	
196. Has your country taken any measures for sharing the benefits arising fr mountain genetic resources, including preservation and maintenance of traditional	
a) No	Х
b) No, but some measures are being considered	
c) Yes, some measures taken (please provide details below)	
d) Yes, many measures taken (please provide details below)	
Further comments on the measures for sharing the benefits arising from the urgenetic resources	tilization of mountain

Programme Element 2. Means of implementation for conservat	ion,
sustainable use and benefit sharing	

**197.** Has your country developed any legal, policy and institutional framework for conservation and sustainable use of mountain biodiversity and for implementing this programme of work?

- a) No
  b) No, but relevant frameworks are being developed
- c) Yes, some frameworks are in place (please provide details below) X
  d) Yes, comprehensive frameworks are in place (please provide details

Further comments on the legal, policy and institutional frameworks for conservation and sustainable use of mountain biodiversity and for implementing the programme of work on mountain biodiversity.

Cross compliance inspections provide a means for joint Department initiatives to target inappropriate farming activities within designated areas and commonages.

**198.** Has your country been involved in regional and/or transboundary cooperative agreements on mountain ecosystems for conservation and sustainable use of mountain biodiversity?

- ntain ecosystems for conservation and sustainable use of mountain biodiversity?

  a) No
- b) No, but some cooperation frameworks are being considered
- c) Yes (please provide details below)

below)

Further information on the regional and/or transboundary cooperative agreements on mountain ecosystems for conservation and sustainable use of mountain biodiversity

There has been some work to develop a joint approach to the conservation of biological diversity in mountain areas with Northern Ireland. Draft management plans for these areas have been exchanged.

( MONARCH 11 the UK / Ireland Research programme on climate change selected a largely upland, trans-boundary study site and the habitat blanket bog for modelling the potential impacts of climate change on a number of selected flora and fauna species from this habitat)

Trans – national co-operation is a feature of the Wicklow Uplands Council an NGO that represents rural development interests in Wicklow. This is actively involved in trans-national projects (with Wales) funded by INTERREG the objectives of which are the development of walking routes, sustainable tourism and forestry centers of excellence in mountain areas They also have close contacts with a similar organization in Northern Ireland; the Mournes Heritage Trust.

Χ

Programme Element 3. Supporting actions for conservation,			
sustainable use and benefit sharing			
<b>199.</b> Has your country taken any measures for identification, monitoring and ass biological diversity?	sessment of mountain		
a) No			
b) No, but relevant programmes are under development			
c) Yes, some measures are in place (please provide details below)	X		
<ul> <li>d) Yes, comprehensive measures are in place (please provide details below)</li> </ul>			
Further comments on the measures for identification, monitoring and asse biodiversity	ssment of mountain		
A comprehensive monitoring exercise commenced in November 2004.			
<b>200.</b> Has your country taken any measures for improving research, technical and and capacity building for conservation and sustainable use of mountain biodiversity			
a) No			
b) No, but relevant programmes are under development			
c) Yes, some measures are in place (please provide details below)	X		
<ul> <li>Yes, comprehensive measures are in place (please provide details below)</li> </ul>			
Further comments on the measures for improving research, technical and scier capacity building for conservation and sustainable use of mountain biodiversity	ntific cooperation and		
<b>201.</b> Has your country taken any measures to develop, promote, validate and technologies for the conservation of mountain ecosystems?	transfer appropriate		
a) No	X		
b) No, but relevant programmes are under development			
c) Yes, some measures are in place (please provide details below)			
<ul> <li>d) Yes, comprehensive measures are in place (please provide details below)</li> </ul>			
Further comments on the measures to develop, promote, validate and transfer appoint the conservation of mountain ecosystems	propriate technologies		

# Box LXXIII.

	elaborate below on the implementation of this programme of work and ally focusing on:	associated decisions
a)	outcomes and impacts of actions taken;	
b)	contribution to the achievement of the goals of the Strategic Plan of the C	Convention;
c)	contribution to progress towards the 2010 target;	·
d)	progress in implementing national biodiversity strategies and action plans	S;
e)	contribution to the achievement of the Millennium Development Goals;	,
f)	constraints encountered in implementation.	
.,		
	E. OPERATIONS OF THE CONVENTION	
	as your country actively participated in subregional and regional activities vention meetings and enhance implementation of the Convention? (decision	
а	) No	
b	) Yes (please provide details below)	Х
Further	comments on the regional and subregional activities in which your country	has been involved.
See bo	x LXXV	
<u> </u>		
<b>203</b> . Is	s your country strengthening regional and subregional cooperation, enha	ncing integration and
	ng synergies with relevant regional and subregional processes? (decision V	
а	) No	
b	) Yes (please provide details below)	Х
Further	comments on regional and subregional cooperation and processes.	
See box		
	The following question (204) is for DEVELOPED COUNTRIE	ES
	s your country supporting the work of existing regional coordination r ment of regional and subregional networks or processes? (decision VI/27 B	
a)	No	
b)	No, but programmes are under development	
c)	Yes, included in existing cooperation frameworks (please provide details below)	
d)	Yes, some cooperative activities ongoing (please provide details below)	X
	comments on support for the work of existing regional coordination rement of regional and subregional networks or processes.	mechanisms and the
See box	·	
" POL	· <del></del> · · · ·	

mechanisms and initiatives for capacity-building? (decision VI/27 B)				
	a)	No		
	b)	Yes	X	
206. Has your country contributed to the assessment of the regional and subregional mechanisms for implementation of the Convention? (decision VI/27 B)				
	a)	No		
	b)	Yes (please provide details below)	X	
Further comments on contribution to the assessment of the regional and subregional mechanisms.				

## Box LXXIV.

Please elaborate below on the implementation of the above decisions specifically focusing on:

- a) outcomes and impacts of actions taken;
- b) contribution to the achievement of the goals of the Strategic Plan of the Convention;
- c) contribution to progress towards the 2010 target;
- d) progress in implementing national biodiversity strategies and action plans;
- e) contribution to the achievement of the Millennium Development Goals;
- f) constraints encountered in implementation.

Ireland participates in a number of regional activities and meetings aimed at both preparation for CBD meetings and to improve the implementation of the Convention. These fora include European Working Groups on the Environment, the European Biodiversity Expert Group and the Pan European Biodiversity ....... (PEBLDS)

# F. COMMENTS ON THE FORMAT

#### Box LXXV.

Please provide below recommendations on how to improve this reporting format.	
	_

. - - - - -